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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
HK$ million HK$ million
BYEEET BERET
Segment Revenue* kL ON
Construction and engineering BENEWM TR 3,553 3211
Insurance and investment R RIgE 265 170
Property mE 616 722
Food and beverage B8 691 452
Computer and information communication Bl RERBAR
technology and others N EAD 1,268 1,200
Total ook 6,393 5,755
Segment Performance** DERE*
Construction and engineering R M TR 253 114
Insurance and investment R RIRE () (35)
Property {ES 409 726
Food and beverage B8 160 177
Computer and information communication B R ETBAR
technology and others REM () (13)
Total M 815 969

* Included share of revenue/results of associates and jointly controlled entities
BIEFTEH S N R R RIEHIRE I E4E

* Represented segment results and gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
REDEZERHEWBRR - BE AR REREE G EER 2 I

SEGMENT REVENUE
2ERA
20%

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE
DERE
(HK$ million 7% & &)

- 55%
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2011
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March
for the last five years.

T RELTEEEEEGRAR(ARRE]) REMBAR(SEI AEE RN BTRFARE=A=T—RBILvHEE #HEE %

RMEMTBERER -

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Financials (HK$ million) BISEE (B EER) —E-C-F —T—F —E-TF —ETNE ZEENE
Total assets BEE 10,592 8,595 7,313 8,121 8,589
Total liabilities BEE 5274 3716 3,088 4,460 4,822
Total equity e 5,318 4,879 4,225 3,661 3,767
Non-controlling interests PR 324 399 377 381 445
Shareholders’ funds REEE 4,994 4,480 3,848 3280 3322
Share capital BA
—in number (million) -8 H(EER) 278 278 278 278 279
—in value (HK$1.25 per share) —HE(EREE125T) 347 347 347 347 348
Revenue A 3,850 3,491 3,934 5,196 5,569
Profit attributable to equity holders ANFRIERE A
of the Company FE(R SR 658 798 47 123 231
Per Share Basis (HK$) SRE(BE)
Earnings — basic BF-EX 2.37 2.87 150 0.44 0.83
Dividends i 0.95 1.15 0.70 0.455 0.45
Net asset value BEFE
—including non-controlling interests — BEFEE RS 19.1 176 15.2 13.2 135
—excluding non-controlling interests ~ — B HEIEIERER 18.0 16.1 13.8 118 1.9
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLETO
WA EQUITY HOLDERS OF
(HKS million &4 & & 7T) THE COMPANY
RPN RERFE AEGRER
515 599 (HKS million 7% & &7) 798
i 658
3,850 3,934
3,491 .
231
123
12 1 09 08 12 1 10 09 08
SHAREHOLDERS’' FUNDS EARNINGS AND
BRRES DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
(HKS million 754 & & 7T) BREFNREE
(HKS 7H)
4,994
4,480 W Dividends J&8 287
3848 B Eamings 2% 237
3,280 3,322
150
0.95 (RS 0.83
I 0L 0.455-0.44 0_4“
12 1 09 08 12 1 10 09 08
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Mr MA Chi Wing
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Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph#

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*

Dr KO Chan Gock, William
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SECRETARY
Mr MUI Chin Leung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Appleby

Deacons
Robertsons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2318 1818

Facsimile : (852) 2757 5138
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

hEER
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR FERDERZE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road 11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke, HM 08, Bermuda Pembroke, HM 08, Bermuda
BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND EEROERZEE
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG BESE
Tricor Standard Limited BEEEFRAR
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre BEBERRER TR
28 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong SEERL-TNE
SHARE LISTING o £
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ERMAEXSFAERAT
Stock Code: 25 R&A 1SR - 25
ADR DEPOSITARY BANK EEEARSFTERIT
The Bank of New York Mellon The Bank of New York Mellon
American Depositary Receipts American Depositary Receipts
101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor West 101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor West
New York, NY 10286, USA New York, NY 10286, USA
Stock Symbol: CHVLY FEEMEEE  CHVLY
WEBSITE 4931k
http://www.chevalier.com http://www.chevalier.com
FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bti& B
Announcement of Results EiE N
Interim Results 28 November 2011 hHIZE —E——F+—A=-+/\H
Final Results 28 June 2012 RHAELE —E——FXA=-1+N\H
Book Close Dates BLIBFERE
Interim Dividend 15 to 19 December 2011 R HARR B —E—F+_-_A+HBE+NAE
Final and Special Dividends 17 to 19 September 2012 FRER R R AR &, —E-——FAA+tHE+ANH
Annual General Meeting 7 September 2012 BRERBERS —E——FhA+tH
Payment of Dividends R iR B
Interim dividend of H AR B
HK$0.20 per share 20 December 2071 GRE020T —E——&+-A=-+H
Special dividend of SHllliesy
HK$0.40 per share 25 September 2012 FiEE040r —E——FhLA-t+HH
Final dividend of REARR B
HK$0.35 per share 25 September 2012 FEK03T —ET——HFAA-t+HH
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

ERBRE

Aiming at healthy return and delivering steady
payout to investors, the Group will continue
to explore business opportunities in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas so as to

strengthen our financial position and enhance
r profitability.

ANGREEHEROKREEFLHBEIRE &8

BHEETEEE PERMKRGMIREK - UL

EERMZHBRRRRBHBFIGES

o

Entering the year of 2011/12, investors were hopeful that the
global economy would be on the path to recovery as global central
banks have been committed to implementing pro-growth monetary
policy, and countries around the world have placed a strong
focus on reducing debt. However, throughout the year, optimism
gradually faded in view of global negative financial headlines
including US credit downgrade and escalating Euro debt crisis.
All these weighed heavily on the world economic outlook. Facing
the intensification of European sovereign debt crisis and debt
restructuring attempts falling short of market expectations, the lack
of a clear-cut solution to these problems have led to further roller-
coaster volatility in the financial markets, resulting in an challenging
environment for worldwide businesses.

Despite these market uncertainties, the Group continued to record
a positive growth and development in the 2011/12 financial year.
The Group completed the disposal of its entire 54.14% interest in
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited with a gain of HK$135 million.
To further diversify the business portfolio, the Group made its
initial investment of HK$266 million in the US senior housing
market for acquisition of 3 properties in Oregon State. At the end
of the financial year, the Group disposed of its remaining 25%
interest in Sekisui SPR Europe GmbH for a gain of HK$44.3 million,
which marked the final closure to the Group’s interest in the pipe
technologies business. Excluding all the one-off gains, the segment
profit of the Group experienced a healthy increase from HK$374
million to HK$636 million, an increase of 70.1%, as compared to
last financial year.

Going forward, benefiting from the commencement of the
redevelopment projects in East Kowloon, large-scale infrastructure
projects in Hong Kong and further casino resort constructions
in Macau, the outlook is promising for our construction and
engineering segment, consisting of building construction, curtain
wall, electrical and mechanical, environmental engineering and lifts

6
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EFR®RE

and escalators, as well as building services. With the increase in
volume of construction in Hong Kong, it is anticipated that this will
also be favorable to the Employees’ Compensation insurance line
of our Group's insurance business.

With uncertainty over the global market outlook, it is believed that
the Chinese Central Government will take proactive measures to
maintain its economic growth. On the other hand, it is expected
that the government will maintain its determination to cool down
the residential property market through imposing tight policies
on supply, demand and financing. These policies will have impact
on the progress of the existing property development projects in
Chengdu, Changchun as well as the final phase of Beijing’s project.
However, given relatively low land costs secured for the projects,
we are confident that these projects can be completed with
reasonable returns in the medium to long term.

Given the increase of aging population and healthcare demand in
the US, the long term outlook for the senior housing industry is
very positive. With the slowdown in construction of new supplies
in the past 4 years, and a continuous steady growth in demand, the
industry is now enjoying a healthy occupancy level, low turnover
rate and stronger operating results with a promising outlook.
Coupled with an attractive level for long term financing costs, we
see a good window for making further investments in this business
in the near future.

Looking back at how the Cafe Deco Group has further expanded
since the merger over 18 months ago, it signifies a smooth
transition of integration between Igor’s and Cafe Deco. Leveraging
on the strength of two of the leading restaurant and bar groups in
the market, going forward the Cafe Deco Group is well positioned
to strengthen its portfolio of western and international cuisines and
bars in Hong Kong, while venturing into China with its first outlet in
Shanghai which was opened for business at the end of June 2012.

In the coming few years, we expect the global market will remain
volatile. From US’s stagnant recovery to Europe’s debt crisis,
together with signs of an economic slowdown in China, this
indicates great challenges ahead for the Group's businesses.
Aiming at healthy return and delivering steady payout to investors,
the Group will continue to explore business opportunities in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas so as to strengthen our
financial position and enhance our profitability.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks
to our stakeholders including shareholders, customers, suppliers
and business partners for their support extended to the Group. |
would also like to thank members of the Board for their dedication
and commitment, as well as members of staff for their hard work
in the past year.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWNE TN

The Group's consolidated revenue increased by 10.3%, from
HK$3,491 million in 2010/11 to HK$3,850 million for the year
ended 31 March 2012. Major contributors of such growth included
increase in gross insurance premium written mainly in Employees’
Compensation for several large construction contracts, a new
inclusion of 9-month revenue from the US senior housing business
after the Group’s acquisition at the end of June 2011, and the
impact of the full year consolidation after the merger of Igor’s and
Cafe Deco since mid December 2010. After taking up the share of
revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities (“JCEs"), the
total segment revenue also increased by 11.1%, from HK$5,755
million to HK$6,393 million during the year.

The Group's profit for the year dropped from HK$886 million in the
2010/11 financial year to HK$704 million in the 2011/12 financial
year despite a healthy increase of segment profit from HK$374
million to HK$636 million in same respective years. This is a result
of a lesser profit contribution from asset disposal in the 2011/12
financial year which included the disposal of the Group’s 54.14%
interest in Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited in September 2011
recording a gain of HK$135 million, and the disposal of the Group's
remaining 25% interest in pipe rehabilitation business in Europe
and Australia to our partner, Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd., in March
2012 for a gain of HK$44.3 million. In comparison, the Group
recorded a total profit contribution of HK$595 million in the 2010/11
financial year from the disposal of property development projects
in Shenzhen and Hefei, Mainland China and the disposal of the
Group's 80% interest in Pacific Coffee.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.35 (2011: HK$0.55) and a special dividend of HK$0.40
(2011: Nil) per share payable to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on Wednesday, 19
September 2012. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 7 September 2012 (the "AGM"), the dividend warrants
will be distributed and paid on or about Tuesday, 25 September
2012. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2011:
interim dividend of HK$0.20 and special dividend of HK$0.40) per
share paid on 20 December 2011, the total dividends for the year
amounted to HK$0.95 (2011: HK$1.15) per share, 17.4% less
than last year and representing a dividend payout of 40.1% (2011:
40.1%).

REBNGAMAR-Z—F ——FEBE
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EEEBRWmRE DT

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The construction and engineering segment’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2012 recorded an increase of 10.7% amounted
to HK$3,553 million (2011: HK$3,211 million). The main reason
was an increase in share of revenue of lifts and escalators
associates in Singapore and Mainland China despite the reduction
of revenue contribution from electrical and mechanical projects in
Macau. Profit of this segment increased from HK$114 million in
2010/11 to HK$209 million in 2011/12, due to the absence of loss
provision made in the year under review on Macau construction
project coupled with better performance of lifts and escalators
associates. In light of the launch of new large scale infrastructure
projects and development projects in Hong Kong and Macau,
high demand of lifts and escalators for residential development
projects in Mainland China where the Group has significant interest
in the related associates, together with quality services provided
by our competent and dedicated teams of building construction,
aluminium engineering, as well as electrical and mechanical
engineering units, the management foresee these will offer us
splendid opportunities to further expand our businesses in this
segment. With the supply and installation of high quality kitchen
cabinets to the leading developers and contractors in Hong
Kong, our building supplies division has built reputation on our
outstanding quality and market competitiveness. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to face keen competitive environment
in construction and engineering segment in view of shortage of
competent professionals and skilled labors.

As at 31 March 2012, the total value of the outstanding
construction and engineering contracts in hands of the Group's
subsidiaries amounted to HK$2,028 million. Major contracts are:

1. Construction of alteration and addition works at Sha Tin
Racecourse;

2. Construction of residential development at Tsing Fat Lane, Siu
Lam, Tuen Mun;

3. Construction of composite development at junction of Plover
Cove Road and Po Wu Lane, Taipo;

4. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls at Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin; and

5. Environmental engineering works at Black Point Power Station
at Tuen Mun.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBHWmR DT

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Total revenue of the insurance and investment segment increased
from HK$170 million during the 2010/11 financial year to HK$265
million during the 2011/12 financial year, mainly contributed by
the growth of gross insurance premium written in Employees’
Compensation for large construction contracts of several large
scale infrastructure projects, including Hong Kong Boundary
Crossing Facilities — Reclamations Work of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge.

The segment recorded a loss for the year of HK$4.5 million,
improved from a loss of HK$35.8 million in 2010/11. This is
mainly due to the profit contribution from insurance business and
reduction in loss on investment products. With the investment
portfolio restructuring exercise done during the year, the segment’s
exposure to volatility is expected to be minimised in the future.

PROPERTY

The property segment’s revenue decreased by 14.7%, from
HK$722 million in 2010/11 to HK$616 million for the year ended 31
March 2012 despite increase in the Group’s revenue resulting from
acquisition of the operation of US senior housing business at the
end of June 2011 with a revenue contribution of HK$128 million,
and also from properties acquired in the first quarter of the financial
year.

The decline in the segment revenue is mainly due to the absence
of significant share of revenue from the property sales in Beijing
and Chengdu (Jinjiang District) by the JCEs as most of the sales
of those projects was recognised in the previous financial years,
leading to a decline in share of revenue, from HK$344 million to
HK$54.4 million, of associates and JCEs.

The segment’s profit increased 17.5% from HK$348 million in
2010/11 to HK$409 million in 2011/12. This was mainly attributable
to the newly acquired properties and increase in fair value gain
from investment properties offsetting the share of loss from JCEs.

In June 2011, the Group entered into senior housing business
in the US by acquiring 3 senior housing located at Oregon with
a total gross building area of 210,000 sq. ft.. A total of 336 beds
and services ranging from assisted living, memory care, respite
care and hospice care are provided to the seniors. The occupancy
rate recorded at near 90% during the year. With the growing aged
population and steady rise in healthcare expenditure in the US, it
is anticipated that demand for senior citizen housing is increasing.
The Group is optimistic that this operation will generate stable
operating income and offer capital appreciation potential of those
properties in the future.
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The performance of the Group’s cold storage and logistics
operation remains positive, and they contribute steadily in terms
of both revenue and profit. Gross floor area of the storage spaces
increased by 633,500 sqg. ft. after the acquisition of properties in
Kwai Chung and Tsing Vi Island.

With the implementation of austerity measures by the Chinese
Central Government, slow progress was seen in the sale figures
of the villa units under Beijing project — “My Villa”, in which the
Group has 44% interest, during the 2011/12 financial year. Since
the commercial units of Phase Il has been ready for launch to the
market, sale is expected to commence in third quarter of 2012.

“Chateau Ermitas” in which the Group has 49% interest is situated
at Lushan Avenue in Shuangliu County, Chengdu, with a site area
of approximately 1,250,000 sq. ft. and a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,810,000 sqg. ft. The project is comprised of over
60 units of villas, more than 700 residential apartment units, a
deluxe club house, a shopping mall and car parking facility. The
management of the Group will closely monitor the market situation
and Phase | of Chateau Ermitas is expected to be launched to the
market in the 4th quarter of 2012/13 financial year.

The Changchun project in which the Group has 96% interest
is situated at Luyuan District. The project has a site area of
approximately 4,200,000 sqg. ft. and an estimated gross floor area
of approximately 8,320,000 sqg. ft. The site is still in planning stage
and commencement of development is expected to be taken in
early 2013.

In February 2012, a 50-50 jointly controlled entity of the Group
was granted the development rights by Urban Renewal Authority
to develop the site at Chi Kiang Street/Ha Heung Road, To Kwa
Wan. The site is in the planning stage and is expected to have a
total gross floor area of about 90,100 sqg. ft., and about 15,000
sq. ft. of commercial space will be built. The project is estimated to
be completed in the 2015/16 financial year.
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FOOD AND BEVERAGE

The food and beverage segment'’s revenue increased from HK$452
million to HK$691 million during the financial year as a result of the
merger of Igor's and Cafe Deco in mid December 2010, leading
to a full-year incorporation of revenue from Cafe Deco Group. The
increase was partially offset by only a 20% share of revenue from
Pacific Coffee since it became an associate of the Group in early
July 2010.

The segment results turned a loss of HK$40.1 million in 2010/11
into a profit of HK$24.4 million in 2011/12 after the incorporation of
Cafe Deco Group's results and the absence of the impairment of
goodwill of HK$31.4 million made related to Igor’s in 2010/11.

During the financial year, Cafe Deco Group opened 7 new outlets
including a vigorous expansion into business of new Asian
concepts — Dim Sum Bar at Harbour City and Nina Tower — offering
a casual yet modern ambience for Chinese cuisine lovers. This
also added on to the existing Asian themed businesses including
Sakesan and Pho Yummee that offer Viethamese street cooking
style in a contemporary atmosphere. During the year, Cafe Deco
Group also expanded its portfolio to include Berliner, featuring
German specialties like Roasted Pork Knuckle and Sausage Platter,
at Olympian City. To cater to the increasing demand for authentic
German cuisine in Discovery Bay, Cafe Deco Group had also
converted Moorings into Berliner. Together with the opening of
Wildfire at Olympian City and Eivissa, a trendy bar, on Wyndham
Street, the Group, with its subsidiaries and associates, housed a
total of 44 outlets including 7 Wildfire, 3 Berliner, 31 restaurants
and bars, and 3 kiosks as of 31 March 2012. To strengthen the
quality and cost control of food supply chain for Cafe Deco Group’s
outlets, it had set up a food processing centre in Chai Wan in
January 2012. The facility was built to handle processed meats
and seafood, ranging from smoked salmon, specialised sausages
to tailored portion steak. With the establishment of a centralised
food processing centre, the Group is expected to achieve an
improvement in gross profit margin as well as better control over
quality and standard.

To tap the opportunities arising from the fast growing consumer
market, the Group opened its first restaurant and bar in Huangpu
District, Shanghai. The Group will continue to explore business
opportunities for more new outlets in order to expand its market
share in Hong Kong while being cautious of the high rental levels
and continued increasing food and labour costs.
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COMPUTER AND INFORMATION
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY AND
OTHERS

The segment’s revenue grew by 5.6%, from HK$1,200 million in
2010/11 to HK$1,267 million during the year under review mainly
due to better revenue gained from car dealerships in both Canada
and Mainland China.

The Group recorded a segment loss of HK$2.0 million compared
to HK$13.0 million last year. The positive effect of the absence of
expenses from the terminated mining project in the Philippines in
the last financial year; and better performance of car dealership
in Canada and information communication technology (“IT")
business is offset by the increase in share of loss from associates
conducting car dealership business in Mainland China.

Being the authorised dealer in Hong Kong distributing a wide range
of Toshiba products including Tablet PC and Ultrabook computer
products, the IT division showed a good performance in commercial
sector during the financial year. Despite intense competition in
the market, favourable factors including our stylish products and
quality services for target customers, product compatibility with
Microsoft Window 8, and the roll-out of Toshiba flagship tablet PC
and Ultrabook computer products, all contribute to an expectation
of stable performance for this sector in the coming year.

Capturing the opportunities arising from the economic growth and
vigorous consumer spending in the automobile industry in Sichuan,
Chengdu, during the financial year, the Group had absorbed the
opening costs for the set up of new 4S shops during our expansion
while those unperformed shops were closed. The Group has an
extensive portfolio including three vehicle brands and six operations
of 4S Shops in Chengdu. Total revenue exceeded RMB900 million
with 7,000 automobile sold in this financial year. Currently, though
automobile after-sales services represent only a relatively small
portion of our overall revenue, there is still room to grow in the
future. The Group will leverage the existing large customer base
and professional operating system on new car sales to further
explore and develop the value chain of the automobile after-sales
business. With increasing demand of both new cars and its after-
sales services in Mainland China, the Group believes that the after-
sales services are vital to the profitability and success of our car
dealership business and this will be our major focus in coming
years. We are cautiously optimistic about expanding our 4S Shops,
with targeted sales of up to 9,500 automobiles in the coming year.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased by 10.3% or HK$359 million
from HK$3,491 million last year to HK$3,850 million this year.
The growth of gross insurance premium written in Employees’
Compensation of the insurance business, the new inclusion of
9-month revenue from the US senior housing business after the
Group’s acquisition at the end of June 2011 and the full year
consolidation of the Cafe Deco Group's revenue after the merger
of Igor’'s and Cafe Deco since mid December 2011 were the major
contributors of such increase.

Gross profit

Gross profit soared from HK$633 million in 2010/11 to HK$937
million in 2011/12 and gross margin improved from 18.1% to
24.3%.

Other income, net

There was a net income of HK$53.2 million (2011: HK$31.6 million)
in this fiscal year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
reduction in net loss on derivative financial instruments following
the restructuring exercise to minimise the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
since December 2010 and the revaluation of the put option to sell
the remaining shares in the Pacific Coffee Group retained by the
Group.

Other gains, net

Net other gains of HK$390 million (2011: HK$338 million) was
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2012. Major components in
net other gains were gain on disposal of Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited of HK$135 million (2011: gain on disposal of 80% interest
in the Pacific Coffee Group of HK$217 million) and increase in fair
value of investment properties of HK$256 million (2011: HK$163
million).

Selling and distribution costs

The full year consolidation of the selling and distribution costs of
the Cafe Deco Group after the merger of Igor's and Cafe Deco
contributed to the increase in selling and distributions costs from
HK$389 million last year to HK$483 million this year.

Share of results of associates

The Group’s share of results of associates reduced to HK$94.5
million (2011: HK$106 million) this year. The decrease was mainly
due to the share of loss of associates in food and beverage and
car dealership businesses in Mainland China offsetting the rise of
share of profit of associates in lift and escalator business.
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Share of results of jointly controlled entities

The Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities recorded
a loss of HK$62.0 million (2011: HK$13.3 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2012. The loss this year was mainly coming from
the jointly controlled entities in Mainland China under property
segment.

Gain on disposal of an associate/subsidiaries and their
related jointly controlled entities

The disposal of the remaining 25% interest in pipe rehabilitation
business in Europe and Australia to its partner, Sekisui Chemical
Co., Ltd. in March 2012 by the Group resulted in a gain of HK$44.3
million during the year.

In 2010/11, the Group disposed of its entire interests in two
property development projects in Shenzhen and Hefei, Mainland
China, leading to a gain on disposal of HK$170 million and HK$208
million respectively.

Finance costs, net

There was a change from a net finance income of HK$0.5 million in
2010/11 to a net finance costs of HK$23.2 million in 2011/12. The
increments in bank borrowing and borrowing rate escalated the
finance costs during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$658
million was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2012.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Investment properties

The significant increase in the carrying value of investment
properties of HK$961 million to year end balance of HK$2,680
million was basically due to the acquisition of a property located
in Kwai Chung (via acquisition of a subsidiary) with an acquisition
cost of HK$687 million and the rise of fair value of the properties in
the amount of HK$256 million reflecting the upward adjustment in
property market value in the region.

Property, plant and equipment

The acquisition of a property located in Tsing Yi Island (via
acquisition of subsidiaries) and property, plant and equipment from
US senior housing business of HK$286 million and HK$256 million
respectively led to a surge of HK$515 million in the carrying value
of the Group's property, plant and equipment to HK$1,329 million as
at 31 March 2012.
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Interests in associates (under non-current assets) and
amounts due from associates (under current assets)
Interests in associates (under non-current assets) consisted of
interests in associates, including goodwill, of HK$539 million (2011:
HK$502 million) and non-current portion of amounts due from
associates of HK$390 million (2011: HK$122 million).

The amounts due from associates (under non-current and current
assets) increased from HK$260 million to HK$422 million as at 31
March 2012 represented mainly the further loan to an associate
engaged in car dealership business in Mainland China during the
year which was repayable more than one year.

Interests in jointly controlled entities (under non-current
assets) and amounts due from jointly controlled entities
(under current assets)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (under non-current assets)
consisted of interests in jointly controlled entities, including
goodwill, of HK$348 million (2011: HK$389 million) and non-current
amounts due from jointly controlled entities of HK$327 million
(2011: HK$118 million).

The increase in amounts due from jointly controlled entities (under
non-current and current assets) increased from HK$334 million
to HK$885 million as at 31 March 2012 represented the further
loans to jointly controlled entities in Mainland China under property
segment and a new loan to a jointly controlled entity engaged in
property development project in Hong Kong.

Properties under development
The additions of 16.2% to properties under development represented
the costs incurred for a property development project in Changchun.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets reduced significantly by HK$103 million
principally because the acquisition of a subsidiary engaged in
property investment in Kwai Chung, for which a deposit of HK$103
million paid and classified as other non-current assets as at last
year end, was completed on 1 April 2011.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Other than movement arising from normal operation, there was
increment in advances to joint venture partners for businesses of
associates and jointly controlled entities of the Group in Mainland
China.
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Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2012, bank balances and cash decreased 29.9%
to HK$1,035 million (2011: HK$1,476 million). The further funding
contributions in relation to associates and jointly controlled entities
utilised the bank balances and cash of the Group. At the end of the
reporting period, 71.6% (2011: 83.1%) of bank balances and cash
was denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars while 16.5% (2011:
11.0%) was denominated in Renminbi.

Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk
reserves (under current and non-current liabilities)
Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk reserves (under
current and non-current liabilities) increased by HK$109 million
to HK$222 million as at year end. This was mostly attributable
to the growth of premium written in Employees’ Compensation
for several large construction contracts which covered periods of
insurance subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Bank borrowings (under current and non-current
liabilities)

Net draw down of bank borrowings of HK$1,304 million mainly for
financing the acquisition of subsidiaries and business during the
year led the balance of bank borrowings to HK$2,980 million (2011:
HK$1,670 million) as at 31 March 2012. 91.8% and 7.2% (2011:
85.9% and 12.6%) of the balance were denominated in Hong Kong
and US dollars and Renminbi respectively.

The Group’s bank borrowings in respect of the portion due within
one year increased to 52.3% (2011: 22.3%) as at 31 March 2012
due to the maturity of existing HK$1 billion club loan in November
2012.

Subsequent to year end, the Company accepted an offer of a
HK$1.5 billion three years club loan from banks in May 2012.
Subject to the execution of the loan documentation and utilisation
of this new club loan for repayment of the HK$1 billion club loan,
the Group’s bank borrowings in respect of the portion due within
one year will substantially reduce and current ratio will substantially
improve.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL
RATIOS

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$4,994 million (2011:
HK$4,480 million), an increase of HK$514 million or 11.5% when
compared with 2011. Such increase was mainly resulted from the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$658
million, exchange gain on translation of overseas operations of
HK$69.4 million, offsetting by the payment of dividends of HK$208
million during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, total debt to equity ratio was
56.0% (2011: 34.2%), which was expressed as a percentage of the
bank borrowings over the Group’s net assets of HK$5,318 million
(2011: HK$4,879 million). The net debt to equity ratio became
36.6% (2011: 4.0%), which was expressed as a percentage of the
net bank borrowings (representing the total debt net of the bank
balances and cash) over the Group's net assets. The ratio of total
debt to total assets of HK$10,592 million (2011: HK$8,595 million)
increased from 19.4% last year to 28.1% as at 31 March 2012.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BALANCES

Financing for acquisition of subsidiaries and business and further
funding contributions in relation to associates and jointly controlled
entities caused the increase of the Group’s bank borrowings to
HK$2,980 million (2011: HK$1,670 million) and the decrease of
the Group's cash and deposits at bank to HK$1,035 million (2011:
HK$1,476 million) as at year end.

Most of the borrowings were carrying floating interest rates based
on Hong Kong or London Interbank Offered Rates with small

portions based on Prime Rate.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement
during the year rose to HK$31.7 million (2011: HK$13.7 million).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and
financial management. The Group's treasury activities are
centralised in order to achieve better risk control and minimise cost
of funds. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly
denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND INTEREST RATES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has arranged foreign currency
swap contracts amounting to HK$37.5 million (2011: HK$68.4 million)
to manage the exchange rate exposure between various foreign
currencies to other cross currencies. The Group had outstanding
interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$620 million
in total (2011: HK$620 million) at the end of the reporting period,
enabling the Group to manage its interest rate exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, bank borrowings of HK$1,344 million (2011:
HK$198 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were secured
by charges on investment properties of HK$1,574 million (2011:
HK$742 million), property, plant and equipment of HK$609 million
(2011: HK$211 million), inventories of HK$29.0 million (2011:
HK$25.4 million), properties for sales of HK$24.9 million (2011:
HK$48.4 million) and deposits at bank of HK$52.6 million (2011:
HK$2.4 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. The commitment is to be
financed by borrowings and internal funds.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES AND THEIR PROFORMA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial
assistance to, and guarantees for banking facilities granted to,
affiliated companies as at 31 March 2012, which together in
aggregate amounted to HK$1,307 million as loans and HK$213
million as guarantees issued for banking facilities granted. These
amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 14.6%
as at 31 March 2012 and exceeded the relevant percentage ratio of
8% under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules,
an unaudited proforma combined statement of financial position of
those affiliated companies with financial assistance from the Group
and the Group's attributable interest in those affiliated companies as
at 31 March 2012 are presented below:

MTBRBARCHBEDREFEZS
Gt BA B AR 3R

MN-_ZE——®F#=ZfF=+—8 ' A28 & =&
HBRAREHR THBARUBEEY AR
GBARIZIBITEERERER  BFEAL
B3 07TR L2 ERRAEMB AR ZEBITE
EFEH 2 B2 13BITHER - RT—=
FZA=1+—8 WEFEHH146%2ED
LLERBBEEBRAELIERAE ([EZAT])
(BHLEMRANT EMRAUDBEHB8%Z
EREDHE - BRI EMARBNE13.2218F7 48
FoR-IZE-——F=fA=+—8 A&EEHT
B TS & B B A R R RSB HE A O 15
AR EAEERZEHE QRN EERERD
T

As at 31 March 2012
R-Z——5=A=+—H

Proforma combined

statement of financial Group's attributable

position interest

BEEHMBRRE REEEGRER

HK$ million HK$ million

BERET BEEER

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,311 612
Current assets mEEE 3,342 1,573
Current liabilities nEaE (1,844) (861)
Non-current liabilities JEnREas (44) (18)
Shareholders’ advances ARER AR (1,671) (1,307)
Total equity s 1,094 (1)

As at 31 March 2012, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees,
amounted to HK$134 million (2011: HK$219 million).
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DR CHOW YEI CHING, Executive Director, Chairman of the Board
and Executive Committee, aged 76, is the founder of Chevalier
Group since 1970. He is also a director of certain companies of
the Group. Dr Chow is an independent non-executive director of
Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded
with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business Administration by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary University
Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1997, he was conferred
an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong
Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University
and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in Mainland
China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree
of Doctor of Social Science by City University of Hong Kong.
Dr Chow's enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his
appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest
in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul
of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. Dr Chow also
actively participates in various professional bodies and associations
on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding
President of International Ningbo Merchants Association Company
Limited, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the
Permanent Honorary President of the National Taiwan University-
HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions
to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded
honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan and
especially the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon
in Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the
Gold Bauhinia Star from the Government of the HKSAR (“HKSAR
Government”) in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Executive Directors of the Company.
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MR KUOK HOI SANG, Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Managing Director, a member of the Executive Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged
62, joined Chevalier Group in 1972. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and
Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman
of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Association
of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation
of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered
Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in
business development and is responsible for the strategic planning
and management of the operations of lifts and escalators, building
construction, building materials and supplies, aluminium works,
electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property
development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier
Group.

MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 51,
joined Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Apart from managing the operation of
insurance underwriting together with property investment and
development, property management, cold storage and logistics as
well as travel agency businesses, he is also responsible for legal
affairs and corporate communications of Chevalier Group. Mr Tam
holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from the Beijing University of the
People’s Republic of China, a Master of Arts Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
also a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr Tam is appointed as a Deputy Director of the Hong Kong
Macao Taiwan Overseas and Chinese Foreign Committee and a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Changchun. Presently, he also serves as a Council Member and
Vice Chairmen in the Education Committee and the Professional
Development Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He is also a Council Member served in The Hong Kong
Association of Property Management Companies as well as an
Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau.
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MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Executive Director, a member
of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, aged 38, joined Chevalier Group in
2000. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He
was elected as an independent non-executive director of Towngas
China Company Limited on 4 June 2012, a public company listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of
Engineering from The University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently
a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce and a General Committee Member of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of the Shanghai Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Committee Member of the Advisory Council
on the Environment, and a member of the SME Development
Fund Vetting Committee. Mr Chow is also a court member of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and The University of Hong Kong. Mr Chow
is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company
and is also a brother of Miss Lily Chow, Executive Director of the
Company.

MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 62, joined Chevalier Group in 1985.
He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
responsible for the management of Chevalier Group's accounting
and treasury activities. Mr Ho is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 43, joined Chevalier Group in 1993.
He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr Ma has
extensive experience in the project management and is currently
in charge of the car dealerships, hotel investments and trading
business of the Group. He is also responsible to oversee the
Group’s human resources and general administration activities.
Mr Ma holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
University of Warwick, UK, a Bachelor Degree in International
Business Studies from City University of Hong Kong, a Corporate
Finance Certificate from UC Berkeley, USA, and a Professional
Certificate in China Construction from Tsinghua University, PRC.
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MISS LILY CHOW, aged 49, was appointed as Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company on 1
December 2011. She joined Chevalier Group in 1990 and is also a
director of a subsidiary company of the Group. She is responsible
for strategic planning and business development of the Group.
Miss Chow has resigned as an executive director of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited (renamed as Dingyi Group Investment
Limited), a public company listed on the Stock Exchange, on
27 October 2011. Miss Chow holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of British Columbia. Miss Chow is currently
a member of each of Harbourfront Commission of Development
Bureau, Small and Medium Enterprises Committee of Trade and
Industry Department and Transport Advisory Committee of the
Transport and Housing Bureau of the HKSAR Government. She is
also currently a member of the Ningbo Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference. Miss Chow is the
daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and
is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Executive Director of
the Company.

DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH o0.8.E, J.r., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 70, joined the Company in 2002. He is the Chairman of
Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an independent non-executive
director of Build King Holdings Limited, Road King Infrastructure
Limited and Harbour Centre Development Limited. He has over
40 years of experience in the planning, design and construction
of many major engineering projects in the U.K., Middle East,
Mainland China and Hong Kong. He is currently the Chairman
of the Construction Workers Registration Authority and Hon.
Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force.
He was previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board,
Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well
as a Member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hospital
Authority.
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MR SUN KAI DAH, GEORGE, Independent Non-Executive
Director, chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged
72, joined the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in
business management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited,
a company incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United States
NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive
Officer of Zindart Limited since 1998.

MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.B.s., J.p., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 53, joined the Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Cass Business School
London in 1983 and is currently a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company,
Practising firm of Accountants and member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales as well as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a director
of Phoenix U Radio Limited. His community duties include the
Chairman of Admission Budget and Allocations Committee and a
Director of the Community Chest, member of the Social Welfare
Advisory Committee and Lump Sum Grant Steering Committee
and an independent director of the Travel Industry Council of Hong
Kong. He is currently a member of Hubei Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr
Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004
and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government
in 2011.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM, Non-Executive Director, aged
66, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in the HKSAR
Government for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide
range of departments including the Water Supplies Department,
the Highways Department, the Civil Engineering and Development
Department and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as
the Director of Water Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service
in January 2007.
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Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE

REBZ ERYEFIIAT

) FHERE "BRYE

Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
ith 2 s BEEBEN g BAOFH AEEFEERS
sq. ft. F IR %
Hong Kong
BB
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise and carpark 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and PANENIFES FhHA
one-third interest in 201
car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
BEERME }\‘Jﬁ
3 i?ﬁ%%uﬂ%
7;773 j—llrH N
+jLi +J§
1E=9 —fm 2 (FEA201E
Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial 15,000 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, I% FhHA
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
FUBEERIBAK S T/ 50
TBETEPOAEM T
Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, I% FRHA
Fanling, New Territories
A AT LR LBE =R
HIBaKRE
Chevalier Engineering Service Centre, Industrial/Office premise 177,500 Medium 100
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T¥/MWRE FRER
hEEERGE %
HATIZRGH DO
124-130 Kwok Shui Road, Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories REERE A Ef
%ﬁ%%&% Bl 3m &
+Ej: "= 'f’Sﬁ
8 Kwai Hei Street, Cold storage warehouse 380,000 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories REAE R EA
FRZBEEM)\HR
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi Island, Industrial 253,500 Medium 875
New Territories I% FRHA
FABKEBTRE =TI
BE==5
9 Henderson Road Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
BE L EFERE BN = A HA
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
DL e o F=E K HA
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() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

) BHERE "BRYE

Approximate

(43
(A& )

gross The Group's
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
It B JZE=3 EHEBENEH* ZHNFEH AEEFEER
sq. ft. R %
The whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
5th Floors, Factory Units Nos. I FRER
2205and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 car parking spaces of
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre,
220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
MRZEELTHE
—H_tE_ARTR
EEIERL
- OEAERE -
—t-@=—ZaR
B ERFEASE
Singapore
Fhnsg
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 81,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T KAZERE
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road, Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 T% KA ZERE
Canada
Jill=N
43344340 Kingston Road, Ontario, Office and workshop for 20,200 Freehold 100
MIF 2M8 automobile dealership KA FERE
FRERSEEHE
MAERTS
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office and warkshop for 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario automobile dealership KA FERE
BERBEHE
MAERTE
838 Hamilton Street, Hotel 66,000 Freehold 90
Vancouver, B.C. iy KA ZFERE
USA
xH
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA T% /BE KAZFERE
3060 SE Stark Street, Portland, OR 97214 Senior Housing 143,000 _ Freehold 100
L E KAZFERE
14420 SW, Farmington Road, Beaverton, Senior Housing 35,000 _ Freehold 100
OR 97005 LERE KA ZERE
1665 NE 18th Street, Gresham, OR 97030 Senior Housing 33,000 _ Freehold 100
ZEE KAZFERE
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

FEYER

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Location

i B

Usage
AR

) FHERE "BRYHE)

Approximate
gross
floor area*
BEEEQH*
sq. ft. SR

Lease term

RHFH

The Group’'s
interest

REB S E?

Thailand
RHE

Chevalier House,
540 Bamrungmuang Road,
Debsirin Sub-district,
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis

Mainland China
R E At

355 Minquan Road, Xinyang City,
Henan Province

AmEEEMRER =L TR

Units 3-9 of 18th Floor,
Dongshan Plaza,
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province
BRE BN RS T IR
RLEST\EB=2h=E

Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road,
Xuhui District, Shanghai
PemRERZRE -8~ /UK
ThE

* Excluding car parking spaces
BB

Office premise and
. AShowroom
MAERRYE

remise

O
B =h
=
=)
@®
h=]

Residential, shop and
carpark

X% BHREES
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21,300 . Freghold
KAZERE

105,000 Medium
5

13,000 Medium
5

142,600 Long
K HA

100

70

100

80
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYER

(1) PROPERTIES FOR SALE

() FEW=

Approximate

+ Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement

buildings, preserved buildings and clubhouses
TEFEMTE  (FH5  RERE - BBREE -

REBFER G ZETE

29

gross The Group's
Location floor area* Lease term interest
3t E BEEENE* BOFH AEEFGER
sq. ft. FHR %
Hong Kong
&H
Beverly Garden — 2 shop units and 110 car parking spaces, 10,400 Medium 100
1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories FEf
S ERE RS R E RIER MR 2(E RIFER 101
Glorious Garden — 100 car parking spaces, - Medium 100
45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories A Ef
T PIREPI BN+ 1SR = EAEEF S A2 1001E
Mainland China
HE Rt
My Villa — 26 villas, 39 shop units and 61 residential units, 302,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing FRER
b RREEER R 2 B8 2618 - P EH39/E M E611E
* Excluding car parking spaces
TEEEERL
(1) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (IR
Estimated
gross floor
Stage of Expected date of Approximate area after  The Group's
Location completion  completion Major usage site area completion* interest
WS EREEE rEE
3 8 EE EEEIHH TEAR HEAOH EEQH Frib s
sq.ft. EHWR  soft SFHR %
Mainland China
REIR it
Shuangliu County, Chengdu In progress 2013 to 2016 Villa, residential and 1,250,000 1,810,000 49
B EBEE T 54 TRETH —ZT—=FF commercial
Luyuan District, Changchun In progress 2015 to 2027 Residential and 4,200,000 8,320,000 96
REZER TRETH —T-—RFFE commercial
T4 F Tk
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERERES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply
with the increasing stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill
its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out two levels
of corporate governance practices namely, mandatory code
provisions that a listed company must comply with or explain its
non-compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed
company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in
the case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the CG Code except for the non-
compliance of code provision A.4.1. All the Non-Executive Directors
are not appointed for a specific term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group's
overall objectives and strategies, monitors and evaluates its
operating and financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters
such as annual and interim results, notifiable transactions, director
appointments or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting
policies. Management profile of the Company as at the date of this
report is set out on pages 21 to 25.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The full Board met four times during the year under review. The
attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

BEgm

EEOHtANTES  —RIERTEERS
B MITESEN - EERFRLBGTT
MAgE SEFTESEeeRNEEZEES
SHMPEEMDT :

Meetings Attended/Held

BRHEBITRE
Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
55 EEg EREES FHEES

Executive Directors

HITEE

Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman)

BmEEL(FE)

Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
G S (BT /R E FARACTE)

Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

BRI S A (B E F AT )

Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar

B IE S

Mr Ho Chung Leung

ARBREAE

Mr Ma Chi Wing

Miss Lily Chow (appointed on 1 December 2011)
BFRFNA(R=ZE——FF—H—HEZF)

Non-Executive Directors

FHHITEE

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph?
JEIEARE S £

Mr Sun Kai Dah, George*

REE R &

Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles*
T {E s e A

Dr Ko Chan Gock, William
SEEEL

# Independent Non-Executive Director

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for that Dr Chow Yei Ching is
the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow;
while Miss Chow is a sister of Mr Chow.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules.

31

1/4 - -
4/4 - 1/1
4/4 - -
4/4 - ”n
4/4 - -
4/4 - -
" - -
3/4 2/2 11
2/4 2/2 1N
4/4 2/2 11
4/4 - -

tOEYIFITES

B B TR IS 5 B A IE S5 A R B ATA/ME 2 R
BEENMEREASE 2N REEGKEZ
FSEYT - X515 - BUBHEAMRRE -

ARREEE=RBIIFATESRIELTR
AIFESBRBEL 2 FEBIMHERAE EFE
a2 B - RAZRBIIFNITE
EONE LMRRIMER 2B -



CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4 M 5 BR 2 #

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERREE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
As the Company has not established a Nomination Committee
before 21 March 2012, the Board has involved in the appointment
of new Directors. The Board has taken into consideration criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering new director appointments. All candidates must
also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09
of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year are required to retire and submit themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting or general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third are required to retire from office by rotation and no
later than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election
or appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Executive Director was considered and confirmed
at a Board Meeting of the Company held on 28 November 2011.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The Chairman of the Company
is Dr Chow Yei Ching and the Managing Director is Mr Kuok
Hoi Sang. The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Managing Director. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the
functioning of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible
for managing the Group's businesses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have
been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the provisions set
out in the CG Code. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent
Non-Executive Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He
has extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. Other
members include all other Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah,
George. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment
of external auditors, review of the Group's financial information
and oversight of the Group's financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management frameworks. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
Its terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2012. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected
transactions (if any), the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2011 and last year's final results for the year ended 31
March 2011, and has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
auditing, internal controls, financial reporting matters and risk
management systems of the Group. The final results for the year
ended 31 March 2012 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in
its meeting held on 21 June 2012. The Audit Committee of the
Company regularly discusses with the management the system of
internal control to ensure an effective internal control system.

REMUNERATION CONMIMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March
2005 with written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee have been revised in March
2012 in compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman of the committee.
Other members of the committee include Messrs Yang Chuen
Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Its
terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange's
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2012 to review the remuneration packages paid
to Directors and senior management for the year ended 31 March
2012.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March 2012
with written terms of reference. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George is the
Chairman of the committee. Other members of the committee
include Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Messrs Yang Chuen
Liang, Charles, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive. The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to
consider, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. Its
terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange's
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com. No meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year ended 31 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee held its first meeting on 21 June 2012
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group's business to an Executive Committee
which was established in 1991. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee have been revised in March 2012 so as to
incorporate corporate governance functions as stipulated in the
CG Code. Members of the Executive Committee comprise seven
Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Chairman of the
committee, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing, Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung, Ma Chi Wing and Miss Lily Chow.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions. The Group's system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve its
business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group's
business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the
Chairman. It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the
Group's activities and internal controls. It also conducts special
audits of areas of concern identified by Management or the
Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-
based audit approach. All audit reports are circulated to the Audit
Committee and key management. The Internal Audit Department
is also responsible for following up the implementation of
recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department
without reference to the Chairman of the Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 46.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the fees paid/
payable to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

BEMZE

(E-E—F =A==+ —RHLEMBRFERN -
PSR B R B AR 2 A2 B H At IEAZ BAR T
B EEBemT

Nature of services

Amount (HK$'000)

RIS E SHECBET )
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 1,572
ZH AR PricewaterhouseCoopers
T EFOCGB R SHRN R TP S H (8 70 2 K B B BRSBTS PR
— other auditors 1,233
H Az R
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 6,202
IEZERT PricewaterhouseCoopers
% S RUKGB S STRD S TP S E (8 70 2 K B B BRAAR T O TSP
— other auditors 603

H iz BAm

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “"Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each
of the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the Model
Code throughout the year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to implementing corporate social
responsibility through its active participation in community and
charitable activities, with the aim to contribute to the society.

To support the development of community service, the Group
has made donation to many charity organizations and sponsored
a variety of charitable events in the past year, including relief
schemes for children in the Mainland China, “Cycle for Millions
2011", "Community Chest Corporate Challenge 2012" as well as
various projects organized by the Community Chest of Hong Kong.
Our efforts and contributions are recognized by conferment of the
honor — “Award of Distinction” by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong in 2012.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

The Group also organized the “Chevalier Blood Donation Day” to
help the people in need. To take a further step to contribute to the
society, a corporate volunteer team — “Chevalier Cares” — has been
established to actively serve different beneficiaries in the society,
including the elderly, the disabled, children and low income family.
Moreover, the team also gave support to the charity bazaar, and
provided assistance to poverty- and disaster-relief programs in the
Mainland China. The Group's contribution to and caring for the
society has been widely recognized and was conferred the award
of “Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service.

The Group has long demonstrated full support to promoting local
music and arts development. Through sponsoring local Chinese
orchestra, opera organization and Music for Our Youth Foundation,
the Group is dedicated to raise the standard of music and arts in
Hong Kong. With the ambition to nurture the young generation and
provide enriching learning opportunities for them, the Group has
supported various programs organized by universities, including the
University of Hong Kong, the University of Science and Technology
of Hong Kong, as well as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Being a pioneer in the environmental engineering industry, the
Group also shows its dedication and contribution to environmental
protection through participating in the “Take a Brake Low Carbon
Action — Corporate Green Driving Award Scheme"” organized by
Friends of the Earth.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS
The Group’s senior management maintains close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various
channels including individual interviews and meetings. The Group
also responds promptly to request for information and queries from
the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely
to the shareholders and the public through the publication of
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements.
The financial and other information relating to the Group are
disclosed on the Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com.
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are shown on pages 154 to 162.

The Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2012 analysed by operating segments are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 48. An interim
dividend of HK$0.20 per share was paid on Tuesday, 20 December
2011. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.35 per share and a special dividend of HK$0.40
per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") to be held on Friday,
7 September 2012, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 4 September 2012 to Friday, 7 September
2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 September 2012.

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and special
dividends is Wednesday, 19 September 2012. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends (subject
to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 17 September 2012 to Wednesday,
19 September 2012, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final and special dividends, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
14 September 2012.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$975,930,000 (2011:
HK$972,602,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2012 are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown
on pages 2 to 3 and on pages 14 to 20 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers respectively were
less than 30%. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has any interest in
the Group's five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2012
are set out on pages 26 to 29.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
The Group employed approximately 2,700 full-time staff under
its subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2012. Total staff costs
amounted to HK$736 million for the year ended 31 March 2012.
The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on
the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance
and individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses
awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement
schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$4,963,000 to
charitable bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws although there are no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of
the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW (appointed on 1 December 2011)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph#
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles*
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

# Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr CHOW Ming Kuen,
Joseph, Mr TAM Kwok Wing, Dr KO Chan Gock, William and Miss
Lily CHOW shall retire from office at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive
Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements as the
Executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

Interests in the Company - Shares

EENENRzER

KA RS F E AR R A 2 7] sk B AT P
BRARYEBRIINEETHEAEAER LA
Y e

EERHBEURT 2ES

FEAN  HEEFENKENEMEBREFZ
ES R SRERO:

EEREFETHARBZRSER

RZE—ZF=A=+—H8 ' ARAESEKE
EITBRABRARRIRERH AR (EERLE
F R EE ARG ([ FH R BEERD ) EXVER) 2
B - ARG RESFP A RIEESFR
HEIEBIEXVERE 7 B8N TG AN 7 Bt
Rz = RkEE (RREARRERRE il
FTHMEEROINEX Y AR IEER 2
MEE) AW AVDRERBEESRTE
EOIE32EREATFEZ ELMA xS
REE - REBERESFRIAEME RN KRR
FrrmhEamT

RRE)ER - KRG

Number of ordinary shares

EERROEE

Approximate

percentage

Name of Directors Capacity Personal interests Family interests Total of interest

EEEB 37 BARERE Rk my R

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 166,388,359* - 166,388,359 59.95
JEN TR BEmEAA

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 - 98,216 0.04
e BB A

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
EETES BEamlEBA

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
fal sRAR BEmEAA

*  Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 166,388,359 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 59.95% of the issued share capital
of the Company. These shares were same as those shares disclosed in the
section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Scheme” below,
as at 31 March 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 20 September
2002. The Scheme fully complied with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. During the year, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. There was no outstanding
option under the Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the
year.

Particulars of the share option scheme is set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or
subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the "ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the "MPF Schemes”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. For members of the MPF Schemes, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee, at a
maximum of HK$1,000 per month, to the mandatory contribution
of the MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes
in countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group
is required to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a
certain percentage or sum of the monthly payroll.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year amounted
to HK$27.6 million against which the forfeited contributions
amounting to HK$154,000 have been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BIREFTEI(E)
AEENSENEBCLER Y ARSE Y
BERKSITE - AEBAERMTHE - &8
DEAFM EFTES LB -

REEFERNEZSTHE A AGARERZ
48 TR R 27 600,0007T © EFENBRZE
SR UG 3 A 5154,0007T °

BARSFTEFBRNERE M5 RAM 46 -

FTERRzEZER

RZE——F=ZA=+—H ' RARIEEN
FETHRABRA » T ALTIEERAAQF
D kAR BERR (D P TR ZBIRIEE S R E K
BIEXVEL 2 3D FREESC R AR RIHEE - &
AR N AR BIRIEEH L HE 5055336 1&
Bz MAZERZRERNT ¢

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial shareholders Capacity shares held of interest

FERR 54 BROBE ERH

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 166,388,359 59.95
JE TR 9D BEmlEAA

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 166,388,359* 59.95
BIIEETF EmEA A

* Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 166,388,359 shares held by
Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other
person has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except for the share option scheme adopted by the Company, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2012, with deviations from code
provision A.4.1 which has already been stated in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 30 to 37 of the
Annual Report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
Directors’ biographical details since the date of the Company's
Interim Report 2011-2012 are set out as follows:

(@) Dr CHOW Yei Ching has retired by rotation as an independent
non-executive director of Towngas China Company Limited
("TCCL") with effect from 4 June 2012; and

(b) Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of TCCL with effect from 4 June 2012.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of Directors’
biographical details required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage
of the Company's share which is in the hands of the public exceeds
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares as at 28 June
2012, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior
to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 162, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B4 M A BR 2 A

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T-——F=A=+—-RHIFE

2012 2011
—E-—f =5
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiaE BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 3,849,780 3,491,181
Cost of sales SHE AR AN (2,912,902) (2,858,169)
Gross profit ES 936,878 633,012
Other income, net EMUA - 58 6 53,235 31,603
Other gains, net Hipzs - 558 7 389,830 337,889
Selling and distribution costs SHE AR GH AR R (482,957) (388,506)
Administrative expenses THZE (179,471) (140,998)
Operating profit gl 717,515 473,000
Share of results of associates G B2 N\ R A 94,478 106,027
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FriG R G A (62,033) (13,264)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EBE AR 2 WE 48(e) 44,333 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and their HEMTE A R R EABRE 2
related jointly controlled entities R HI{ 2 Wk 8 = 377,701
794,293 943,464
Finance income pc S ON 9 8,528 14,225
Finance costs BB 9 (31,705) (13,692)
Finance (costs)/income, net M(BA) WA - F5E 9 (23.177) 533
Profit before taxation R 5 A A A 10 771,116 943,997
Income tax expenses FrSfi it 11 (67,267) (58,292)
Profit for the year FEERN 703,849 885,705
Attributable to: PERTS :
Equity holders of the Company RRATEIREREB A 657,897 797,972
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R 45,952 87,733
703,849 885,705
Earnings per share SRAER
— basic (HK$ per share) —ER(BRAEE) 12 2.37 2.87
— diluted (HKS per share) —#E (OB 12 237 287
Dividends BRE 13 263,686 319,198

The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

48

E57TAE1628 2 T It FERE B mE AR -



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 / 4k 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

mEZHEBER

HE-Z——F=A=1+—HILFE
2012 2011
—EB-C—fF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year FEERA 703,849 885,705
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEME llﬁﬁ
Exchange difference on translation of operations of BEEINB AR - BERAE K
overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled FHRE %'Ji%Z%ﬁ%ﬁﬁF e
entities 9|\/EEJ?@§§E\ 75,701 140,095
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments, AHHE 2 REN DA EES) -
net it 64 (948)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AHHE 7 RENREREERE
transferred to consolidated income statement trRE KR 765 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments ﬁ%—Jﬁéﬁ’%Z&é{E’]H&Z LS
transferred to consolidated income statement ZAEWZER (8,669) -
Exchange difference released upon disposal of & — [ AR ATEIR 2 INE
an associate )‘?ﬁﬁ‘ ZH 1,492 -
Gain on Share Exchange (note 48(b)(iv)) {819 223 2 Wz (P s 48(b)iv)) - 2437
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEHMEERE - BREE 69,353 141,584
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZAEKRRARE 773,202 1,027,289
Attributable to: R
Equity holders of the Company RARRERBA 720,910 933,014
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR i R 52,292 94,275
773,202 1,027,289
Note: MisE

[tems shown within other comprehensive income have no tax effect.

The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F57HZ1628

statements.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B4 M A BR 2 A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2012
RZE—ZF=A=+—H

e BB R

2012 2011
—E-—f =5
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mozt BT T BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties wEWE 15 2,679,689 1,718,530
Property, plant and equipment W - B M RE 16 1,329,292 814,215
Prepaid lease payments TENRERIE 17 345 3,564
Goodwill FEES 18 129,696 126,994
Other intangible assets HEmERLERE 19 33,643 51,506
Interests in associates Pkl NI ek 21 929,028 624,002
Interests in jointly controlled entities P RS % 2 fE s 22 675,133 507,157
Available-for-sale investments AMEHEZIRE 23 230,099 238,085
Properties under development BRERAYE 24 803,067 690,878
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE = 38 13,472 12,378
Other non-current assets HiEmEBEE 25 83,485 186,266
6,906,949 4,973,575
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from associates FEURES N BINRER 21 32,163 137,836
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities FE U AL R4z | 1 FE MR X 22 557,286 216,897
Available-for-sale investments AMHEZRE 23 8,109 -
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BARELABEERIE IRE 26 292,759 361,388
Inventories 78 27 176,279 176,656
Properties for sale HEME 28 110,512 132,682
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EURR - FRRe RBARE 29 1,322,995 1,030,210
Amounts due from customers for contract work MEHNTREERTPWELZFIE 30 103,317 56,055
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 31 43,288 29,087
Prepaid tax FERFIIE 3,235 4,583
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRES 32 1,035,209 1,476,407
3,685,152 3,621,801
Current liabilities REAEE
Amounts due to associates FETEE N RINRER 21 = 293
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE A FEHE S e 25 1R 3K 6,143 4,699
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests FEI IR R IR B 5,529 -
Amounts due to customers for contract work MEYNITRREREPL N z70E 30 622,607 613,503
Derivative financial instruments TTABIE T A 31 46,869 19,472
Creditors, bills payable, deposits FERIRR - BRNERE - FA
and accruals Be RERER 33 966,772 897,409
Unearned insurance premiums and IEERIRE KA BHARR
unexpired risk reserves EE 117,678 61,438
Outstanding insurance claims RARBEE 34 202,837 153,918
Deferred income RIEUTA 20,846 18,439
Current income tax liabilities EHEHRAaRE 33,467 63,330
Bank borrowings RITER 35 1,559,426 371,740
3,582,174 2,204,241
Net current assets REBEEFE 102,978 1,417,560
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 7,009,927 6,391,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R
As at 31 March 2012
RZE——F=A=+—H
2012 2011
—B-=F T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(g BT T BT
Capital and reserves BRAER G
Share capital A& A 36 346,955 346,955
Reserves fwE 37 4,646,770 4,132,610
Shareholders’ funds BRES 4,993,725 4,479,565
Non-controlling interests IEE SRR 323,845 399,833
Total equity HRER 5,317,570 4,879,398
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests FEAT IEIE AR REZSAR B - 8,925
Unearned insurance premiums R R B 104,628 52,189
Bank borrowings RITRER 35 1,420,845 1,298,725
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIA A E 38 166,884 151,898
1,692,357 1,511,737
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZRERBERE 7,009,927 6,391,135

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2012 and signed on its KEEGN_T—_F A=+ N\BH#E  LAHT

behalf by: JIEEREREE

KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

EE B#ILE

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F57H 21628 2Kt itk EER A P BIRER 2 48 E D ©
statements.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B4 M A BR 2 A

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NGRS WS

As at 31 March 2012
RZE—ZF=A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——4F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BsE BET T BET T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries F{LM B AR 2 s 20 2,986,148 2,360,279
Interests in associates [Pkl N k- 21 89,594 119,732
Other intangible assets Efmp & 599 599
Available-for-sale investments AHEZIRE 23 225,460 232,680
Other non-current assets HiEmEBEE 25 - 3,895
3,301,801 2,717,185

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries P B A RIMR 3K 20 1,985,227 1,113,709
Amounts due from associates U B N BIR FR 21 - 10,815
Available-for-sale investments AIEHEZRE 23 8,109 -
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BAREIABREEZRE 26 51,044 106,586
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUURR - FRRe RBARE 29 1,745 23,663
Derivative financial instruments PTEMET A 31 202 1,607
Bank balances and cash RITHEERES 32 325,406 737,479
2,371,733 1,993,859
Current liabilities REBEE

Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BT B A RIR X 20 2,636,112 1,777,390
Amount due to an associate JEAST—FHE & R BIIR X 21 5,795 -
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMB T A 31 21,715 19,250
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRR - FAKR e RBIRER 33 7,044 5,025
Bank borrowings RITER 35 1,002,000 102,000
3,672,666 1,903,665
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(aE)  EEFE (1,300,933) 90,194
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 2,000,868 2,807,379

Capital and reserves B fEE
Share capital A% AN 36 346,955 346,955
Reserves & 37 1,438,913 1,443,424
Total equity iR 1,785,868 1,790,379

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEN 35 215,000 1,017,000
Total equity and non-current liabilities BESRERBDERE 2,000,868 2,807,379

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2012 and signed on its

behalf by:

KUOK Hoi Sang
SBEE
Director

EE

The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-Z——F=A=+-RIFE

mERBEHR

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of Non-controlling Total
the Company interests Equity
ZIN/NE g
BAEA FEFERR
eI R iy B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2010 W_E—ZTFMA—H 3,848,429 376,187 4,224,616
Profit for the year FEm A 797,972 87,733 885,705
Exchange difference on translation of operations of ~ #AEGINFEB A 7] - BN a]
overseas subsidiaries, associates and K AL R DR 7 2
jointly controlled entities FREAZINERBRZERE 134,670 5425 140,095
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEZREN DR EZS -
investments, net F 8 (948) - (948)
Gain on Share Exchange (note 48(b)(iv)) B 224 2 Wz (B 3E48(b)(v)) 1,320 1,117 2437
Total comprehensive income for the year FELHW=LE 933,014 94,275 1,027,289
Dividends paid BRE (319,198) - (319,198)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B FIHERERA S - (162,305) (162,305)
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary — & TR B A R T B AR A
— consultancy services received — B EEGEARE 3476 2,944 6,420
Placement of shares of a listed subsidiary fo&E—R EmE QR Z KD
(note 37(b)) (BI3E37(0)) - 39,494 39,494
Non-controlling interests recognised on FAARD M FE R 7 SR IR R 2
Share Exchange (note 48(b)(iv)) (Bf$ 5 48(b)(iv)) - 31,830 31,830
Acquisition of subsidiaries L BT BB 2 )
(note 48(b)(iv)) (B4 7E48(b)(iv)) - 17,408 17,408
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QR
(notes 48(c|(ii) and 48(d)) (B 548 c)(ii) K2.48(d)) (7,896) - (7,896)
Gain on partial disposal of interest in HEME—ELETWBRARZ
a listed subsidiary (note 37(b)) B e m MU ES (BT RE37(b) 21,740 - 21,740
At 31 March 2011 RZZE——F=A=+—H 4,479,565 399,833 4,879,398
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T-——F=A=+—-RHIFE

RERBEEER

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of Non-controlling Total
the Company interests Equity
ANTIRAE
BEA FEZRR
FEfhfEs fE= B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2011 R-—ZT——&mMA—H 4,479,565 399,833 4,879,398
Profit for the year FE A 657,897 45,952 703,849
Exchange difference on translation of Tﬁ%i,iﬁa\\ MEBAR  BE N T
operations of overseas subsidiaries, HEEGITE 2 ¥
associates and jointly controlled entities Fﬁ ? EZINERMERE 69,361 6,340 75,701
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEZIRENAREZD -
investments, net FE 64 - 64
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEZIRER
investments transferred to )ﬂiﬁﬁiﬂé ERE
consolidated income statement LAWK 765 - 765
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERREEY
investments transferred to Txéiﬁ’ﬂﬂl SRR
consolidated income statement mrealEk (8,669) - (8,669)
Exchange difference released upon HE— M E N a FTEIR 2
disposal of an associate (note 48(e)) HINIE M= 28 (M1 5T48(e) 1,492 - 1,492
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEWEEE 720,910 52,292 773,202
Dividends paid ERRE (208,173) = (208,173)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Eﬁ?’?ﬁ It - (57,511) (57,511)
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary —fE ETHEBA T& %E\%H%fé
— consultancy services received — B EEGE AR 3,009 2,549 5,558
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries WHEMT B A B 2 FEIMER
— Sharp Rise (note 48(c)(i)) — R FH B E48(c)i) - (77,004) (77,004)
— other subsidiaries —EfE AR (1,254) 204 (1,050)
Disposal of a listed subsidiary HE—B LEHHEAR
(note 48(c)(i)) (B 5E48(c)li)) (332) 3,482 3,150
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 4,993,725 323,845 5,317,570
The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FEE7EE1628 2 Wik It SR A MRz 2 EmRE D -

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-Z——F=A=+-RIFE

RERTRER

2012 2011
—B—C=F —E——%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT T
Operating activities RExEE
Cash generated from/(used in) operation Ry, (BR)EBE2IHE 48(a) 226,524 (109,086)
Interest paid 2AHF B (46,429) (22,127)
Profits tax paid [RES RIS ST (89,796) (40,940)
Profits tax refund BUFIETRIR K 1,265 6,591
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities RE(AR)EEERCRLFE 91,564 (165,562)
Investing activities REER
Interest received S e)=N 8,528 14,225
Dividends received from associates EH&ZH@‘%%’A ALZIRE 60,300 45,441
Dividends received from listed securities B ETEHF RS 22,147 27,650
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEMEE (74,252) (27.716)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BREMEEREN
equipment and prepaid lease payments HERBE 2 FTERIE 32,998 6.319
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEMS ?AIE - 7,026
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from WENTEEZHE(RE)/
acquisition of MAEEE
—a company owning a property in — BN B2 —1A
Kwai Chung MK —HRF] 48(b)i) (573,460) (102,525)
—a group of companies owning a property in —EENREREZ I8
Tsing Yi Island MER— 48(b)(ii) (286,481) -
— senior housing business — L ERE 48(b)(iii) (266,466) -
— Metro Point —Metro Point 48(b)(iv) - 35,643
— other subsidiaries —Huk B AR (1,050) -
Net cash inflow from disposal of HENTRBE R RAFRE
—CPHL —HE+Z50 48(c)(i) 72,700 -
—80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group —Pacific Coffee 52,2 80% 4z 48(c)lii) - 296,966
— Citiway Group —HEEE 48(d)(i) = 267,113
— Smartco Group —Smartco £ 48(d)(ii) 59,544 463,635
— remaining 25% interest in Sekisui SPR — Sekisui SPRER T~25% 125 48(e) 48,383 -
Purchase of other intangible assets BAEMERLEE (500) (584)
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMEEEEY
other intangible assets Fr{SEIR 48 99
Advances to associates AEE N RIPEZ B (134,021) (114,417
Repayments from associates REHE AT 2 EERIE 5,999 20,358
Advances to jointly controlled entities A EE %HLtééFﬁfF;ZE§aA (538,875) (115,584
Repayments from jointly controlled entities e RGN (EBRERE - 36,105
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHEEZIRE (22,315) (32,859)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEHRBEEZIRER
investments FriS5R18 11,859 6,853
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (FAR),/ REREBEB RS EEE (1,574,914) 833,748
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before BEEKA RS (RE) FA
financing activities FE (1,483,350) 668,186
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-Z——-F=A=1+—HILFE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BoaE BT T BT T
Financing activities BhE XK
Dividends paid [SEREEC (208,173) (319,198)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BN T IR ERRE (52,511) (162,305)
Draw down of bank borrowings BRI TER 1,925,264 1,154,422
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIRITER (620,982) (703,536)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits B IRF (G hn) /s > (50,190) 3,349
Net proceeds from placement of shares [l M1 SMNCT i g )
of a listed subsidiary FriSsRIBF 58 = 61,234
Net cash from financing activities REARMELK 2 EHEEE 988,408 33,966
(Decrease)/increase in cash and REeRRLEEWORD),
cash equivalents #4n (494,942) 702,152
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REDNZRER
of the year HeEEY 1,473,968 761,943
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ERSEIE 3,554 9,873
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZRERRESEEY 982,580 1,473,968
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBLEEY
cash equivalents RO
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERRS 1,035,209 1,476,407
Less: Pledged deposits B BERIRTFER (52,629) (2,439)
982,580 1,473,968

The notes on pages 57 to 162 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,
HM12, Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

At 31 March 2012, the Company’s current liabilities exceed
its current assets by HK$1,300,933,000 mainly as the bank
borrowings of HK$1,002,000,000 fall due within twelve months
of the reporting date. The directors of the Company (“the
Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going
concern and consequently prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. Subsequent to year end, the Company
accepted an offer of a HK$1,500,000,000 three years club loan
from banks in May 2012 (note 49).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations
to existing standards that are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 April 2011

The following revised standard, amendments and
interpretation to existing standard relevant to the Group's
operation are mandatory for financial year of the Group
beginning on 1 April 2011:

HKAS 24 (revised) Related party disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
(amendment) requirement
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments
Improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2010

Annual Improvement
Projects

The adoption of these revised standard, amendments
and interpretation does not have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group's accounting policies and
the presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The following new or revised standards and amendments
to existing standards relevant to the Group's operation
have been issued but not yet effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2011 and have not been early
adopted:

HKAS 1 (amendment) Presentation of items of comprehensive

income
HKAS 19(2011) Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and joint ventures

HKAS 32 (amendment) Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets;
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

HKFRS 7 (amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurements

Annual Improvement Improvements to HKFRS published in
Projects June 2012

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to
state whether there will be any substantial changes to the
Group's significant accounting policies and presentation of
financial information.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2012 / 4k 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation

2 EXEFEESEm®
(b) RS IR E ER

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the entity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration agreement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at the fair values at the
acquisition date. There is a choice, on the basis of each
acquisition to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any
previous entity interest in the acquiree at the date of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides ensure of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests is the equity in a subsidiary which
is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. The
Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group, instead of
transactions with parties not within the Group. For purchases
of additional interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling
shareholders, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals of partial interests to non-controlling shareholders
are also recorded in equity.

In the Company's statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BB AR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

2 ERETBRBE®
(c) WEBELZME I#

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate
or a jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree at the acquisitions date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisitions-by-acquisitions basis, either at the fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportional share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is included in the cost of the investment of the
relevant associate or jointly controlled entity.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill
might be impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates
and jointly controlled entities is included in investments in
respective associates and jointly controlled entities and is
tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For
the purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwvill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwvill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of
the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and
is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date
of the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities
can be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued) . .
(d) Interests in associates

(e)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of
changes in other comprehensive income of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent
that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is
recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates is stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. The results of associates are accounted for on the basis
of dividend received and receivable during the year.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
venture arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled
assets, the Group's share of the jointly controlled assets and
share of any liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements and
classified according to their natures. Liabilities and expenses
incurred directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled
assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group's share of the output
of the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any
expenses incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/
from the Group.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

Jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Joint ventures (continued)

(f)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity
of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the relevant jointly controlled
entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged or, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in income statement.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into either
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
each category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each reporting period end date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors and receivables, amounts due from
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset's
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, loans and receivables
represent amounts due from associates and jointly
controlled entities, debtors and receivables, bank balances
and amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income
statement in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition. An
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

63

2 ERETBRBE®
(f) BBITAGE

(i)

MBEE(E)

ESREW SR

SRR MR IE 50 3R A BR T 45 Tt
B M M A [E] 7€ 3 AT B8 FE 15 2 SEDT A
MBHEE - RERABRARERERR
B - Bk UG R (B FE FE MR K
R - R AR - B RE
R SRR RN IRTTAE TR ) Th iR
REBRRRTEIRBHKATIR - I
B 2 RAIRERE - S8 E
REENLBRE - BABEBBESNK
BRER > WIREERAERIZRE
BRAIRBLR 2 B R KBRS RE 2R
BERZZ8HE - WEEARE SR
ZIRMRREE BB IS 1Y MR R ER
PrEdd 2 =4 0 AURERIEE RN IAR
MO - REREE B 2 EER
TE B 7T~ 15 768 308 00 8 Tt 2 0 (L P 22 TR 2K

NR-_E——FERK T ——F=A
=+—H ' EFRXEWGRIEERE U
BNR R ARSI ERIE - EUIIR
AU ERTE ~ SRITETF A KB
NAINBAFIRSK ©

AR & B E

AfHET BBEE/PIETURE
0 /A L XEM AR ZIFTAET
H - RBERBERESWMER - A
HEZMBEERRIAETH - BA
BZEPIREMEmPEANRER B
EZMBEERDEIORTES AR
B EFRBENMER AR Z 25K
2B EEEEMEERESIR - I
Rz R AR - AIHE 2 M E
B Z AR E R BN am R AR -
AR 7 BRI B R B B 18 T
ERARHEEBRER IR - ERN
AHHEZEERE  WEREZAA
BB RE R B I Y MR RBE
‘AL ZEMN - AIEERERBER
SRR @ -

ZEWEEBTISRELEDAER
EASEFEZAHRBEZBARE
RERHERE 2 & ME HRRKAE
AR 2 B AR ERIETIR o B
EBEEREEE  AUREEERK
mRER - BEBBBRIZEERT
BRIZAUNEEE 2 RITH SRR
KR 2B ARESRERERZ
ZHAE o  FRARBEEBBERE TSR
& B E R -



CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B 4% M 5 BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BB AR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are
classified into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition.
At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in the income statement in the
period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
outstanding insurance claims, creditors and payables,
dividend payable to non-controlling interests, amounts due
to non-controlling interests, amounts due to associates and
amounts due to subsidiaries are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk.
Such derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair values of such derivatives are recognised directly in the
income statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed
as held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related
to those of the host contracts, and the combined contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In
all other circumstances, derivatives embedded are not
separated and are accounted for together with the host
contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. \Where
the Group needs to separate an embedded derivative but
is unable to measure the embedded derivative, the entire
combined contracts are treated as designated at fair value
though profit or loss on initial recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair value of
the derivatives (excluding the interest component) are
recognised in other income, net. The interest component
is reported as part of interest income from investments
included in revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Investment properties

(h

~

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases is classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of investment property
is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it was a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by
professional valuation conducted as at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount
of the asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement
as part of the other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity
as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under HKAS
16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Leasehold
land classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for
its intended use. Depreciation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Building Over the shorter of 20 to
50 years or the remaining

lease term

Leasehold land classified Over the remaining
as finance lease lease term
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
lease term

Machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, office 10% - 33'/:%
equipment and motor vehicles

Others 10% - 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BB AR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(j)

(k)

U

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their expected useful lives on the
same basis as owned assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statement.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments classified as operating leases
represent upfront premiums paid for land cost. Prepaid lease
payments are charged to income statement over the term of
relevant land leases on a straight-line basis. The amortisation
during the period before the commencement and after the
completion of the construction of the properties (except for
investment properties) is expensed in the income statement.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development comprise prepaid lease
payments, development expenditure and borrowing costs
capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net
realisable value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less costs to complete development and selling
expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary course of
business less applicable selling expenses.

(m) Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments
and buildings held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of properties for sale comprises
prepaid lease payments and related development costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period, as measured by the proportion that the
value of work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred. When it is probable that contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as an amount due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the statement of financial position, as
a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the statement of
financial position under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a
separate current liability in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BB AR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued) . . .
(q) Provisions and contingencies (continued)

(s)

(t)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. WWhen a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,
an asset is recognised.

Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired
risk reserves

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated
portions of the premiums written which relate to periods of
insurance subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
are deferred to subsequent accounting periods. Unearned
premiums are computed on the basis of net premiums written
for all classes of insurance. Net premium written represents
gross premiums received or receivable after deducting
reinsurance premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected
value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired
periods of policies in force which, at the end of the reporting
period, exceeds the unearned premiums provision in relation to
such policies.

Insurance claims

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims
reported but not yet paid as at the end of the reporting period
and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR")
which is calculated with reference to foreseeable events, past
experiences and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and
reported. Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and
expenses paid during the year and the change in the reserve for
outstanding claims during the year. Reserves for outstanding
claims are reported on an undiscounted basis which include
reserves for reported claims and reserves for IBNR claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The
reserve of a reported claim is made by the claims handler
based on his experience and based on the information,
documents and the claim amount submitted by the claimant
and is checked by the officer before updating the information
into the claims system. The reserve is reviewed and revised
regularly to reflect the development of the claim and the
change of the market practice.

Reserves for outstanding claims represent estimated liabilities
relating to claims reported and IBNR at the end of the reporting
period after deducting amounts recoverable from reinsurers.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(u) Revenue recognition

(v)

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured with reference to the value of
work carried out during the period. When the outcome of a
contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution
of a binding sales agreement or the completion of properties,
whichever is later.

Income from sale of goods such as information technology
equipment, motor vehicles and food and beverages are
recognised when goods are delivered and title to the goods has
passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived at after deduction
of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services such as provision of
maintenance and property management services, warehouse
and logistics services, hotel operations and senior housing
operations are recognised at the time when services are
rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are
accounted for as deferred income.

Gross premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as
income when an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant
debit note is issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, with reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to its net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEASTHEME®
(continued)

(v) Leases (continued) (v) HE(®)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an obligation
under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
income statement, unless they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs as stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivables as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

(w) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans
Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are
charged as an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited
contributions.

(iv) Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of share options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted at the date of grant, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable

transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests
in associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are
determined based on the presumption that the carrying amount
of such investment properties will be recovered through sale
with the corresponding tax rate applied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEASTHEME®
(continued)

(z) Foreign currencies (z) opi

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value has
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation, which are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that gain
or loss are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the
exchange fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange differences so arising are
recognised in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

(aa) Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and
current assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position except deferred tax assets, prepaid tax,
unallocated bank balances and cash, and other unallocated
assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position except current income tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
liabilities.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments, debtors and receivables, creditors
and payables, outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/
to related companies, amounts due to non-controlling interests,
dividend payable to non-controlling interests, bank balances and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises from investments
in debt securities, derivative financial instruments,
bills payable, bank borrowings and floating and
fixed rate bank deposits. Majority of the Group's
bank borrowings carry interest at floating rate and
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
management monitors interest rate exposure and
hedges significant interest rate exposure by using
financial instruments such as interest rate swap.
However, these instruments are not qualified for
hedge accounting.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by one percentage point
and all other variables were held constant, the post-
tax profit of the Group and the Company excluding
impact of fair value changes of investments in debt
securities and derivative financial instruments would
decrease/increase by HK$14,609,000 (2011: increase/
decrease by HK$396,000) and decrease/increase by
HK$6,908,000 (2011: HK$1,969,000), respectively
resulting mainly from the change in the borrowing
costs of bank borrowings and finance income of bank
deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BIEEREEEERKE @)

POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BREREZE(E)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various currency
exposures. Foreign currency risk arises when
the Group's recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies that are not the entities’
functional currency.

The Group's financial assets that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts
and equity securities, accounts receivable balances
arising from sales made to overseas customers, bank
balances and cash and amounts due from group
companies (on entity level). The Group's financial
liabilities that are exposed to foreign currency risk
mainly arise from overseas purchases and amounts
due to group companies (on entity level). It is the
Group's policies to ensure that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management will
continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will consider economically hedging significant foreign
currency exposure by using financial instruments
such as foreign currency forward contracts should the
needs arise.

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other
than the functional currencies of the Group's entities)
that are exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly
denominated in Canadian dollar, Macau Pataca,
Renminbi, Singapore dollar and United States dollar
("US dollar”). The carrying amounts of the Group's

(a) MmERR(E)
(i) SNERK
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(on entity level) and the Company'’s foreign currency RIBEFZIREEDT -
denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8fE
The Group AEE 2012 2011 2012 2011
—g—=f -T 4% =B-=F —T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BET T BT T
Australian dollar SBRIT 3,894 28,083 (533) -
Canadian dollar neExT 222,13 228,104 = -
Euro [&) 78 21,818 28,710 (59,318) (299)
Hong Kong dollar ot 20,020 48,057 - -
Japanese Yen = 68,891 35912 (184) (25)
Macau Pataca SR 5170 3,337 (265,532) (229,440)
Renminbi AR 293,438 230,890 - -
Singapore dollar T 188,212 4,652 - -
US dollar ES 562,448 579,836 (132) (18)
Others Hi 22,068 17,709 (2) (32)
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GANBRAND
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BEREEEEREE®)
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIERBEZEE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WEZEAK(E)
(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) MERBE ()
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
The Company b N 2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —EF——F B--f —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BET T BT
Canadian dollar mEXT 222,413 228,104 = -
Euro B ZE 17,51 28,710 (59,318) (299)
Macau Pataca JRPTHE - - (265,532) (229,440)
Renminbi AR 289,117 197,360 - -
Singapore dollar o 188,209 - - -
US dollar eSS 262,516 275,376 (124) -
Others Hih 25,536 21,566 (535) (13)
The following table details the Group's and the TRFEVNAEE RARE 2 AR
Company'’s sensitivity to every percentage point SEMEDGEEEEN EINEZ
increase and decrease in the functional currency of B ROR > —EE D82 B
corresponding group entity against the above foreign B MBRESWIABERFERD
currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only N RSB 2 BEIHEIER - I
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary ERFRIZEXRSEN—FEE D
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for o ME TR - LT IEH#E
every percentage point increase in foreign currency T ESNE HIR B R E Y
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase Mg EBERAE—Ea 2B
in profit/investment revaluation reserve where the RERF B EHEER T
above foreign currency strengthens every percentage N o
point against the functional currency of corresponding
group entity.
The Group REH 2012 2011
—E-—F —T—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Increase in profit S A1 0 7,051 6,172
Increase in investment revaluation reserve A& BN 2,382 2,364
The Company ¥ /N 2012 201
—F-=F i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Increase in profit Y F)EE AN 3,726 2,425
Increase in investment revaluation reserve B EEREEEIEN 2,336 2,310
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BRREREEERBEK®)
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

3.1 BRBEERE)
(a) WiEER(E)

(i) Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity
securities price risk because investments held by
the Group and the Company are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
Company's statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale investments or investments at fair
value through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables held constant:

— the post-tax profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,123,000 (2011: HK$1,448,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss;

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Company had been increased/decreased by
one percentage point and all other variables held
constant:

— the post-tax profit of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2012 would increase/decrease
by HK$124,000 (2011: HK$596,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of debtors and receivables,
amounts due from related companies, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or
loss, derivative financial instruments and bank balances.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts
owed. Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may
also have an impact on management’s cash flow forecasts
and assessment of the impairment of receivables. To
the extent that information is available, management has
properly reflected revised estimates of expected future
cash flows in their impairment assessments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average
credit period granted to trade debtors was 60 days. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies are continuously monitored
by assessing the credit quality of the counterparties, taking
into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2012,
the amounts due from related companies have no history
of default.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments and debt securities, interest
receivables and bank balances are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by
its counterparties through monitoring their credit rating
and setting approved counterparty credit limits that are
regularly reviewed. The Group does not expect any
significant counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are
set for individual counterparties and periodic reviews are
conducted to ensure that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has
obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general
credit facilities from banks for working capital purposes.

The Group's liquidity position and compliance with loan
covenants are monitored closely by the management
of the Company. The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities at the reporting date. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
or the Company respectively can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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mEMBmRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MEEREEEEREE @

POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3.1 BRBEERE)
(c) E€FBRAKRE)

The Group
F5H

Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years  cashflows
AERESE
PR-F —E= “ERf  HBEE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr BTz B¥Tx AB¥Tm  B%Tr
012 —B-=f
Bank borrowings RITIER 1,592,994 859,243 507,146 150,621 3,110,004
Outstanding insurance claims RARBEE 202,837 = = = 202,837
Creditors and payables JE RN N BN 50E 688,062 - - - 688,062
Dividend payable to non-controlling FES IR
interests [ds 5,529 - - - 5,529
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE(FEEE AR IE RS IR 2% 6,143 - - - 6,143
Derivative financial instruments TEFBIA
(et settled) (F#E) 5,455 459 - - 5914
Derivative financial instruments TR TA
(gross settled) (BRERE)
- outflow —iRi 38,659 2232 - - 40,891
—inflow —mA (32,158) (1,268) - - (33,426)
2011 —T——F
Bank borrowings BITER 385,994 1,126,872 190,509 6,446 1,709,821
Outstanding insurance claims FARBERE 153918 - - - 153918
Creditors and payables JE RN N BN A 653,936 - - - 653,936
Dividend payable to non-controlling FES IR
interests s - 9,600 - - 9,600
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  E{T FEIERARFE R X 4,699 - - - 4,699
Amounts due to associates JERTEE R BIIRER 293 - - - 293
Derivative financial instruments TESBIA
(net settled) (%) 3,139 2,797 494 - 6,430
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBIA
(gross settled) (BRERE)
- outflow — i 48170 8,975 2,231 - 59,376
—inflow —mA (40,541) (2,529) (258) - (43,328)
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POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

3

BEREEEERBE®)

3.1 BWERBEZREE)
(c) E&FERARE)

The Company
NG|
Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1year 1-2 years 2-5years 5years  cashflows
ABERRSE
PR—F —B= —ZHEE BBRE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETr B¥Tr B¥%Tr B¥ETno
2012 —2--F
Bank borrowings BITER 1,009,951 15,239 208,062 = 1,233,252
Creditors FETIRFR 7,004 = = = 1,044
Amount due to an associate FER —E L AR 5,795 - - - 5,795
Derivative financial instruments ITHEMBITA
(net settled) (FEE) 5,455 459 - - 5914
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBIE
(gross settled) (g
— outflow — 16,153 2232 - - 18,385
—inflow A (9.845) (1.268) - = (11,113)
2011 25
Bank borrowings FITIER 102,611 1,029,212 - - 1,131,823
Creditors FET IR SR 5,025 - - - 5025
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBIA
(net settled) (O#EH) 3,139 2,797 494 - 6,430
Derivative financial instruments ITERBIA
(gross settled) (BEitE)
—outflow — 28,163 8975 2,231 - 39,369
—inflow —mA (20,554) (2,529) (257) - (23,340)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern while
maximising the returns to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to
equity ratio, which is expressed as a percentage of net debt
(comprises total debt less bank balances and cash) over total
equity. Total debt represents bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

BEEREEAERBE®)
32 BEXEMRERE(E)

The net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2012 and 2011 was as
follows:

—E_FR-ZT——F=F=t+—8Bz
R RS R AT

2012 2011

—E-—fF —=—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Total debt BIETS 2,980,271 1,670,465
Bank balances and cash RITHEERES (1,035,209) (1,476,407)
Net debt FE 1,945,062 194,058
Total equity o 5,317,570 4,879,398
Net debt to equity ratio A S 36.6% 4.0%

The net debt to equity ratio increased from 4.0% as at 31
March 2011 to 36.6% as at 31 March 2012 mainly representing
the increase of the Group's bank borrowings for financing the
acquisition of subsidiaries and business and further funding
contributions in relation to associates and jointly controlled
entities during the year.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to
maintain an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a
required solvency margin. For the years ended 31 March 2012
and 2011, the Group's relevant subsidiaries complied with
the solvency margin requirements as set out by the relevant
authorities in Hong Kong.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group uses the following fair value measurement
hierarchies for disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BXEREEREERBE®)
POLICIES (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMFHE)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities TREWNE_E——FZ_A=+—HZA
that were measured at fair value at 31 March 2012. NEFEZAEREENREE -
The Group The Company
158 N
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
£-4 24 =4 ag E E=h = ag
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
AeTn AMTn  AETn  AETn  AMTn  AMTn  AETn AETn
Assets &E
Financial assets at fairvalue through profitor loss $52 72 S AR IE 7 B B
- eht seurtes -BHES 64867 8783 S (] - %75 - 2,75
— equity securities —[rAES 1218 - - 1218 14817 - - 14817
~exchange-traded funds -R5MEEES L} - - i} L]} = = a0
—mutual and hede funds -BERIRES - 1968 = 1968 = 66 = 466
— quitylinked notes -REANZE - 18910 - 18910 - 8579 = 8579
Derivative financial instruments MESKIA = 0 12088 1328 - m = m
Avalable-for-sale inancial assets A& HEE
- equiy securites -RAE% - - 3880 3880 - - 3880 3880
~ private funds -flZEs - - 2438 134328 - - 29689 19689
Total assets BEE 187,09% 106,061 281,0% 574,255 15224 36,022 233,569 284815
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial nstruments fERBIE - (21907) (24962) (45,869 - (20,115} = (21,715)
Total liabilities BeE = (21.907) (24.92) 46,869) - (2.115) - (21,115)
The following table represents the Group's assets and liabilities TREFIZ -_ZT—F=ZA=+—HZA
that were measured at fair value at 31 March 2011. REFEZASEEERBE -
The Group The Company
e YN
Level 1 Level Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
48 £ £= ] 48 F- £=0 a5
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$000
BETT  AETn BT BT BETr BT BT BT
Assets &E
Financialassets at fair value through pofitor loss &A% BH ABRRE ¢ BE AR
— et securities -[ERES 58,765 70,156 - 128941 1,208 23700 - 24908
- equity securities -BAEA 164010 - - 164010 69615 - - 69615
- exchange-traded funds -%5HEEES 30256 - - 30,256 4619 - - 4609
~ mutual and hedge funds -DERERES - 10551 - 10551 - 15% - 153
— otheristed funds -EfpFmES 19 - - YA 2304 - - 2304
-~ equity linked notes -FERNZE - 10808 - 10808 - 1449 - 1449
~foreign exchange finked notes —NERBZE - 38% - 38% - 198 - 198
Derivative financial instruments NESKIA - 268 B4 1087 - 1607 - 1607
Avallabe-fo-sale financialassets A E 2 HEE
— equity securities -BAEA - 178 - 178 - 178 - 178
- private funds -HEEE - - 263657 236357 - - 230932 230952
Total assets BEE 165978 99624 162798 628560 71956 31965 230952 30873
Liabilities a8
Derivative financial instruments fEmEIA - 19472 - (18472 - [19.50) - (19.250)
Total liabilities 3= - (19472) - (19472) - [19250) - (19250)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MREREEEEREE®)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREM/ET(E)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
prices used for financial assets held by the Group is the closing
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments
include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

e The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

e The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period with the resulting value discounted
back to present value

e For unlisted securities or financial assets without an
active market, the Group establishes the fair value by
using valuation techniques including the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, reference to net asset
value of investee and discounted cash flow analysis,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs. If none of the
valuation techniques results in a reasonable estimate on
the fair value, the investment is stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,

are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
for the year ended 31 March 2012:

3

CIAL STATEMENTS

BEEEEBERBEK @)

3.3 AREME(E)
TREFE=RTERBE-_ZT——F=
A=+—HIFE

89 :

The Group
EEE
Equities  Private funds Put options Total
idvig £ REES RO e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BET T
At 1 April 2011 R-E——FMNA—H - 236,357 26,401 262,758
Payment for capital contributions HERK 3,895 18,420 - 22,315
Receipt for capital return leqCIE=:N - (11,859) - (11,859)
Recognised on disposal of CPHL HEHIT REER = = (24,549) (24,549)
Fair value gains/(losses) REMZEKEERZ
recognised in other comprehensive A (AU (E1E) -
income, net ez} (15) 19 16,074 16,138
Eliminated upon derecognition R IERERIE ET Y - (8,669) - (8,669)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=R=+—H 3,880 234,328 17,926 256,134
The Company
KT
Equities Private funds Total
ROER REES WE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMNA—H - 230,952 230,952
Payment for capital contributions &k 3,895 18,420 22,315
Receipt for capital return W [a & A - (11,859) (11,859)
Fair value gains/(losses) RE M2 RS TER
recognised in other comprehensive N EkE(EE)
income, net FER (15) 845 830
Eliminated upon derecognition R IFRERIE ET Y - (8,669) (8,669)
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H 3,880 229,689 233,569

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
for the year ended 31 March 2011:

TREFE=RITERBE=_ZT—F=
A=+—BIFEz2E) :

The Group The Company

REE PiN/NS]

Private funds Put option Total Private fund

LEES RH Bt “EE LEES

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PRI BT T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTFMHA—H 211,299 - 211,299 205,894

Payment for capital contributions HERR 32,859 36,360 69,219 32,859

Receipt for capital return g[8 & A (6,853) - (6,853) (6,853)
Fair value losses recognised in other A ELfth 2 [ R FESR 2

comprehensive income, net ArElE - FE (948) (9.959) (10,907) (948)

At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=ZA=+—H 236,357 26,401 262,758 230,952
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties
The valuation of investment properties held directly by the
Group is made on the basis of the “Market Value"” adopted by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS"). It is performed
in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
published by HKIS. The valuation is reviewed annually by
qualified valuers by considering the information from a variety
of sources including (i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties
in less active market, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income derived from
existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary income
potential based on market conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future
results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value of
each investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in light of current market conditions
including open market rents, appropriate capitalisation rates
and reversionary income potential. Discount rate in the range of
4% to 6% (2011: 4% to 6%) were used in the discounted cash
flow analysis. The fair value also reflects on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the

property.

At 31 March 2012, if the market value of investment properties
had been 10% (2011: 10%) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the carrying value of the Group's
investment properties would have been HK$267,969,000 (2011:
HK$171,853,000) higher/lower.

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and land
use rights have been determined based on the higher of their
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, taking into account
the latest market information and past experience.
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4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other intangible
assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with
accounting policies stated in note 2(aa) to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or its fair
value less cost to sell, whichever is higher, and both bases
require the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
Please refer to notes 18, 19 and 40 for details.

Estimated useful lives of other intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its
other intangible assets. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of comparable
intangible assets in related industries. Actual economic life may
vary from estimated useful life. Periodic review could result
in a change in amortisable lives and consequently increase or
decrease in amortisation expenses in future periods. Please
refer to note 19 for details.

Impairment assessment for available-for-sale
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine
when an equity available-for-sale investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee and historical price volatility
of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value of an equity available-for-sale
investment below cost are considered significant or prolonged,
an additional loss of HK$11,610,000 (2011: HK$7,710,000)
would be incurred in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012, being the transfer
of the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
on such available-for-sale investments to the consolidated
income statement.

Fair value of available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments

The fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
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RE BB AR M EE

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

(j)

Net realisable value of properties under
development and properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and
properties for sale to net realisable value based on assessment
of the realisability of properties under development and
properties for sale which takes into account cost to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an increase in cost to
completion or a decrease in net sales value, the net realisable
value will decrease which may result in writing down properties
under development and properties for sale to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value of properties
under development and properties for sale is adjusted in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated fair value of put option

The determination of the fair value of the put option as detailed
in note 31 requires estimates in determining the value of the
equity interest at the valuation date, exercise price, expected
life of the option, annual risk-free rate and expected volatility
which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of
weekly share prices of comparable companies over the last
three years before the valuation date.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group's insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on
the basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing
modeling and other analytical techniques. The estimated
insurance liabilities are affected by assessed net loss ratio.
Assessed net loss ratio for 2012 and 2011 was 68% and 79%
respectively. Differences resulting from reassessment of
insurance liabilities are recognised in subsequent consolidated
financial statements. The Group continually reviews the
estimates and makes adjustments as necessary, but actual
results could differ from what is envisioned when these
estimates are made.

Construction contract revenue recognition
According to the accounting policies of construction contracts
as stated in note 2(n), the Group uses the percentage of
completion method to determine the appropriate revenue to
be recognised in a given period. The stage of completion is
measured by total amount of work done certified by customers
over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which was determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum,
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit
margin of construction contract differs from the management’s
estimates, the construction contract profit to be recognised in
the following years will need to be adjusted accordingly.
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e IR AR A

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BISEEiH{4it R ¥E o)

(continued)
(k) Income taxes (k) FT18

At 31 March 2012, a deferred tax asset of HK$19,615,000
(2011: HK$24,391,000) in relation to unused tax losses has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual taxable future profits generated are more or
less than expected, additional deferred tax assets or reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the period in which
such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associated companies and jointly
controlled entities, is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,

R-ZE——F=A=+—0 HEKH
BrZREEBEEHNEECHEEES
19,615,000 T ( — & — — F : B
24,391,0007T ) E R &R & BT 754K 5 3%
R BERBEERTEIE  EBRTAH
% RE B RHERTOG F ok B R T T R
ZRME - WEBREEZ R REZRTEF
ZRADNTER - Bl g IR RELEREE
BEEZ NSk A ] - IR RZ I hn sk B B 1 IR
BRI AR A I s R N RERR o

A AEE (BB Z AR MRS
R)BHMZ AR EAEER 2SR - £
EEHRMEREAR  AEERELEX
HE - ERBEBBES  HRERZ R
Ry MFTEBEREBIA - AREEGR
ARG EEMRRIMILIR - A e R TEHA
MBEZFELAE - HREFFE &K
MBERBERBZVAKRZ SR  ZF=E
REGZEVGETERANZFAEHRRLER
TR

such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE 5 WA
2012 2011
—E-CF —=—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Revenue represents amounts received and WAIEREAT&IEZ
receivable from: B EUGRIA

Construction and installation contracts BERTESN 1,563,586 1,694,292

Sales of information technology equipment, B RHGRE  REREAM
motor vehicles and others ZIHE 821,796 787,437
Food and beverage B8 571,433 392,261
Insurance premium R & 231,741 131,758
Warehouse and logistics operations BENREE 170,848 150,966
Sales and leasing of properties MEEEREE 163,412 138,401
Senior housing operations RER S EE 128,005 -
Provision of maintenance and property management IR HH{RE R E S IR R 119,477 113,173
Hotel operations S8 44,372 43,254
Dividend income from listed securities KEHETHEHFZRBEWA 22,147 27,650
Interest income from investments KE®REZFBYA 11,557 10,872
Leasing of equipment HEHEE 1,400 1,117
Total revenue (note 39) AU (K EE39) 3,849,780 3,491,181
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GAMBEEN
6 OTHER INCOME, NET 6 R
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value through BAREBEIABTERIEZKRERN
profit or loss, net (B518), Wz« 558
— held-for-trading —RHEEER® (11.,460) 1,384
— designated upon initial recognition — R MR 1 HE (1,559) 2,581
Loss on derivative financial instruments, net PTHEMF TR EE - 558 (1,505) (51,898)
Commission income BEBA 3,983 3,852
Interest income from associates (note 47) B AT 2 FBUA (T 5E47) 5,691 5,341
Interest income from jointly controlled entities EENEE = ISV PN
(note 47) (Mﬁm - 8,194
Management fee income from associates and Bt N A R AR R 2
jointly controlled entities (note 47) ZAEEE%U\( BaE47) 21211 37,369
Sales and marketing services income from Mg QR HE RS HE
an associate (note 47) PR AU A (B EE47) 23524 19,927
Others HA 7.290 4,853
53,235 31,603
OTHER GAINS, NET 1 Httlyzs - 8
2012 2011
s —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Gain on disposal of HENTSE 2 WE
— CPHL (note 48(c)(i)) —H 2 dn (i EE48(c)i) 135,426 -
—80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group —Pacific Coffee 52 [ 2 80%#E 2%

(note 48(c)(ii)) (P EE48(c)ii) = 217,361
Increase in fair value of investment properties (note 15) & 1% 2 A 7 B I (HEE15) 255,546 163,174
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W - 799
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and HE Y% - WE LR G ETENHAEZIE

prepaid lease payments W 1987 247
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HE AR E 2 IRE RS 8,669 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment Y - B & E 2R ERE

(note 16) (Fff5E16) (4,856) (9,198)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments (note 17)  JB{ B E 3018 2 R E R 1B (HiEE17) (2,876) (5,029)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 18) Pz R E R B (FiEE18) - (36,507)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets (note 19)  H bR E &= ~ SR EE 18 (M3E19) (12177) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AR E 2 R ERRERE (765) -
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate FEU — R & A RIR B ES 18 (5,994) -
Bad debts (written off)/recovered, net (B, BREzEE 558 (781) 1,628
Exchange (loss)/gain, net ER(EB) MW - FE (2.233) 5,414

389,830 337,889
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FEMBmTRME

8 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND THEIR HEMB AT R EERE > EZ

RELATED JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES Bz W=
2012 2011
—B——F —E——%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(Es HEET T T T

Gain on disposal of: HENTRIEZ WS

— Citiway Group — R EE a - 169,431
— Smartco Group —SmartcosE & b - 208,270
- 377,701

(a) Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the

(b

~

Citiway Group

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 22 March
2010, the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital
of Citiway Engineering Limited and its jointly controlled entity
engaged in a property development project in Shenzhen,
Mainland China (the “Citiway Group”) for a consideration of
RMB160,100,000 (equivalent to HK$182,422,000) and the
purchaser agreed to take up the repayment obligation of the
loans from the Group to the Citiway Group of RMB102,900,000
(equivalent to HK$117,398,000).

The completion took place on 9 April 2010, upon which
assets and liabilities in relation to the Citiway Group were
derecognised. Gain on disposal of the Citiway Group amounted
to HK$169,431,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the
Smartco Group

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 April
2010, the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of
Smartco Holdings Limited, its subsidiary and jointly controlled
entity engaged in a property development project in Hefei,
Mainland China (the “Smartco Group”) for a consideration
of HK$246,000,000 and the purchaser agreed to take up
the repayment obligation of the loans from the Group to the
Smartco Group of HK$286,052,000 and accrued interest
thereon.

The completion took place on 10 July 2010, upon which
assets and liabilities in relation to the Smartco Group were
derecognised. Gain on disposal of the Smartco Group
amounted to HK$208,270,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March
2011. The consideration receivable and loan receivable
amounted to HK$36,900,000 and HK$22,644,000 respectively
as at 31 March 2011 were fully settled as at 31 March 2012
(note 29).
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(b)
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e MR RME
9 FINANCE COSTS/(INCOME), NET 9 BIER (KWA) SEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB T
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and borrowings ~ $R1TiE X RZER AEN D BIEE ~
whally repayable within five years BRI ST 46,429 22,127
Less: Amount capitalised to properties under B BERERYE Y
development (note) (M) (14,724) (8,435)
31,705 13,692
Less: Interest from bank deposits A ERITIEREAL B (8,528) (14,225)
23171 (533)
Note: BT
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the RAFE  BRANRERGRIBEERMEZES
development of properties was between 6.4% and 7.8% (2011: 5.4% and HEAMEFENT6.4%E7.8%(ZF——F :54%
7.7%) per annum during the year. 27.7%) °
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10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

e M ISR R M

10 BREIATE R

2012 2011
- —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at MR R A B FIBR
after charging the following: THIER -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 16) #7% - k= R 384 2 T E (Hi3116) 70,146 55,955
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work B BEAHN IR (1,721) (1,789)
68,425 54,166
Staff costs (note a) 8T (KiTa) 735,549 551,451
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work B BERHN IR 2R (98,909) (89,993)
636,640 461,458
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of HEUTEBEZEEHEER
— premises (note b} —1EF(fzED) 83,708 91,412
— equipment — &t 291 1,136
83,999 92,548
Auditors' remuneration ZEAN N & 8,805 8,494
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (note 17) TE T E a8 (M RE17) 351 390
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 19) Hhmp & E S (HE19) 5,929 5,037
Write down of inventories to net realisable value, net ORI TS & 0] #I0%(E - F5E - 5917
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary —E_EHNE R AR T B
— consultancy services received — BEEGE AR 5,558 6,420
Acquisition-related expenses WEE R 10,036 3,769
and crediting the following: Wt A THIEE -
Gross rental income of HK$121,358,000 YIS R U A B %121,358,0007T
(2011: HK$62,551,000) from properties (ZZ——4% : #¥562,551,0007T)
less direct operating expenses (note c) B & S (i 5Ec) 94,925 45,089
Write back of inventories to net realisable value, net  [E1¥ {7 5 E 0] &30 )5E - %58 1,423 -
Write back of properties for sale to net realisable value [B]78 4365 22 2= A] 4 I R B 2,312 8,348
Notes: gz

(a) Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed

in note 41.

Included in staff costs are an amount of HK$601,000 (2011:
HK$316,000) in respect of termination benefits made to staff and
an amount of HK$27,596,000 (2011: HK$22,660,000) in respect of
contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net

of forfeited contributions.

(b) Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises
are contingent rentals of HK$1,908,000 (2011: HK$4,382,000).

(c) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,310,000 (2011:
HK$1,095,000) less outgoings of HK$1,092,000 (2011: HK$1,091,000)
from jointly controlled assets. Included in rental income is a gross
amount of HK$111,915,000 (2011: HK$54,195,000) derived from

investment properties.
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MERBF 72 EHEERBERRAESBE
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e MR MEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11 FrBHixH
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current tax NEEHE
Hong Kong B 45,965 25,995
Overseas MR 13,246 9,267
Over-provision in prior years BAFERERE (192) (406)
59,019 34,856
Deferred tax IEFER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary differences EF R 2 EA O 5
(note 38) (HM$3E38) 8,248 23,436
67,267 58,292

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on overseas
profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 38.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

FAENEH B ERPURFIZHE16.5%

—T——%F :16.6%)FH < BINEFRKTY
RERMGFERGEMIK AN RBELEREAE
BR2IRITREAE -

EIEREIR 2 FHB NI RE38 K ER ©

AR A Yk R R B B M B R A PR S B S
ZEHIE

2012 2011
= i i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation RE A& A 771,116 943,997
Adjusted for: FER -
Share of results of associates ikl NI E (94,478) (106,027
Share of results of jointly controlled entities B SRR H A 62,033 13,264
738,671 851,234
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% LR HFT SRR 2R 16.5%
(2011:16.5%) (ZZ——%F 1 165% )T HZBIA 121,881 140,454
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries AHEMEEEERKE ZHE AT
operating in other jurisdictions RERTRIF R 2 2 2,624 4,005
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AL 2 RIBRE 20,328 19,407
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERWA Z FTE 2 (102,338) (128,407)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised APHERRISEB 2 HETE 32,611 28,411
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and B ABERTFHERZHEEER
other deductible temporary differences HEMa] iR o Gt ER
not previously recognised ZBEE (11,904) (17,982)
Over-provision in prior years W F R (192) (406)
Others Hib 4,257 12,810
Income tax expenses for the year FEMABHZE 67,267 58,292
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e IR AR A

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SREF

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(a) &7

SR EARTITYIREAD AR H A
35 FIBR DU B B 17 AR 2 AT
BUEE -

2012 2011

—E—C—fF —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 2N B ARAESF B A FE(G % 7 657,897 797,972

Number of Shares Number of Shares

BOEE & &R
‘000 ‘000
TR TFhx

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITE AR Nk
in issue I8 277,564 277,564
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FRREAREF) (GBHEE) 2.37 2.87

(b) Diluted
For the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, as the adjusted
exercise price of the share options granted by CPHL was higher
than the relevant average market price of CPHL's shares, the
outstanding share options granted had no dilutive effect on
earnings per share. The share options granted by CPHL were
cancelled on 15 July 2011.

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any
dilutive equity instruments.

(b) #5

HE-_ZT——F#Rp-_FT——F=f=+—
BIEFEE  AaRELzomERERES
CRAETEESRNE iR 2 T
HHIBER  WERHE®ERITEZER
BUERAT T EEETE K420 R
BrBEREDR-E——FE+A+HAT
o

N FR T —F=Zf=+—
B AEBWEERNABEZE 2 RAT
Ao

13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
2012 2011
= i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2011: HK$0.20) Bk R B Z OB 0.20T
per share paid (ZZ——%F : B%0207T) 55,513 55,513
Special dividend of HK$0.40 per share proposed PR IR B SRR B 0.407T
(2011: HK$0.40 per share paid) (ZF—F : BRI ERBK0.40T) 111,025 111,025
Final dividend of HK$0.35 (2011: HK$0.55) BURAREIIR B SR 0.357T
per share proposed (ZZT——4F : B¥055T) 97,148 152,660
263,686 319,198

A special dividend of HK$0.40 per share and a final dividend of
HK$0.35 per share, totalling HK$208,173,000 has been proposed
by the Directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year ending 31 March 2013.
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R E BB AR MR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company is HK$211,501,000 (2011: loss

14 AT RERE AESRF
ARFRERE A AR E B

211,

501,000 CE AT AR QR F BHREF (ZZ

of HK$35,336,000).

——4& : B85 #35,336,0007T) °

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REYEE
The Group AEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

At 1 April R A—H 1,718,530 1,509,885

Exchange realignment TEH T 19,113 51,698

Additions (note 48(b)(i)) NE (MI5E48(b)I)) 686,500 -

Disposal HE - (6,227)

Increase in fair value (note 7) R EIEMPIEET) 255,546 163,174

At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,679,689 1,718,530

The Group's investment properties at their carrying values are REBEBZIREYERRBEZ DTAT

analysed as follows:

2012 2011
—ZT——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
In Hong Kong BB

On long-term leases (over 50 years) REBAH(ATFEAL) - 19,990
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FHEO(TERTHF) 1,651,735 776,335

QOutside Hong Kong BHEZEIN
Leases between 10 to 50 years +ER+F 2L 671,851 631,920
Freehold KA ZERE 356,103 290,285
2,679,689 1,718,530

Notes: FitsE

(a) The fair values of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong, (a) AEEURNES - FEAM KGN IREDER
Mainland China and overseas as at 31 March 2012 have been arrived at R CF=A=t+—BZR2rEDRIBEEL
on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty BB EE T HAMAELT RIFT AT AR A R sk &=
Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, which are independent ZITERATINE BETZHEAEE 25 A
qualified professional valuers and have appropriate qualifications and BEARBER B EETHA - WHEARER
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. MEEITYIEGE LS o ZEETETEER
The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on SMBeMBEh s BB IEMEaeyEGEED
Properties published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market WELRMESE LEUME L ZSE - BEZW
evidence of transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the NFRERAR 2T EELEE -
net income allowing for reversionary potential.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of (b) FIRBBZILEMZE(BIAEELELEZESE
HK$29,667,000 (2011: HK$24,000,000) represent the Group's share of B W) 2 IR 4B {E A7 29,667,000 (=%
interests in jointly controlled assets. ——% : j5¥24,000,0007T) °

(c) Charges were created on the investment properties with a total (c) WRMEIAE(EHEY1,573,938,000C( — T ——4F : 8

carrying value of HK$1,573,938,000 (2011: HK$742,068,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y%  MENRRE

The Group NEE

Furniture,

Other Plant, ~ fixtures, other

Cold storage Hotel properties machinery equipment and
warehouse properties ~ forownuse and equipment motor vehicles Total

B £8

it BE -4 ARt
REER BRENE BRNE e RkAE b
HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT BT BT BETT BT BT

Cost %
A1 April 2010 RZE-ZFEMA-A 239,038 156,454 536,123 115,741 02324 1,349,680
Exchange realignment ERAE - 7186 6,000 1,163 4207 18,556
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(o}v) bt NGl - - - 7004 13778 50802
Additions NE - 896 - 9147 17673 21,116
Disposal hE - - (2,859) (7,787) (16,767) (271413
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46[c/i) i E I B 2 R (R a8c)i) - - (6,700) (30,008) (72427) (109,135)
At31 March 2011 RZZ——%=A=1-H 239,038 164,536 532,564 95,280 218,788 1,310,206
Exchange realignment ER A% - (8132) (3,199) (191) 969 (6,553)
Acquisition of a group of companies owning a WERBUNERE L —BNE

property in Tsing Yi sland note 48{oli ) — @A) (P sE4(bli) - - 286,000 - = 286,000
Acquisition of senior housing business WiEZER 5%

(note 48{bfi) (B Fxag(bytii)) = - 236,364 - 19,349 256213
Additions NE - 1,09 4110 25,595 43451 14,252
Disposal HE - (39) (11.982) (24,882) (8570) (45,473)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(c)i) EMTE L =] (B EE48(c) - - - (5,710) (25,063) (30,773)
At31 March 2012 RZE-—5=A=+-H 239,038 161,455 1,044,357 90,092 308,930 1843872

Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZIHRERRE
At1 April 2010 RZE-ZFMA-H 50021 13616 147,263 65,661 204811 511372
Exchange realignment EHAR - 2425 2518 939 3384 9,266
Charged for the year note 10) EEFE(N0) 6,125 2590 10452 10780 26,008 56,955
Impaitment loss (note 7) HEERE) - 7% - - 1960 9,198
Disposal HE - - 13) 6,833) (14,395) (21,341)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48[c/ii) i E I B 2 R (R a8c)i) - - (219) (16615 (51,625 (68.459)
At31 March 2011 W-Z——%=A=1-H 56,146 55,869 159,901 53932 170143 495,991
Exchange realignment ERAE - (1,275) (1,39) (186) (80) (2.937)
Charged for the year note 10) FEME0) 6,124 374 281 10391 2,018 70,146
Impaiment loss (note 7) FEEE () - 4,338 = = 518 4,85
Disposal e - - (10,003) (15,367) (6,976) (32,346)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(c)) B 2 ] (B E481cl) = - - (3,700) (17,430) (21130)
At31 March 2012 RZE-Z£=A=1-H 62,270 62,673 170374 45070 174,193 514,580

Carrying value IREE
At31 March 2012 WZE-—%ZA=+-H 176,768 98,782 873,983 45,022 134731 1329292
At31 March 2011 RZE——%=ZA=+-H 182,892 108,667 312,663 1,348 108,645 814215
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e MR RME
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16 Y% - MENMZHE®
Notes: Wi -
(a)  The carrying values of properties comprise: (a) MEZEBRBEBIE :
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Freehold land and buildings thereon KAEET W NERE F2BgF 305,960 73,279
Leasehold land and buildings thereon HETHNERE F2EBF 843,573 590,943
1,149,533 664,222
(b) Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a (b) IREIZA(EH15608,5676,0007T( T ——4F : il
total carrying value of HK$608,576,000 (2011: HK$211,176,000) for 211,176,00070) Z W% * BE M&ED EIRF -
the purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group. ERBETAREEBRITEE ZBER -
17 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 FANEERIE
The Group rEE
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AREB ZFEMNEEFIERIE
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: BERIIZHEL I -
Leases over 50 years ATFAEZHEL 345 358
Leases between 10 to 50 years +ER+F 2L - 3,206
345 3,564
The movements in the Group's prepaid lease payments during the NEEBFERNBNEEZRBEES 2 DT -
year are analysed as follows:
2012 2011
=F—=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April R A—H 3,564 9,102
Exchange realignment JEH R 8 (119)
Impairment loss (note 7) BB ESIE (FIFET) (2,876) (5,029)
Amortisation (note 10) a5 (FiEE10) (351) (390)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 345 3,564
18 GOODWILL 18 &
The Group rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April R A—H 126,994 177,873
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(b)(iii)/(iv)) LT A BT /28 2 ) (B 48 (b)) /(iv)) 10,253 19,888
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(c)(i)/{ii) HH S B 22 =) (B RE48(c)(i)i) (7,551) (34,260)
Impairment loss (note 7) B ETE (FFE7) - (36,507)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 129,696 126,994
Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in PR 2 BB L IFE AT EE40 o

note 40.
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e M ISR R M

19 HttEREE

The Group NEE
Coldstorage ~ Trademarks
Roads, and public of branded
drainage and bonded coffee shops,
waterworks warehouse restaurants Favourable
license licenses and bars leases Others Total
BE. REEER GMUWHER
RERKE ARRHEE SEREE
IRER 1 pod 1 BREE Hih ek
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT
Cost KA
At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZFMA-H 26,534 3,000 118,337 - 9,005 156,876
Exchange realignment ERFE - - - - 357 37
Acquisiton of subsidiaries [note 48[b/iv) U B 2 &) (Bt asloliv) - - 13639 11,85 - 25491
Additions NE - - - - o84 o84
Disposal HE - - - - 99) 99)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48[c/i (LEME 2 R (M Fa8(oli) - - (108,000} - - (108,000)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%=ZA=+-H 26,534 3,000 23976 11,855 9,847 15212
Exchange realignment ER A% - - - - (a7) (a7)
Additions NE - - 500 - - 500
Disposal HE - - - - (252) (252)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48[c)il HEMB AR (R - - (700) - - (700)
At 31 March 2012 W-ZE-—#=fA=1-H 26534 3,000 2,176 11,855 9,548 413
Accumulated amortisation and impairment B RAE
At April 2010 W-Z-TEMA-H 14357 2437 7889 - 2,868 27,551
Exchange realignment ER AR - - - - 118 118
Charged for the year (note 10) FEERH(ME0) - 30 3007 ] 99 5037
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(c)i) BRI (FEa8(c)i) - - (9,000) - - 9,000)
At 31 March 2011 WZE——E=A=F—-H 14,357 2131 1,89 4 3975 23,706
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - = (21) (21
Charged for the year note 10) EEEH(M0) - %3 1,750 2964 952 5,929
Impairment loss (note 7) BEBR(ET) 121 = = = = 121m
Disposal HE - - - - (20) (20)
Disposal of subsidiaries [note 48(c)) =SR] - - (517) - - (517)
At 31 March 2012 WZE-—&£=A=1-H 26,534 3,000 3129 3,705 4,702 41,010
Carrying value iREE
At 31 March 2012 WZZE-—%#=A=1-H - - 20,647 8,150 4,346 33,603
At 31 March 2011 WZE——E=A=1—-H 1217 263 22,080 11,114 5872 51,506

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks
license (“License")) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of following estimated useful lives or license periods:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses
Trademarks of restaurants and bars

Favourable leases

10 years
15 years
4 years
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R E BB AR MR

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19 Hib B EE @)
The License was purchased as part of business combinations in BRI UFFEEEEBSHmMEA - XAF
prior years. The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that EERE BENERBEAR - WAEE
the upkeep of this License is at minimal cost and the Group would SBNMBIEESN AEETERBRAIE
renew this License continuously. This License is considered by the BEEEBENFHAEE Ut TewEy - &5
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life and EEEEEMERERFHBFEHTEHE
will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite HEERFERFEHER AL - HEREFERE
upon reassessment of its useful life annually by the management. HIB B AR B REFETRER S - R
Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever BRI 2 55 S A M40 -
there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the
impairment testing are set out in note 40.
The trademarks and favourable leases of restaurants and bars ZENER EAELEGMNEE T RAEFEEE
were purchased as part of business combinations in prior years. EEAEHMEBA AEETEEZANESEE
The trademarks and favourable leases are considered by the EEMBEZERAERAERSRBATRER
management of the Group as having finite lives of 15 years and E o« WEMPEEEBNEFEREHIRE 6L
4 years respectively. These intangible assets will be tested for BEDREETRENS - AERENS 25
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that they EE N EZE
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testings are set out
in note 40.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 FriLMiB A B 2 fE
The Company KA T
2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Non-current: ERE -
Cost less impairment B ARFIBR RVE
Shares listed in Hong Kong EB MR D - 268,154
Unlisted shares 3F bz Bkt 955,231 709,231
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LSBT BB X RIR X 2,030,917 1,382,894
2,986,148 2,360,279
Market value of shares listed in Hong Kong BB EMZRN 2TE - 347,174
Current; E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE LA FfS /B8 1 BT IR 3K 1,985,227 1,113,709
Amounts due to subsidiaries R IEENGILE 2,636,112 1,777,390
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20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2012
are set out in note 50.

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets are
unsecured, interest-free and considered equity in nature.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets and current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand;
except for a sum of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling
HK$195,550,000 (2011: HK$225,749,000) which is interest bearing
at Prime Rate of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (“Prime rate”) or Prime rate plus 3% (2011: Prime rate plus
3%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries
under current assets/liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries are
denominated in the following currencies:

20 FrihFiE A R Z R ()

R-E——F=ZA=+—BZFTEMBARZ
EIE R

DRERIFREEE 2 R B A RIIR BB
- REYHRERBEREE -

RRBEERRBABANZ B NHE LR
IRFDEEM R RIRERIEE - RN
J& N RINRFE HE 195,550,000 (=& ——
% : B¥225,749,0007T) RIREE DIBEZ R
TARARZ HEEMN X ([ HEEHNE]) &K
BEMEMFLEEIB(ZT——F : REFFH
EMFEBE3%)FE »

MBEE/ABET R ENHERRIR
RZIREEEE AR ERE

FEN B R RRRKZIREET AT ER RE

i :

2012 2011

—EB——fF T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Canadian dollar mEXT 212,161 217,625
Hong Kong dollar B 3,464141 2,080,599
Renminbi AR 176,252 196,795
Singapore dollar I 154,519 -
Others Hib 9,071 1,584

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to subsidiaries are denominated
in the following currencies:

RN B A RIRRZIREEDA T T RE

fir -

2012 2011

—E-CF —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Euro (¢ 58,867 299
Hong Kong dollar B 231,713 1,547 651
Macau Pataca SRPIE 265,532 229,440
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 FrihEE AT 2 s

The Group The Company
REM KA TF]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—C-F —T—F ZEB--fF —T—f
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Non-current: FEmE
Interests in associates, PGB & ARz s
including goodwill BEEE 539,152 502,162 89,594 89,594
Amounts due from associates (note b) YNNGl SEN R D) 389,876 121,840 — 30,138
929,028 624,002 89,594 119,732
Current: TRE)
Amounts due from associates (note b) gL N ) 32,163 137,836 = 10,815
Amounts due to associates (note b) FEATE A AR SR (M 5EDb) = 293 5,795 -
The movements in the Group's interests in associates during the AEBERNAEB S AR ZEREB 2 HTW
year are analysed as follows: N
2012 2011
—E——fF ZT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 April RmA—A 502,162 377,307
Share of results FriG%4E 94,478 106,027
Fair value of non-controlling interest retained ERBIHERER 2 AN E
(note 48(c|(ii)) (B 7E48(c)ii) = 53,095
Acquisition of an associate in Share Exchange DARR 9 22 ¥ Ll B — B 25 R A
(note 48(b)iv) (B E48(b)iv) - 1,064
Disposal of an associate (note 48(e)) o — Rl i A W) (FTRE48(e)) (2,558) -
Dividends i 2 (60,300) (45,441)
Exchange realignment JE N AR 5370 10,110
At 31 March W=A=+—H 539,152 502,162
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is AEEBENT ZHBERE ST ¢

set out below:

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Total assets HEE 5,434,399 4,677,828
Total liabilities FEy=Er (3,983,099) (3,333,392)
Non-controlling interests IR AT (43,531) (51,859)
1,407,769 1,292,577

Revenue A 8,931,292 6,059,917
Profit for the year FEmA 232,804 243,964
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 PGB E QR 2R (o)
Notes: ME -
(a) Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2012 are (@) MNZBE——F=A=+—HBKFEBLQTZE
set out in note 51. BEFHRHEST -
(b)  Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured and interest-free (b) pElFERTEEE A TIRKAEEB LR E - ML
except for the following balances: THEBERIN
(i)  Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$11,167,000 () AEBEKR —MBEL2QFKRIEE
(2011: HK$10,376,000) which bears interest at a rate of 6.2% 11,167,000 T ( — & — — F : B &
(2011: 6.2%) per annum; and 10,376,0007T) JYIRF B H6.2% (—F——
F:62%)FE R
(i) Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$143,910,000 (i) REBEKW —BHLEATRKEK
(2011: HK$145,098,000) which bears interest at the prevailing 143,910,000 T ( — & — — F : #H &
market rates quoted by The People’s Bank of China and the 145,098,000 7T ) Jy 1= B A 4R 7 BT 3R
average effective interest rate is 4.86% (2011: 4.86%) per WITMHEMNERSE - HEHERENR A
annum. 4.86%(=F——F :4.86%) °
Amounts due from associates of the Group and the Company under BIERBEE ANERNLAN T EIE S N FIR
non-current assets are repayable in more than one year while amounts HAENRBB—FE7HREE  MBRABHEE &
due from/to associates under current assets/liabilities are repayable on B2 Y B ATIRR B BIRESEE o
demand.
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under BRBEE BEE N2 R TERE S A TR
current assets/liabilities approximate their fair values. RZREEEEASERE
The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are TEWEE S N TR R ZREETVA T EE A8
denominated in the following currencies: A7 :
The Group The Company
rEE ARHE
2012 2011 2012 2011
= e —B——F —F——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BT BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar Vo 138,741 19,843 - 40,953
Renminbi ARHE 283,298 239,833 - -
The carrying amounts of amounts due to associates are denominated JEREE QARIIRA ZIRAEIATY & A8
in the following currency: fif :
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F--fF —FF =2--F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar Vot - 293 5,795 -
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

e MR MEE

22 FribHEESID R 2 R

The Group REE
2012 2011
—s——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current: FEMED
Interests in jointly controlled entities, Bk SRR I 2 2 i e -
including goodwill BIEEE 347,81 389,564
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities (note b) & Uitk B 20 1| 1> 2R 2 (i 55b) 321,322 117,593
675,133 507,157
Current: mE :
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities (note b) i U 2t @22 Il 1> ZE R 72X (Fft 5Eb) 557,286 216,897

The movements in the Group's interests in jointly controlled entities

AEBEFAMEAREHCRZESEES 2D

during the year are analysed as follows: T

2012 2011

=F—=F T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April RIMA—H 389,564 387,151
Share of results Frib%4E (62,033) (13,264)
Exchange realignment JE N AR 20,280 15,677
At 31 March R=A=+—AH 347,81 389,564

The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled
entities related to the Group's interests is set out below:

ERSEE PTG A R KRR B R 2 75

BRREDEWT

2012 2011

—s——F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Non-current assets IERBEE 448,505 52,006
Current assets MENEE 946,582 817,432
Current liabilities mENAE (966,016) (510,932)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (113,331) -
315,740 358,506

Revenue A 171,701 446,136
Expenses, including taxation T (BIERIE) (233,734) (459,400)
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities as at 31
March 2012 are set out in note 52.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured and
interest-free except for balance of HK$800,883,000 (2011: Nil) which
bears interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant parties.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities under non-current assets
of HK$214,347,000 (2011: HK$73,934,000) are considered equity in
nature and HK$112,975,000 (2011: HK$43,659,000) are repayable in
more than one year while amounts due from jointly controlled entities
under current assets are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities
under current assets approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities
are denominated in the following currencies:

22 FribHEESIEE R

BiaE

(a)

(b)

&
NEE-—F=A=1+—"HBETEHEEREE
ZERBHHIEEE2

U RZE G DRIRRAEIBR R LS - EEH
75%800,883,0007T (= ——F : T)REHH
RIE MRS o

BIEREEEIE T 2 B RHE 5 (b 2R S
214,347,00070 ( =T —— 4 : &% 73,934,000
TO) AR BB w1 &1 112,975,0007T (=
T——4 : #43 659,0007T) BRBB—F 2
HIR(EE - MBRBEEE [ 2 BRIt
EIRFIZERERE -

BRBEAER T2 EYHFEHI R RIRRZ RE
BERENAERE -

PR H I 0 S0 2 IR R TS LA T 516 2
B :

2012 2011

—E——F —F—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Hong Kong dollar B 623,718 8
Renminbi AR 260,890 334,482
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e HRRMEE
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 AHHEZKRE
The Group The Company
REE XA
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=-F T % =B-=-F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T BT T BT

Unlisted investments, at fair value: FELETIRE - BARE
— equity securities —EREE 3,880 1,728 3,880 1,728
— private funds (note) —FLEES (M) 234,328 236,357 229,689 230,952
238,208 238,085 233,569 232,680
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBRERERONA
Non-current assets ERBEE 230,099 238,085 225,460 232,680
Current assets MENEE 8,109 - 8,109 -
238,208 238,085 233,569 232,680
The carrying amounts of available-for-sale investments are denominated AR EZIRE ZIREETIA T ES BB
in the following currencies:
The Group The Company
rEH A F]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—-F —=—F =ZEB--f =—IET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT IT BT T BT

Euro B¢ 17,411 27,208 17,441 27,208
Hong Kong dollar piticd - 1,728 - 1,728
US dollar e 208,579 197,758 203,940 192,353
Others i 12,188 11,391 12,188 11,391
238,208 238,085 233,569 232,680
Note: FitsE
The fair values of the private funds of the Group and the Company are AEBERARBZAEESZ AR BERMAR LM
determined based on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed BB RERELTREZARBEEE  MIELT
investments and fair value of the unlisted investments, which is determined BEZRARENZRESUBER (MEHRBERER
based on financial models (such as discounted cash flow model) on the REETE ©
funds.
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24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 BRPYE

The Group REH
2012 2011
—2—-F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
At 1 April RIEA—H 690,878 358,303
Additions NE 112,189 332,575
At 31 March R=A=+—H 803,067 690,878

25

The balance is related to a property development project in Changchun,

Mainland China.

The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is
disclosed in note 9.

ZEBETEEET AYEXRRBABEH

BRPYMEENMZ EFRRAE NS

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 25 HtERBEE
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F 22— B =—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT IT BT T BT T
Deposits paid for a property development B2 —IBY) % RIER 2
project (note) = () 45,894 44,987 = -
Deposit paid for acquisition of B RE—RNEBARZ
a subsidiary (note 48(b}(i)) &% (B sE48(b)i) - 102,525 = -
Others Hb 37,591 38,754 - 3,895
83,485 186,266 - 3,895
Note: BisE

The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in

Changchun, Mainland China.
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26 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

26 BAREBEIAEZREEKRE

The Group The Company
REH ARAFE
2012 201 2012 2011

=F——-F % =F-=-F —T—F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR AT BET BETIT

Listed investments: EHEE
Held for trading FFIEEEHE
— debt securities — B ES 64,867 58,785 - 1,208
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong —HEEMZBAFES 57,570 116,367 14,817 61,798
— equity securities listed overseas — BN ET 2R FES 64,254 47643 = 8,017
— exchange-traded funds - RHMEEES 407 30,256 407 4,629
— other funds —HES = 12,927 = 2,304
187,098 265,978 15,224 77,956
Unlisted investments: JELETRE :
Held for trading FFIEEEHE
— debt securities —EES 37,245 - 2,925 -
—equity linked notes —REANEE 18,910 10,808 8,579 1,449
— foreign exchange linked notes —INEEM I EER - 3,895 - 1,948
— mutual and hedge funds —HEREHES 1,968 10,551 466 1,533
Designated upon initial recognition R R 175
— debt securities — B ES 47,538 70,156 23,850 23,700
105,661 95,410 35,820 28,630
292,759 361,388 51,044 106,586

The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges
and the unlisted investments are determined based on financial
models or with reference to quoted prices from relevant financial
institutions.

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or
loss are denominated in the following currencies:

ETREZAAEBDIREBEEARXSMMAE 2T
BEANBMERE - MIFLHREZARBETIZ
MBEAETE - R2EXRE ARV BEHRIBE R

MAREHABRER Y REZIRAEIAT
B R EAT

The Group The Company
REE AR
2012 2011 2012 2011

=F-=F T % =B-=-F T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT BETIT

Hong Kong dollar Nt 81,479 154,429 23,396 66,375
Japanese yen H 64,254 33,317 - -
US dollar =TT 147,026 163,940 21,648 33,939
Others Hih - 9,702 - 6,272

292,759 361,388 51,044 106,586

106



2]

28

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 / 4k 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmTRME
INVENTORIES 21 78

The Group £
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T ST T
Raw materials ERE 14,592 12,884
Finished goods BURY SR 154,097 157,646
Consumables FERYE 7,590 6,126
176,279 176,656

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to HK$778,938,000 (2011: HK$715,298,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying
value of HK$28,956,000 (2011: HK$25,424,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

ERBEIHIIIABEERAZFEKAK
A 778938000 L (=& — —F : B
715,298,0007T) °

W [ A8 (B85 528,956,000 T ( — T ——4F : B
25,424,00070) 2 FEE BB - EAR TAS
BIRITIEEZER -

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 28 FEMX
The Group rEE
2012 2011
—B——fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unamortised prepaid land leases REHERSLTHHEE
—in Hong Kong —&E 32,806 35,115
— outside Hong Kong — BB 8,840 8,553
Development costs GRS 68,866 89,014
110,512 132,682

Properties for sale include the Group's share of jointly controlled
assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,130,000 (2011:
HK$18,130,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted

to HK$24,177,000 (2011: HK$49,250,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$24,858,000 (2011: HK$48,388,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.
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FEVEREAEEAEERITH B E ZRE
“EAB 18,130,000 ( — T — — 4 : B
18,130,0007T) °

EETIHAEEXNAZEEMERNEEE
24,177,000 0 ( = F —— 4 : % ¥ 49,250,000
JL) °

M 4B (B 524,858,000 0 ( —Z——4F : B
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29 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

R E BB AR MR

29 BWIRR - FHERERANKE

The Group The Company
REE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—2—-F —T——F =ZB-ZF T——F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BEET T BT T

Trade debtors Z 5 YRR 555,768 379,335 = -

Less: Provision for impairment S R BB E (16,611) (8,268) = -

Trade debtors, net B o RIIRR - FRE 539,157 371,067 = -
Other debtors, deposits and EMRRIER - FHEES &

prepayments FE FRIE 598,623 392,145 1,745 1,019

Retention receivables FEUWIR BB A 185,215 207,454 - -
Receivables on disposal of Smartco Group €5 SmartcoE [ 7 FE U I8

(note 8(b)) (HI5E8(b)

— consideration —RME - 36,900 = -

—loan —B® - 22,644 - 22,644

1,322,995 1,030,210 1,745 23,663

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in
each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to

trade debtors was 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade debtors is as follows:

AREFBHEEZOERETEORITRZEE
B - B TESEP 291

=B 560X o

AEEE HRUIRTRZ IRE DT -

2012 2011

—E——fF —ZT——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0—60 days 0-60X 391,212 300,650
61-90 days 61-90K 75,806 27,285
Over 90 days #90K 72139 43,132
539,157 371,067

At 31 March 2012, gross trade debtors balances totalling HK$22,942,000
(2011: HK$9,628,000) were individually determined to be impaired,
which were related to customers that were in financial difficulties.
The management assessed that only a portion of these balances
is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment of HK$16,611,000 (2011: HK$8,268,000) was recognised
as at 31 March 2012. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The movement in the provision for impairment
during the year is as follows:

R-ZE——F=A=+—H KeBHKER
HERFZ2EFRWNIRRBERGRAEE
22,942,000 7T (=& ——F : ¥ 9,628,000
Jt) + BERIEE A8 TRE - IRERE 25T
- TEHREREW B E0 D It IR K » HIE - A=
T——FZ A=+ —HERFRERE LS
#16,611,0007C (=Z ——4F : 8,268,000
T0) o ANEBE W ERZZRKIF A EAERSR -
AEERRBERBESNT

2012 2011

—s——F —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

At 1 April RIEA—H 8,268 12,465
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE 1,115 1,437
Impairment loss written back E B REEE (334) (3,065)
Uncollectable amounts written back/(written off) E# (Hss) R ek El z 58 7,005 (2,581)
Exchange realignment JE N AR 557 12
At 31 March W=A=+—H 16,611 8,268
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29 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 29 BUWIRR  FHIRSRFANMRIE®)
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be TRVEE T REZE S RKIRR Z RE D0
impaired is as follows: T
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired I R ERsR (B 314,038 196,142
Up to 60 days past due EEABOR A 177,892 136,947
61— 90 days past due #IHAB1 — 90K 8,761 12,251
Over 90 days past due # E90K 32,135 24,367
Amount past due but not impaired B A RRE 218,788 173,565
Total pake) 532,826 369,707
Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly ERE2OHEIEBIEREHRETERBEK
relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group's AAEERFBBNERBEERLEEZ AL
customers for more than six months with no history of default in NS
the past.
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade debtors are denominated AEEEZREYIERZIREEIIATIEE R
in the following currencies: B
2012 2011
—B—=F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Australian dollar SBIT 4,047 1,654
Hong Kong dollar B 452,835 286,228
Macau Pataca SR P 14,791 37,294
Renminbi AR 2,785 4,106
US dollar ET 38,868 21,861
Others Hib 25,831 19,924
539,157 371,067
The carrying amounts of other debtors and retention receivables as R-ZE——F=A=+—H  EMEKIKRZKL
at 31 March 2012 are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and FEWRBZBEZREEEETEEE R AR
Renminbi. (=
The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March RZE——F=ZA=+—8  RKIRZMEK
2012 approximate their fair values. FIBZREERE A EEE -
Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is the Group's share EWRR ~ FHRE MNFENREAD BEAE
of receivables of HK$192,000 (2011: HK$66,000) in relation to jointly B EEERIZHIEE T ZERIES « Ak
controlled assets. #192,0007(=ZF——% : jB%66,0007T) °
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mEMBmRME
30 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 30 E‘Jié,.’J IREREFWE, Xtz
WORK ;IE
The Group REE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Contracts in progress at the end of RRERRZBITH
the reporting period: A4
Contract costs incurred BEEZEKIHA 6,025,709 5,686,844
Recognised net losses BB R (110,649) (287,378)
5,915,060 5,399,466
Less: Progress billings W EE A (6,434,350) (5,956,914)
(519,290) (557,448)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERGRONAE -
Amounts due from customers for contract work EEENREBEERNRA L TIZER
included in current assets BEUWE Z ZIE 103,317 56,055
Amounts due to customers for contract work EEENREBAEARE L TIZER
included in current liabilities ZEEY A (622,607) (613,503)
(519,290) (557,448)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted A L TR WENE F AR 5K A 15,000,000
to HK$15,000,000 (2011: HK$68,842,000) and were included in t(ZZF——4F : ##68,842,0007T) * WE R
creditors. FERERIRFRA -
31 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31 PTEREIA
The Group The Company
REE KA T
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—-F —T——fF ZEBE--fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T BT T BT

Financial (liabilities)/assets in respect of T4 B S T A 7 BA 1%

derivative financial instruments (a@)/ BE
— interest rate swaps (note a) — F &= HA (fd7Ea) (20,961) (19,237) (20,961) (19,237)
— foreign currency forward contracts —RHINEE R
(note b) (F%ED) (76) 672 59 617
— put option (note cfi)) — 5Roh AR (P 5Ecli)
(note 48(c)(ii)) (Pt 7E48(c)(ii) 42,888 26,401 - -
— put option (note cfii)) — R0 B (M clii) (24,962) - - -
— others —EM (470) 1,779 (611) 977
(3,581) 9,615 (21,513) (17,643)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEREINA -
Current assets MENEE 43,288 29,087 202 1,607
Current liabilities neaE (46,869) (19,472) (21,715) (19,250)
(3,581) 9,615 (21,513) (17,643)
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31 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a
total notional amount of HK$620,000,000 (2011: HK$620,000,000)
were entered to swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to
swap between different floating rates. These contracts will mature
within the period from 25 January 2013 to 15 July 2013 (2011: period
from 25 January 2013 to 15 July 2013).

Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company
with a total notional amount up to HK$37,513,000 (2011:
HK$68,435,000) were entered to swap various foreign currencies to
other cross currencies. These contracts will mature within the period
from 3 April 2012 to 20 July 2012 (2011: period from 4 April 2011 to 4
May 2012).

(i)  The fair value of the put option was assessed at HK$42,888,000
as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$26,401,000). This results in a
fair value gain of HK$16,487,000 included under other income,
net of the consolidated financial statements. The fair value was
assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns, a firm of independent
valuers, using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant
inputs into the model included the value of the equity interest
at the valuation date, exercise price, expected life of the option,
annual risk-free rate and expected volatility which was based
on the statistical analysis of volatility of weekly share prices of
comparable companies over the last three years before year end
date.

(i)  On 21 December 2010, CL Holdings Limited (“CL Holdings"),
and World Pointer Limited (“World Pointer”), both being the
subsidiaries of the Company and the shareholders of Eastech
Limited, Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited and Grand Concept (Hong
Kong) Limited (together, the “World Pointer Group Companies”),
entered into an option agreement pursuant to which (i) CL
Holdings irrevocably and unconditionally granted to World Pointer
an option to sell all but not part of the 51% interest in the issued
share capital of the World Pointer Group Companies to CL
Holdings during the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 at a cash consideration of HK$25,000,000 (the "WP Put
Option”); and (i) World Pointer irrevocably and unconditionally
granted to CL Holdings an option to sell all but not part of the
49% interest in the issued share capital of the World Pointer
Group Companies to World Pointer during the period from 1
January 2014 to 15 January 2014 at a cash consideration of
HK$24,020,000 provided that World Pointer has not exercised
the WP Put Option.

The fair value of the WP Put Option was assessed at $24,962,000
as at 31 March 2012 (HK$20,410,000 and HK$24,549,000 as at
date of grant and 31 March 2011 respectively). This results in a
fair value loss of HK$413,000 included under other income, net
of the consolidated financial statements. The WP Put Option
was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
March 2011 and before the disposal of World Pointer together
with CPHL by the Company (note 48(c)(i)). The fair value of the
WP Put Option was assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns,
a firm of independent valuers, using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The significant inputs into the model included the value of
the equity interest at the valuation date, exercise price, expected
life of the option, annual risk-free rate and expected volatility
which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of weekly
share prices of comparable companies over the last three years
before year end date.
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(a)

(b)

REBRARRAEFEF RS AERERN R
BRRIZEFIRE 2 e MRl A RIS AL
HE 2545 /516200000000 (2T ——
F 1 &#620,000,00070) c WEAHBEHR =T
—=Ff—A-+HEHE-ZE—=5+A+HEH
BAR(ZZE——F : P22 —=F—A=+HA
22— =FtA+HBHEA)EE -

AEEBRARARABTRIINSIERAEMZX
M ZEREINESH  ERERLEAB
¥37,5613,0007C (= Z ——4F : #¥68,435,000
L) o WEEHERZTE—ZFHNA=RAE=ZT
——FEtAZTHBEAA(CZE——F : RZF
——FEANBE-Z——FH AMNBHER)
FIHA -

() RESER-_TZ——F=-A=+—HAZA2A
REFT X 5B 42,888,000 0 (=T ——
¢ #1026,401,0007T) - EM BB R
1B U 25 75 16,487,000 TT 5T A&7 & B1 7 3R
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NEEEERNETTZ EXZEEH
ABESERENMSERHZEE - 17
8 - BiE 2 TEHAGEHR - R F K I8
B R (TR BB R RN F 4 B AT
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31 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3N TTEMBEI ARG

The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Their fair values are determined with reference to
fair value of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices
from counterparties, except for the fair value of the put option as
stated in note (c) above. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are
denominated in the following currencies:

BlOTAE T AREREMRZAAENE - B
R EXRE (IR M2 A DR ESN  HTE
TRAZAAREDREAIHERTAZTSAA
EXGHTHEMFTE - $TET A ZIREFETD
AT 3G RER

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB-—F =ZEF——F ZEB-=f ZT—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT
Hong Kong dollar oS (3,787) 8,944 (21,713) (18,259)
US dollar ETT 275 81 1M -
Others Hib (69) 590 59 616
(3,581) 9,615 (21,513) (17,643)

32 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 2 /ITEERES

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash
placed with financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these
assets approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated
in the following currencies:

RITEFELRAEEMFRS - REZIHME
R=MEAKAR 2 BHISRTTFR R F AR
BPFAZEE - WWEBEZREEEEAAE
HE -

RITEFLREZIREETIATIEE RER

The Group The Company
REE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB-—F =ZEF——F =ZEB-=§f ZT—F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT BT T BT T

Australian dollar SBIT 25,410 23,348 3,407 609
Canadian dollar mexsT 34,423 37,147 10,252 10,479
Hong Kong dollar ok 513,013 993,494 133,832 674,159
Macau Pataca plelag ke 6,012 9,799 - -
Renminbi AR 171,305 162,334 112,864 565
Singapore dollar ronsg T 37,240 880 33,689 -
US dollar e 228,084 233,110 27,101 48,454
Others Hih 19,722 16,295 4,261 3,213
1,035,209 1,476,407 325,406 737,479

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's bank balances of HK$52,629,000
(2011: HK$2,439,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

At the reporting date, the effective interest rate on short-term bank
deposits of the Group and the Company was 1.6% (2011: 0.8%)
and 1.8% (2011: 0.7%) per annum respectively; and these deposits
had an average maturity of 24 days (2011: 9 days) and 24 days (2011:
4 days) respectively.
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33 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS 33 FE;ﬂé*ﬂ EBNEE > FARSR
12 % H

RIE
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—-F % =B--F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET T BT T
Trade creditors and bills payable B SRR RN ENZE R 226,279 177,025 - -
Accrued contract costs A XK ARTEIR 248,930 198,204 - -
Other creditors, deposits HApERIRER - FARS
and accruals MIBRER 380,973 396,681 7,044 5,025
Retention payables FERHRE 08 110,590 125,499 - -
966,772 897,409 7,044 5,025
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade creditors and bills payable is AEBE P EMNRRLENZE ZIRE S0
as follows: T
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
0-60 days 0-60K 192,736 141,684
61 —90 days 61 -90K 2,636 1,117
Over 90 days #190K 30,907 34,224
226,279 177,025

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade creditors and bills
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

REE 2B RMNRFRENERZIREET

IATOIEEE BN

2012 2011

—F-=F —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Hong Kong dollar it 178,963 129,452
Macau Pataca SR P9 EE 18,352 28,787
US dollar ET 12,071 9,657
Others EHAh 16,893 9,129
226,279 177,025

The carrying amounts of other creditors and retention payables as
at 31 March 2012 are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March
2012 approximate their fair values.

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the

Group's share of liabilities of HK$80,000 (2011: HK$81,000) in
relation to jointly controlled assets.
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34 KRFRBEE

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually
settled within one year:

TIEBRR 2 RBRE—RTE—FREE

—  Employee compensation - (EEBE
- Motor third party liability - /—Lﬁﬁfﬁaﬁc
—  Public liability - RAREMFE
The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as B EREGIRBRR)WENT -
follows:
Underwriting year TREE ZUOZ 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
-3 ZZIME CETRE CETE CIRLF CER\F CETNE C5-%F 5 ——F C%C &%
HK$'000 HK$ []0[] HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BRTr AYTn RETn AETn RSt ANTn A%t BETn AU AT BT AR
Estimate of cumulative 45t 25f
claims A
Atend of accident year ~ SMFERER 111,653 177,753 207,000 154651 79790 60371 88767 39575 57615 87,099 131582
One year later —Fhk 75307 87985 101084 126184 80471 87731 84866 50541 57,145 54,009 -
Two years later Mk 89510 134277 124843 121067 70097 78949 55288 45852 52,207 - -
Three years later —Fk 104,263 133568 116879 101303 74595 70027 44324 40,146 - - -
Four years later ME% 101,745 136621 101,705 107859 72226 65290 44418 - - - -
Five years later ik 102894 121,798 104090 111936 69698 65051 - - - - -
Six years later Nk 97609 122348 105794 110329 69,835 - - - - - -
Seven years later Tk 97610 122229 105860 110322 - - - - - - -
Eight years later J\E% 9759 122,218 105,660 - - - - - - - -
Nine years later NFH# 97,585 122,218 - - - - - - - - -
Ten years later TEE 97,585 - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative claims EHE 97585 122218 105660 110322 69835 65051 44418 40146 52207 54009 131582 893033
Less: il
Cumulative payments ~ Z3fERFE 97585 122218 105660 110322 69835 65041 41834 31394 22159 14405 9743 690,196
Claims outstanding asat F=F——%=4
31 March 2012 ST-BZRAEE = - - - - 10 2584 875 30048 39604 121839 202,837
Claims outstandingas ~ R=E——%=f
at 31 March 2011 =t-BrARZEE 3 - - - 16 279 5030 21222 45486 81,882 - 153918
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured RSB TN ZRAB I EEE A FREH 2R

event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing
of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such
contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed
the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid which
are greater than originally estimated and subsequent development
of long tail claims.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits,
approval procedures for transactions that involve new products or
that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management
of reinsurance and monitoring of emerging issues.

The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection
and the implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements
of reinsurance, strict claim review policies to assess all new and
ongoing claims as well as the investigation of possible fraudulent
claims. The Group also enforces a policy of actively managing and
promptly pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the
Group.

The Group's underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a
balanced portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks
over a number of years and, as such, reduces the variability of the
outcome.
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35 BANK BORROWINGS 35 RITER
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=-F —FT % =B-=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT IT BT T BT

The borrowings are repayable as follows:  {&3R{EBHAN T -

Within one year —FR 1,559,426 371,740 1,002,000 102,000
More than 1 year but not exceeding —F LA BB
2 years kS 838,235 1,109,375 15,000 1,017,000
More than 2 years but not exceeding ML LB TR
5 years AF 442,610 183,200 200,000 -
More than 5 years BiEhF 140,000 6,150 - -
2,980,271 1,670,465 1,217,000 1,119,000
Less: Amount due within one year B A —E RN R
disclosed under current MEBERNEEZ
liabilities k- (1,559,426) (371,740 (1,002,000) (102,000)
1,420,845 1,298,725 215,000 1,017,000
Presented by: 2735 :
Secured HEMA 1,343,804 198,386 17,000 19,000
Unsecured A 1,636,467 1,472,079 1,200,000 1,100,000
2,980,271 1,670,465 1,217,000 1,119,000
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair B AL AIEZ T LZ B R RE S - RITEH Y
values as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rate. EEEEE AL ERE - BITEZRTIUTIE
The bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: MBS T
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-—-F % Z=B--F T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT IT BETT BT

Canadian dollar EXT 28,957 25,424 = -
Hong Kong dollar T 2,532,675 1,428,275 1,217,000 1,119,000
Renminbi AR 214,266 209,678 = -
US dollar E 204,373 7,088 = -

2,980,271 1,670,465 1,217,000 1,119,000
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35 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 35 RITIERRE)
The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings at REREH @ SRITEFZEBREN RN T -

the reporting date were as follows:

The Group The Company
A %M AAR
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=-F T % =B-=-F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BT T BT

Canadian dollar mEXT 3.8% 4.5% - -
Hong Kong dollar T 1.2% 0.8% 0.8% 0.6%
Renminbi NG 1.5% 5.6% - -
US dollar e 4.7% 3.2% - -
Bank borrowings of HK$1,343,804,000 (2011: HK$198,386,000) are RITHE A E1,343,804,0000 ( —ZFE——4 :
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 75#£198,386,0007T ) JY AR EE B & E VR
15, 16, 27, 28 and 32. RHFEE15 16~ 27 ~ 28 RI2AHE -
36 SHARE CAPITAL 36 IR
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —=—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Authorised: JEERRAN -
540,000,000 ordinary shares of 540,000,0008% AR EEA#E1.2570 2
HK$1.25 each AR 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA
277,564,090 ordinary shares (2011: 277,564,090 277,564,090 % AR FI{EE #51.2570 2
ordinary shares) of HK$1.25 each TR (—ZF——4F : 277,564,090%
Ldk) 346,955 346,955
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e BT
37 RESERVES 371 A&
The Group AEH
Other
Capital ~ Investment assets Share Exchange
Share Capital ~ redemption  revaluation  revaluation option ~ fluctuation Retained
premium eserve reserve TeServe 1Bserve Teserve resenve profits Total

AR R RfAE  BRE NERA
BB AAGE RORE BREEE EtEG WE TPEE  REEN %
HK$0O  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSOOD  HKSOO  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD
ARTL EMTL AT R¥TT ARTR RMTR ERTR R¥TT B%TR

note a)
iz

At 1 April 2010 RZE-TENA—H 417,860 343,385 8,799 43678 179,057 491 29823 2212381 3501474
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - - - 197972 191,972
Exchange difference on translation of BERNHBLR

operations of overseas subsidiaries, BhE N AR

associates and jointly DPEIEBREEL

controlled entities INERBER - - - - - - 1360 - 13670
Change in fair value of available-forsale AT E 2 IR EH)

nvestments, net DHERS 38 - - - (948) - - - - (248)
Gain on Share Exchange R s

(note 48(o}iv) (P 48bliv) - - - - - - - 1300 1320
Total comprehensive (expensel/income~ EFRE (L) /

for the year lenvta - - - (948) - - 130 799292 933014
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - - - - [ierse (31198
Share option granted by a listed —BLTRBRFET

subsidiary — consultancy services BiRE- BRI

received &% - - - - - 3478 - - 3476
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(notes 48cYi) and 48d) (=480 481 - - - - - - e - %
Gain on partial disposal of interest in HE—FETHBAR

a listed subsidiary PpiEz e

note b] (tb) - 21740 - - - - - - 2174
At 31 March 2011 R_E——F

ZA=t-H 417,860 365,125 8,799 42730 179,057 3367 2897 2692475 4132610
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37 RESERVES (continued) 37 RE®

The Group (continued) AEBE(E)
Other
Capital ~ Investment assets Share  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation ~revaluation option fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
B k& HttEE  BRE ERA
RAEE BARE EERE EMRE ERRE e IEBEE REEA bl
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BETr B¥Tr B¥%Tn BT BT B¥Tr B%Tr  A¥Tn
[note a)
(=)
At T April 2011 RZE——4NA—A 417,860 365,125 8,799 2,130 179,057 3,967 42591 2692415 4132610
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - - - 657807 657897
Exchange difference on translationof ~ HEESNHB AT
operations of overseas subsidiaries, e N A R AR
assaciates and jointly CEVEBRMESEL
controlled entities HNERBER = = - - - - 69,361 - 69,361
Change in fair value of avallable-forsale AT E 7 1R EH)
investments, net MEEE FE - - - 64 - = - - 64
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEREZREN
investments transferred to consolidated R ERIREEZE
income statement GalER - - - 765 - - - - 165
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHLEY
investments transferred to consolidated AR EEE
income statement SANER - - - (8,669) - - - - (8,669)
Exchange difference released upon HE—RIBMENT
disposal of an associate TR NER
{note 48(e) Z 8 (348e)) - - - - - - 1492 - 1492
Total comprehensive (expensel/income ~~ EE2E () /W
forthe year &% - - - (7.840) - - 7085 657897 720910
Dividends paid BRERE = = = = - - - (281m3)  (28173)
Share options granted by a lsted —BLTRBRAET
subsidiary - consultancy services BRE-CERER
received fRi% - - - - - 3,009 - - 3,009
Cancellation of share options granted by~ 5F35— R EMTB A A
a listed subsiciary S 1] = = = - - (6.976) - 6,976 =
Acqisition of additional interests Il B Al B
in subsidiaries 1B - (1,254) - - - - - - (1,258)
Disposal of a listed subsidiary HE—f ETHBAR
{note 48(c)i) (P 48(clil) - (301) (14) - - - (332) 405 (332)
At31 March 2012 RZE-—Z
ZA=t-H 417,860 363,480 8,785 34,890 179,057 - 493118 3149580 4,646,770
Notes: BT
(@) The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the (a) HHREIBREBAZEEESHEE  BEAR
past including redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation AIEM KREREZHFRALAL -
of Group entities.
(b) On 28 June 2010, CPHL issued 119,695,000 new shares to an b) RZZE—ZF A-F+NH ELZGm—8%

independent third party with net cash proceeds of HK$61,234,000.
Immediately after the transaction, the Group's interest in CPHL
decreased from 57.01% to 54.14%. The resulting gain on deemed
disposal of interest in the subsidiary of HK$21,740,000 was accounted

for in equity directly.
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37 RESERVES (continued) 37 FiEe
The Company AAF

Capital Investment
Share Contributed redemption revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
T kg
BROEE AARR HERE ENARE  REEA e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B%Tr BRTr EETT  B%Tr  ENTR

(note)
(FizE)

At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZTFMA—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 45111 1,231,723 1,798,906
Change in fair value of available-for-sale FJ{EHE ZIREH AL E

investments, net 2E o FH - - - (948) - (948)
Loss for the year (note 14) FEFHERMEY) - - - - (35,336) (35,336)
Total comprehensive expense FERELH

for the year ok - - - (948) (35,336) (36,284)
Dividends paid BERRE - - - - (319.198)  (319,198)
At 31 March 2011 RZZ—%=A=1+—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 44,163 871,189 1,443,424
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AI{tHE 7 REM AL

investments, net 2y 58 = = = 830 = 830
Gain on disposal of available-forsale  HERfHE ZHEH

investments transferred to income Wiz

statement xR - - - (8,669) - (8,669)
Profit for the year (note 14) FRRF (H14) - - - - 211,501 211,501
Total comprehensive (expensel/income  FE2E (X 1),/

for the year W1 %E - - - (7,839) 211,501 203,662
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - (208,173)  (208,173)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——%=F=+—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 36,324 880,517 1,438913
Note: Bz
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net BABBRDRRABENB AR 2 EEFEMEWE
assets of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company's BATETARTIRNCEEBERMEZE - RIEARE
shares issued for their acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 (C—NN—FRENE)  RARZEARBTIAHE DR
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is available for AR i o

distribution to shareholders.
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38 DEFERRED TAXATION
The Group
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting years:

38 IELEHIE

AEH
TR ANERFER BT 2 RFEERLZ

TBRERBEEE (BE) REED

Accelerated Revaluation Allowance
tax of for doubtful Tax
depreciation  properties  Trademark debts losses Others Total
niE
BERE EfNE BE  RIERE BHESE Hith Fok]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BYTT BT B¥Trn B%Tx B%Tr  B¥Tx
At 1 April 2010 —T-TFMNA—H 44723 94,823 17,824 (228) (36,357) 5511 126,296
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(b)iv)) WtBE B 2 & (B zE48(bliv)) (1,788) - 2251 - - 1,956 2419
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(cl(i)) i S BHE 22 &) (B 48(cil) 107 - (16,335) - - - 16,228)
Exchange realignment ER AR 144 3,265 - - (67) 249 3597
Charged/[credited) to consolidated EFEGANER

income statement for the year e,/ (GEA)

[note 11) (Mﬁz ) (3,335 2632 (266) 23 12027 12,146 23436
At 31 March 2011 WZZE——F=Zf=+—H 39,851 100,720 3414 4 (24,391) 19,862 139,520
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(bl(i) WE%MTE A (BE48(b)i)) 1,894 = = = = = 1,894
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(cl(il)  tH &M B2 7 (K 7E48(c)i)) - - (30) - - = (30)
Exchange realignment ER AR 134 3,165 - - 479 3,780
Charged/(credited) to consolidated EFERANGER

income statement for the year ECYAEIN)

[note 11) (FzE11) 191 6,655 (175) 2% 4774 (4,941) 8248
At 31 March 2012 —E-—F=A=+—H 43,790 110,540 3,269 28 (19,615) 15,400 153,412
For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position BRAEAUMBHRRARZEFR  BEFEE
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been MIEEENABELSEERE - EERIBASRIE
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for IR ERSe 2 oM ET
financial reporting purposes:

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Deferred tax liabilities R EEE 166,884 151,898
Deferred tax assets FEFIBE E (13.472) (12,378)
153,412 139,520

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$1,977,797,000 (2011: HK$1,956,393,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$118,876,000 (2011:
HK$147,829,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$1,858,921,000 (2011:
HK$1,808,564,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in tax losses are losses of HK$46,603,000 (2011:
HK$74,099,000) of subsidiaries in Mainland China that will gradually
expire until 2014, the remaining tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$14,395,000 (2011: HK$12,099,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be
payable on the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such
amounts are expected to be reinvested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$14,449,000 (2011:
HK$8,597,000). A deferred tax asset has not been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the Directors of the Company, the chief
operating decision-maker, that are used to make strategic decisions.
The Directors consider the business from a product/service
perspective. Principal activities of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering
work for aluminium building materials and curtain walls, building
construction, electrical and mechanical, lifts and escalators, pipe
rehabilitation and environmental contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except
aircraft, aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in
securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, senior housing and hotel operations.

Food and beverage: Restaurant and bar business, and branded
coffee shop business.

Computer and information communication technology and
others: Sale and servicing of information technology equipment
and business machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor
vehicles, and grocery trading.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated income statement, except that it also includes
the Group's share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled
entities on a proportionate consolidated basis. The sales from
associates and jointly controlled entities to the Group and sales
between individual associates and jointly controlled entities are not
eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results. This measurement
includes the Group's share of results of associates and jointly
controlled entities on a proportionate consolidated basis.
Unallocated corporate expenses, finance income and costs, income
tax expenses and other major items that are isolated and non-
recurring in nature are not included in segment results.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current
assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position except deferred tax assets, prepaid tax, unallocated bank
balances and cash and other unallocated assets.
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-

9 SEEE )
NEAGETE &‘]{E REMBARRKRAEE 2R

current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement @gﬁ&#méj}gﬁ EEHREHRARE - iR
of financial position except current income tax liabilities, bank TER  EEREBEAEREMKSECEERID

borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.

Revenue and results ONSE S
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverage and others Total
BER
BER RER MR
BRI BE ES £ Htth a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
BETT BET T BET T BRI BETT BETT
For the year ended BE-E-C-F
31 March 2012 ZA=t-HLEE
REVENUE KA
Total revenue FON 1,692,951 276,430 608,696 511433 161,720 3911.230
Inter-segment revenue HEZREBA - (10,980) (47.119) - (3351) (61,450)
Group revenue £EHA 1,692,951 265,450 561,577 511433 758,369 3,849,780
Share of revenue of associates and jointly FME BENAR
controlled entities HEFHIGERA 1912920 - 54,355 11932 509,115 259514
Proportionate revenue froma jointly controlled 2 455K E—FE£R
entity eliminated BHICEZRE IR (52,948) - = = = (52,948)
Segment revenue FERA 3552,923 265,450 615932 690,757 1,267,484 6,392,546
RESULTS E3
Segment profit/(loss) 2ERR/ (BB 208,860 (4,545) 408,866 249 (2.031) 635,563
Included in segment profit/{loss) are: PERA/(FE)RE:
Share of results of associates NS ES 104,205 - 2,28 (15,545) (15.430) 94478
Share of resuls of jointly controlled entities FriEARERIRERE 49 - (62522) - - (62,033)
Depreciation and amortisation, net of capitalisation 572 55 - MBEA( (3672) (1,019) (41,602) (26,626) (1,786) (74,705)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMEZDAEEM - - 255,546 - - 255,546
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 91  BiE RaRfE 2 REER - - (4,338) (518) - (4,856)
Impaiment loss on prepaid lease payments BEABEFERESE - - (2.876) - = (2.876)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HthEFEE CHESR (12177) - - - - (12171
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments ~ FJ{X & 7 5% BRI AR - (765) - - - (765)
Impairment loss on amount due from Y BB ARREL
an associate HEEE = = = (5.994) = (5,994)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through 172 1t (B 51| N B2 5238
profit or loss, net JRENAERIG  FE - 17,753 - - - 17,753
Write back/{down) of inventories to net realisable B3 /(¥ T &2
value, net EEEE  FE 3215 - - - (1,852) 1423
Write back of properties for sale tonetrealisable &S EY £ E A EH
value EE - - 2312 - - 2312
Unrealised (loss}/gain on derivative financial ﬁiﬁﬁ i‘%IEZﬁ”iﬁ
instruments, net B) /W % - (3.221) - 16,074 - 12841
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

39 2EERE)

Revenue and results (continued) WAREE (B
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverage and others Total
Bk
E@a
BER RER B R
I 3 nE 8 i ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
For the year ended HE-E—-F
31 March 2011 ZA=T-BLEE
REVENUE WA
Total revenue al\ 1,827 583 181,834 426,752 392,261 745,020 3513450
Inter-segment revenue AEZHERA - (11,554] (48,168 - (22547) (62,269)
Group revenue SEMA 1,827,583 170,280 318,584 392,261 122473 3491181
Share of revenue of associates and jointly FiEBENAR
controlled entities HEEIREUA 1479231 - 343,764 59575 477,96 2,3604%
Proportionate revenue froma jointly controlled 2 4447k B — R £
entity eliminated Tl R A (9,192) - - - - (9%,192)
Segment revenue bix::L/ON 3210622 170,280 722,348 451,83 1,200,399 5,755,485
RESULTS 5
Segment profit/(loss) SERR/ (B8) 114372 (35,779) 348,173 (40,083) (13034) 373649
Included in segment profit/{loss) are: PERF/ (B8 B
Share of results of associates Ak ERREE 7443 - 32,055 2000 (2484) 106027
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FEREGICE£E 3% - (13.663) - - (13,264)
Depreciation and amortisation, net of capitalisation #7E k&8 « KA AL (6.714) (1,057) (24445 (25318 (2,09) (59,593)
Increase in fair value of investment properties R EWE 7 AR BN - - 163174 - - 163,174
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment %)% + BiE Rk 2 REER - - (7.238) (1,960) - 9,198)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments BAREFELRERE - - (5,029 - - (5,029
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHESR - - - 31,390) B117) (36.,507)
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value through 1272 /2 (B3I AT 2R IE
profit or loss, net LRARAZRER 58 - (593) - - - (593)
Write back/|down) of inventories to net realisable B¢ /(5 F 5 %
value, net ERFE FE 1810 - - - (7.721) (5917
Write back of properties for sale tonet realisable  EIAGENEZ LR
value FE - - 8348 - - 8,348
Unrealised gain/{loss) on derivative financial ITESBIAZRER
instruments, net W/ (B8) 38 - 0178 - (9954) - 10224

BN BZERAZRZZERABEEKRENS
BIRETE -

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management
with reference to market prices.

123



CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B B4 M BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39 2 EER @
Revenue and results (continued) WAREER(E)
Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group's revenue in the KA A B AR EE NG A W R R WA
consolidated income statement as follows: PRI :
2012 2011
—E——fF ZT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total segment revenue LR A 6,392,546 5,755,485
Add: Proportionate revenue from a jointly controlled  ji : B ¥ #8525k B — B RIZEHIDE 2
entity eliminated LI A 52,948 96,192
Less: Share of revenue of associates and jointly B TR B A R R LR
controlled entities DEUA
Construction and installation contracts BENTELN 1,608,836 1,193,663
Sale of information technology equipment, BB E  ABEREMZ
motor vehicles and others HE 508,880 477,926
Food and beverage B8R 119,324 59,575
Sales and leasing of properties YEHERES 30,851 322,432
Provision of maintenance and property RHERERYESE
management AR 7 304,543 285,750
Hotel operations G E 23,280 21,150
2,595,714 2,360,496
Total revenue in the consolidated income statement  FA4RA Uizs 3 2 42 A 3,849,780 3,491,181
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided SRBE R AEH 2 SR T ¢
as follows:
2012 2011
—ZT——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment profit babinvil 635,563 373,649
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEEHTB ARz W 135,426 217,361
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EEE Qa2 W 44,333 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and their related jointly € [t/ A &) & L AHRE L E 5 % 2
controlled entities Wezs - 377,701
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEESE (21,029) (25,247)
Finance income B 8,528 14,225
Finance costs B 7% & A (31,705) (13,692)
Profit before taxation R 5 A A1) 771,116 943,997
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

39 7 EER @)

Assets and liabilities EERERE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverage and others Total
EER
BER REBR RER
BRI RE nE &8 Hitr aE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI BETT
As at 31 March 2012 RZE-Z#=F=+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,280,476 989,356 6,684,121 394,010 842,185 10,190,148
Included in seqment assets are; DREERE:
Interests in associates FriblE Nal En 312833 - 125,643 40,665 119,887 929,028
Interests in jointly controlled entities TGRS 2 s 125,869 - 549,264 - = 675,133
Amounts due from associates R A A RIIE S 1278 - - 1942 - 32,163
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities EUARIESIN E0R T 1 - 557,201 - - 557,286
Additions to non-current assets [note) NEFRBEET) 15,631 485 1263117 43,388 761 1,323,382
LIABILITIES =1
Segment liabilities HEEE 1,223 951 499,956 209,967 11238 75,859 2,086,977
As at 31 March 2011 RZE——F=R=1-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 1,071,943 959,792 4,867,662 315397 608419 7883213
Included in seqment assets are; DREERE:
Interests in associates bl e Nal En 9229 - 108,530 57,056 166,126 624,002
Interests in jointly controlled entities PTG ERIERIC 2 s 12,405 - 494752 - - 507,157
Amounts due from associates AN 19.276 - - 556 118,004 137836
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities U HRIESINE0R T - - 216,897 - - 216,897
Additions to non-current assets [note) NEFRBEET) 1212 69 444228 107,026 989 559 584
LIABILITIES =1
Segment liabilities HEEE 1,186,567 314,745 158,287 80,386 86,225 1,826,210
Included in segment liablites is PEEERE:
Amounts due to associates EREBEARIRR % - - - - 293
Note: BT -

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments
(including interests in associates and jointly controlled entities) and deferred

tax assets.

Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and

liabilities is provided as follows:

EADS  ERBEETREN B TA(BRIEME
AR RS 3 2 e ) MBI R A E -

DHEERAEEBEERABZHKRDT

2012 2011

—F—=F =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BEET T

Segment assets DB E 10,190,148 7,883,213
Unallocated bank balances and cash AORITEENIES 382,617 692,241
Other unallocated assets HiADBLEE 19,336 19,922
Total assets BmEE 10,592,101 8,595,376
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

e MR MEE

9 PEERE

Assets and liabilities (continued) EEREE®H)
2012 2011
=F—=F i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Segment liabilities DEEE 2,086,977 1,826,210
Bank borrowings HRITER 2,980,271 1,670,465
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 166,884 151,898
Other unallocated liabilities HEAPBLEE 40,399 67,405
Total liabilities BefE 5,274,531 3,715,978

Geographical information thEE R

The Group's operations in construction and engineering are mainly
located in Hong Kong and Macau. Insurance and investment
business is conducted in Hong Kong. Property operations are mainly
carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore, Canada and
the United States of America (“USA"). Food and beverage business
is carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Australia.
Computer and information communication technology operations
are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Thailand. Other operations
are carried out in Canada and USA.

The associates’ and jointly controlled entities’ operations in
construction and engineering are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Singapore, USA, Australia and Europe. Property
operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Food and beverage business is carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Singapore. Other operations are carried out in Mainland
China.

REEFEEREM T ETI2ERENRPTE
1F - R LI EXRBHERBEE - WEEHE
REERE - PEAM - FIK - NEAKREF
BARE([XE])EF - EREBERAS - B
B A RPIRORIMNEE - B R EFBAR
BREBETEEDHERFBEE - R EBEM
EAREBE

B nm RARES R EEREMTIZR
BEERES - hEIAM - BN - 6 R
MEBNEE - MELEEBTENTERT
BAMEE - BREBNEE - PEAMRH
DB R - B2 A AR P B A HEE

Segment revenue by geographical market

BB HE S 20 BBA
Associates Associates
Company  and jointly Company ~ and jointly
and  controlled 2012 and controlled 201
subsidiaries entities Total subsidiaries entities Total
BENAR BENAR
ARRR  HAEEH —B-fF ARER AR —E-—F
HEAE % k] MBAT % Fat]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
BETr A%Tn BET % ABETr BETr A%t %
Hong Kong a5 2,658,458 483,666* 3,142,124 49 2405882 431249 2,837,131 49
Mainland China REIAM 44725 1512918 1,617,643 2% 38,016 1,485,635 1,523,651 26
Canada mex 383420 - 383420 6 347,89 - 347,89 6
Macau oA 321,143 - 321143 5 497,714 - 497,714 8
Singapore s 1621 284,716 296,337 4 13409 149,69 163,105 3
USA % 246,987 3923 250,910 4 111,684 15310 126,99 2
Australia SN 131,781 38,944 170,125 3 32,688 54,388 87,076 2
Europe BUM - 141,666 141,666 2 - 119518 119,518 2
Thailand Bo3El| 39127 - 39127 1 33,281 - 33,281 1
Others Hity 12518 16,933 29,451 1 10,611 8,508 19,119 1
3849780 2542766 6,392,546 100 3491181 2,264,304 5,755,485 100

*  The proportionate revenue from a jointly controlled entity is eliminated.
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39 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39 7 EER @
Geographical information (continued) wEER (&)
The Group maintains healthy and balanced portfolio of customer AEBREERL TG EPHESE - HEZZE
basis. No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue ——FR_FE——FZA=Z+—HILFE #
of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. BEFPIEAREEZ EWAEI0%TIA L -
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current T ARSI A(BIEEEE AR RERE
assets other than financial instruments (including interests in HIDEE RS ) MIBEIERI B & E LAINMEH R &)
associates and jointly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets ZIERBEERMEDN :

analysed by geographical area:

Non-current assets
FREBEE

2012 2011
—ZT——fF —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Hong Kong &5 2,616,533 1,628,456
Mainland China R P9 A 1,500,776 1,343,574
Singapore N 325,694 259,261
USA e 286,183 19,428
Canada IEX 185,321 191,237
Macau SRS 33,015 35,351
Australia SR 23,827 27,802
Others Hitb 22,157 18,923
4,993,506 3,524,032
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40 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER 0 BEREMERERE ZFEDR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in BETRENS  REBESHBAZEE -2
business combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and B g AAEEREMIRNERSE R
others are allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected BEB BT EER S B IR ES B -
to benefit from such intangible assets. The respective carrying RZE——FER-T——F=A=+—H " &
amounts as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 had been allocated as ABZIEEEDESRNOT -
follows:
Favourable
Goodwill Licenses  Trademarks leases Others

[k R BE  ANEE Hity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETrT  BETr  BNTR  BETR

Cost B
Construction and engineering BERKWIRE

~ roads, drainage and waterworks (note a) —EB¥  RERKBIRE(MTa) - 26534 - - -
Insurance and investment R RIEE = = = - 5,020
Property mE

—cold storage and public bonded warehouse noteb)  — 2 B E R AR EF 2 (Hi5th) 66,027 - - - -

—senior housing (note ¢ — &R & (M) 10,253 = = = -
Food and beverage ZR

—restaurants and bars (note d) — 2B B (Fitd) 183,880 - 23,776 11,855 -
Others Hfb

~ natural resources —~RRER 5117 = - - -

—others —Hft = = = = 2629

265,211 26,534 23,776 11,855 1,649

Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss 2 REFE
Construction and engineering BERKEIE

~ roads, drainage and waterworks (note a) —BE  RERKBIRE(MTa) - (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment R RIEE = = = - (2.803)
Property mE

~cold storage and public bonded warehouse (noteb)  — & B A E R ARRE A (Fisth) (1,861) - - - -

—senior housing (note ) - &R & (M) = = = - -
Food and beverage ZR

~restaurants and bars (note d) — 2B EIE (i) (129,003) - (3,129 (3,705) -
Others i

~ natural resources —~RRER (5,117) = = - -

—others —Hft = = = - -

(135,581) (26,534) (3,129 (3,705) (2,803)

Net book value RZB-Z§=Zf=t—-HZ

at 31 March 2012 REFE 129,696 - 20,647 8,150 4,846
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40 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

40 BmERHEMELEERERNS

s
(48)

Favourable
Goodwill Licenses  Trademarks leases Others
B el BiE  ANHEE Hity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr AT BT B¥Tn  A%Tx

Cost B
Construction and engineering BERERTIE

~roads, drainage and waterworks (note a) — B - ERRKBEIR (M)
Insurance and investment R RIZE
Property ES

~ cold storage and public bonded warehouse [noteh) — — 4T A E R A RIRE A (FiEh)
Food and beverage Z8

— branded coffee shops — MBS

— restaurants and bars note d) —Z B ROBE (PEkd)
Others Hit

—natural resources ~RRER

—others —Hft

Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss it HEFSE

Construction and engineering BN T

~roads, drainage and waterworks (note a) — B - BB RUKE IR (Hia)
Insurance and investment R RIZE
Property S

~ cold storage and public bonded warehouse [noteh)  — 4 A E R A RIRE A (Pith)
Food and beverage Z8

— branded coffee shops — RIS

— restaurants and bars [note d) — BB RORE (PEkd)
Others Hit

—natural resources ~RRER

—others —Hfty
Net book value RZB-—§=f=1+-H2

at 31 March 2011 IREFE

129

- 26,534 - - -

- - - - 5317

66,027 3,000 - - -
1172 - - - -
191,431 - 239771 11,855 -
5117 - - - -

- - - - 2629
263,747 29,634 239771 11,855 7,946
- (14,357) - - -

- - - - (2,074)
(1,461) (2,731) - - -
(1172) - - - -
(129,003) - (1,897) (741) -
(5,117) - - - -
(136,753) (17,09) B (_1L8?Z) o (_7fH_) L (_2,_[]_71})
126,994 12,440 22,080 1114 5812
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40 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER

40 BHERHEMBELEEZRERNHR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) ()

The Group tests goodwill and other intangible assets annually for
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they
might be impaired.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the higher of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell. Both
approaches require the entity to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate present value.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverage operation
are determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while
recoverable amounts of CGUs for remaining operations are
determined from value-in-use calculations approach.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to
estimate the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs. Management estimates appropriate
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. Management
determined budgeted growth rates and gross margins based on
past performance and market expectation. The discount rates used
are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

Notes:
(a) Roads, drainage and waterworks business

Licences, after amortisation and impairment, of Nil (2011: HK$12,177,000)
is allocated to the Group's roads, drainage and water works business.
The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on value-
in-use approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-
year period.

As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment loss
of HK$26,534,000 (2011: HK$14,357,000) was made on licenses
allocated to the Group's roads, drainage and waterworks business.
Management is of the view that such impairment has resulted in the
view of unstable economic environment in relation to such business.
The loss has been included in other gains, net in these consolidated
financial statements.
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40 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$64,566,000 (2011: HK$64,566,000)
and licences, after amortisation, of Nil (2011: HK$263,000) are
allocated to the Group's cold storage and public bonded warehouse
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based
on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum and a discount rate of
7% per annum.

Senior housing business

Senior housing business was acquired in the financial year. No
impairment is made on goodwill of HK$10,253,000 allocated to the
Group's senior housing business. The estimated recoverable amount
is determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-
year period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate per annum and a
discount rate of 11.5% per annum.

Restaurant and bar business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$54,877,000 (2011: HK$62,428,000)
and trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$20,647,000 (2011:
HK$22,080,000) and favourable leases after amortisation of
HK$8,150,000 (2011: HK$11,114,000) are allocated to the Group's
restaurant and bar business. The estimated recoverable amount
is determined based on fair value less costs to sell approach. The
calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash
flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth
rate per annum up to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum
from the sixth year to fifteen year and a discount rate of 15% per
annum.

131

o

58 R AR RE 2R E A

i ()

RERERABRRYA XS

BB % 164,666,000 0 ( ZF——F : B
64,566,0007T ) < BB R HEE(ZT——F ¢
75 #5263,00070) R DL EAEE 2 A A E
RRABRBBER o (At il RS BTy IRERF
BELET - AHTEFRERENZZ —FH
PRBEZBREESRERE - BB —FHz
REREFRTFI%ZIERERMEIRFRT % H
:g’: °

LERE XD

TEREEETIRATREE AR - wHEEE
REBE R ER & T2 BB 110,253,0007T
WHERE - Gt E SR RERFEEEE
E o BETEERATEREEI R —FHIKEE
ZHBBRERSREEN - BA—FHBRERE
FRGFA% 2 ERERLAIEF R 5%HE -

BRENBEEXS

FE R B 54,877,0000 (T —— 4 : B
62,428,0007T ) 2 P& - #$51&5 120,647,000
TT(=ZF——4F : B%22080,0007T) 2 &=
T #4514 78 18,150,000C ( — T ——4 : B
11,114,0007) 2 BB EW A EEAEE 2 &
BERBIEER o Bt kB IIE AR EINR
HEKANEAETE - BE-TEEREREREZ Y —
FHMBEEE BB RSRETEN - BB —F
HrRERETREFEI% T BRREEFEREF
WHRERNFEFTRAFZTHRE R FR
15%HHE -



CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B4 M A BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

41 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows:

N EERER

ESME
ENRENTESEZMESNT

ITHRABZME

2012
—E——F
Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and scheme
fee other benefits contribution Total
Hek BINGTE
B HitntgFl Z R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BT T
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) B (EE) - 11,755 - 11,755
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and S/E(BIEEFEE
Managing Director) AT ) - 11,000 375 11,375
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) BB 45 (52 F 404812 ) - 8,000 233 8,233
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEMEIE - 2,800 135 2,935
Ho Chung Leung fa] SRR - 2,400 135 2535
Ma Chi Wing BELE - 1,360 80 1,440
Lily Chow (note a) JAFIF (B 5Ea) - 404 30 434
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph# JEIRR R 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* TR 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* BE = 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William 2EE 100 - - 100
750 31,119 988 39,457
2011
—_=F 77&
Retirement
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fee other benefits contribution Total
ek RIRETE
i HAb @ 2R “aTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors HITEE
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) EpYAEYED) - 13,920 - 13,920
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and BEBEFEEFEF
Managing Director) ABATEE ) - 7,200 375 7,575
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 32 B 48 (5|2 FE4845HE ) - 5,200 233 5,433
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEHEIE - 2,800 120 2,920
Ho Chung Leung ﬂﬂa’% - 2,400 135 2,535
Ma Chi Wing (note b) BEL(FIFED) - 819 46 865
Non-Executive Directors FETES
Chow Ming Kuen, Josepht JEIRA #EE# 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* R E 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* HiE = 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William =54 100 - - 100
750 32,339 909 33,998
#  Independent Non-Executive Director O BNIEITES
Notes: Fi%E
(a) Appointed on 1 December 2011. (a) MNZZE——F+_A—HEZME-
(b)  Appointed on 1 September 2010. (b) RZZE—TFHA—BEZT-
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41 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND N EBRESRITHRAEZHE @)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Employees’ emoluments EEME
The five highest paid individuals include three (2011: three) Directors, FEEadMATEE=2(22——F : =
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments ZVEE FEZMEHBEHE WL - T
paid to the remaining two (2011: two) highest paid individuals are as EHMEZ(ZZE—F : MB)ZoHFMALZ
follows: BEA
2012 2011
—EB-C=fF —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ha o RN EMET 2,863 2,725
Performance-based bonus BRIV TELL 4,856 5,244
Contributions to retirement scheme RRETEI 2 103 101
1,822 8,070
The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two) highest paid BB (ZE——F : MB) &Mz At
individuals fall within the following bands. Az En = T YR
2012 2011
—B—CfF —E——5F
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 #5452,500,001 7T - 353,000,007 - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 757£3,000,0017T — 7 #53,500,0007T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 774,000,001 7T — 7 #54,500,0007T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 7 #55,000,0017T — 7 #£5,500,0007T = 1
2 2
The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees LimMEEREESIN M TTAREEZ
also represent only benefits paid to the Group's key management — =A==+ HLFERALEEETEEE
during the year ended 31 March 2012. Bz E—EF o
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42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2012, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of

2 AREE
R-ZE——F=A=+—8 AEEAECEH

guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: AEFmMEEZEROKARBES
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner By —Z288BH2R1TEE 168,300 168,300
Banking facilities granted to associates BTYBENRZRITEE 133,872 218,941
302,172 387,241
At 31 March 2012, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect R-ZZE——F=ZA=+—H ARFEEEH
of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: BEFmMELZERNIAEBES
2012 2011
=F—=F i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries BTHEBAEZIBITEE 1,734,062 650,254
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner By —Z88BH2R1TEE 168,300 168,300
Banking facilities granted to associates BRYBENRZIRITEE 133,872 218,941
Performance bonds and demand bonds of subsidiaries [ A RIRIEE T4 K2 BAMRE
under certain contracts RIBRE 56,334 113,002
2,092,568 1,150,497

At 31 March 2012, the Group's share of contingent liabilities of its
jointly controlled entities was as follows:

RZE-——F=RA=+—H  rEEMEEH
RIEHEE 2 RARBENT

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities BTRITRE T RRENEZ
granted to certain buyers of the jointly controlled MENETERZIRBEE
entities’ properties ER 70,938 151,626
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43 COMMITMENT
At 31 March 2012, the Group had commitment as follows:

43 EiE

R-ZB——HF=A=+—H  AEEZ&EN

T
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted but not provided for in the consolidated Bt 51|78 B B 25 5] & #1{BRTE4R S B 75
financial statements in respect of WMERANEHR ZFAIE
—acquisition of plant and equipment —BARE L& 3,524 m
— a property development project ——{EmEERIER 74,94 101,954
— acquisition of a subsidiary —BEA—EKBAR = 583975
78,465 686,700
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of m—EYEREIELD CIEBREET
a property development project BH 7 HEIE 2,521,141 2,513,731
2,605,606 3,200,431

At 31 March 2012, the Group's share of the commitment of its
jointly controlled entities was as follows:

RZZTE——F=A=+—H  AEBEMEEHE

R 5 2 AHE T

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Contracted but not provided for EEAERETE 186,693 288,756
Authorised but not contracted for BEHUEBREL 300,715 412,368
487,408 701,124
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44 OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

44 EERE

FEBEEREBEA
AEEGEFHERBAIHE S EHEM
ARRRZ Mz HERESFE - BOERHAW
™

2012 2011

—E-—fF —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —FNR 85,229 80,506
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZRFAN(BHEERMSE) 178,782 154,013
QOver five years AFLA L 61,559 64,181
325,570 298,700

The above lease commitments only include commitments for
basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental
payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible
to determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties and
completed properties for sale with a carrying value of approximately
HK$2,468,174,000 (2011: HK$1,411,432,000) and HK$37,664,000
(2011: HK$57,775,000) respectively were rented out under
operating leases. These properties have committed tenants within
the next five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable
by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods is as follows:

FPREEAZEBRBRERESAE U TEHE
BIMNENTES (RAMES) (IF) 2 A - 2%
BIMEE —MREMARRFEEZERBALRE
MEZEAHEMETE - AU AT ELEE
BIMAE ZFRER ©

AEBEAHEA

RBMERR UEEHRHELHEZEEY
XFCEERNGTEVEZRBEI NGO A
B ¥ 2468174000 (ZFE ——F + B
1,411,432,0007T ) & /& 37,664,000 (==&
——4F : #¥EL57,775,0007T) © L EYEERE
AR ARAFRNEA o AEBPN 5 HH
BIETATEEz EEREMRRKER Z ZIE
HESTEWT

2012 2011

=F—=F —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —FER 81,246 29,881
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFN(BREEEMT) 143,507 11,398
224,753 41,279
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45 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 45 BBIRRESTE

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme") was adopted
by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20
September 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will
expire on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit") or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders. Each grant of options to any Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by Independent Non-
executive Directors. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director or any
of their respective associates would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already
granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in
the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in
advance by the Company'’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of
Directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will
not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s
share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the share
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of options which can be granted is 25,502,240 shares. No
options have been granted or exercised under the Scheme during
the year and none are outstanding as at 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).
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46 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes"”) established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. For members of
the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll
costs per employee, at a maximum of HK$1,000 per month, to the
mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes
are funded by monthly contributions from both employees and the
Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic
salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes
in countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group
is required to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a
certain percentage or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31
March 2012 and 2011, there were no forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. The
amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during
the year was HK$154,000 (2011: HK$7,000). At 31 March 2012,
contributions of HK$1,849,000 (2011: HK$2,785,000) due in respect
of the reporting period were paid over to variance schemes in April
2012.
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41 BEREATZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with RAFEEEBEALZEERFHBUOT ¢

related parties are as follows:

2012 2011
—E-—F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Building management fee income from an associate B —fEt & AR ZIEFEEBIA 1,591 1,591
Interest income from associates (note 6) BEEE A E 2 F B (FFFE6) 5,691 5,341
Interest income from jointly controlled entities (note 6) £ FERIFZ & (& % 2 LB U A (Fi7E6) - 8,194
Management fee income from associates (note 6) BEE AR 2 BB EIWA(MIFE6) 25,421 21,280
Management fee income from jointly controlled BHEEZEHIREZEEBIRA
entities (note 6) (Ff56) 1,850 16,089
Management fee to an associate By —EBE AR ZERER (349) (349)
Maintenance fee to an associate BT —MEHE AR ZREER (9,244) (9,244)
Rental income from an associate ERE)HNCI = ol PN 17,239 16,519
Rental expenses to an associate wy—HBE AR cEeT T (160) (160)
Sales and marketing services income from B—ES A AnZHER
an associate (note 6) TS E RS A (FiE6) 23,524 19,827
Secondment fee income from an associate B—RBta R R 2 ERABWA 528 528
Service charges income from an associate A—EiE AR 2 REERKRA - 700
Contract income from jointly controlled entities BRI EZELRA 105,884 192,384
Contract services fee to associates BTBERNEZANRBER (12,508) (12,508)
Contract income from associates BEE R A2 E KA 14,635 12,940
Sales of food and beverage to an associate HET B2 QR 2 &N 1,690 440
Purchases of food and beverage from an associate m—EBENAREE 2B (84) (547)
The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be AFEEES(RENMERALEETEEEER
key management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 41. 8) 7 FME R KisEsT -
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 18 FEBELSRERME
FLOWS

140

(a) Cash generated from operating activities (a) REQSREKES
2012 2011
—ZE——fF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation B Fd BT Y A1) 771,116 943,997
Adjustments for: P
Share of results of associates FTiGEE & AR 3EE (94,478) (106,027)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FTAG HE ARSI S EE 62,033 13,264
Interest income from bank deposits RITHERZFEMA (8,528) (14,225)
Interest income from associates BEtE AT 2 FEWA (5,691) (5,341)
Interest income from jointly controlled entities B HEE S 2 A EUA = (8,194)
Interest expenses on bank loans and overdrafts FITERREZ 2 FEEZ W 31,705 13,692
Dividend income from listed securities EmEHFZBRBMA (22,147) (27,650)
Depreciation e 68,425 54,166
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AT E B 351 390
Amortisation of other intangible assets E A& A 5,929 5,037
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEYE 7 N EEN (255,546) (163,174)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME NG - (799)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE MR EREMAE
equipment and prepaid lease payments EFIE 2 W (19,871) (247)
Gain on disposal of HENTRIE 2 W
—CPHL —H+zE: (135,426) -
— remaining 25% interest in Sekisui SPR — Sekisui SPRER T~ 25%#E 25 (44,333) -
—80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group —Pacific Coffee = [ 2 80%4& %% = (217,361)
— Citiway Group —HEEE - (169,431)
— Smartco Group —Smartco5E B - (208,270)
Loss/(gain) on investments at fair value through BRARBEIIAEBREIE LA
profit or loss, net B8 (Uzs) « B 13,019 (3,965)
Loss on derivative financial instruments, net TTHEB BT A EE - 55 1,505 51,898
Bad debts written off/{recovered), net oA, (BYE) 2 8k - SHEE 781 (1,628)
(Write back|/write down of inventories to ([E15) /Mo & = n] 215
net realised value FE (1.423) 5917
Write back of properties for sale to EEFEMEZ IR
net realisable value FE (2.312) (8,348)
Amortisation of properties for sale FEYEENY - 878
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y% - B kB2 RE
equipment &1 4,856 9,198
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments FENHAERIE 2 RERBE 2,876 5,029
Impairment loss on goodwill &2 R EEE - 36,507
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HEivmEEE 2 RERE 12177 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AMEEE 2 RE ZRE
investments E1E 765 -
Impairment loss on amount due from FEU— & A RIIRR 2
an associate BB E 5,994 -
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary — M LM E R RS T 2 AR E
— consultancy services received — BRI ARE 5,558 6,420
Operating cash flows before movements BEESHERI L E
in working capital RERE 397,335 211,733
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 18 BABERERME @)
FLOWS (continued)

(a) Cash generated from operating activities (continued) (a) REKLEEKRIES(E)
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Changes in working capital BIEESEH
Net decrease/(increase) in investments at BRARBIIANEBRERE ZIRE
fair value through profit or loss B () FE 57,338 (45,423)
Increase in properties under development R EZE (97,465) (324,140
Deposits repaid from a property development BEEHREANM—IEYEERETELR
project in Mainland China paiko - 115,229
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL () 489 (6,879)
Decrease in properties for sale FEYERD 21,372 49,250
Increase in debtors, deposits and JEWIRSR - FHEE &
prepayments TERTRRIESE AN (357,027) (139,217)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers  Fh& 49 Ti2FE [ 2P W H 2 TR I8
for contract work (3&10),m (45,541) 1,774
Net increase in derivative financial instruments OTHE T s iniEza (12,858) (100,256)
Increase in amounts due to associates FEATEE N BIIRFRIE AN = (3,128)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling interests [ {~f 3E12 PR AE %5 TR IE 3 41 1,444 4,699
Increase in amounts due to customers for contract ~ FLA A TIRFEM T P X 2 718
work 0 9,104 67,314
Increase/|decrease) in creditors, JERPIRIR « FAR S RTBIRER
deposits and accruals 240 (i) 66,668 (44,257)
Increase in unearned insurance premiums and B R EEINN
unexpired risk reserves i8R g 108,679 43,802
Increase in outstanding insurance claims RARR R EIE N 48919 15,932
Increase in deferred income IR SE AR A U A SE N 2,407 142
Exchange difference JERZERE 19,660 44,339
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 288 (IR )KL XK RS 226,524 (109,086)
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(i) Acquisition of a company owning a property in Kwai

Chung
Pursuant to an agreement dated 6 January 2011, the
Group, through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, acquired
100% equity interest in a company owning a property in
Kwai Chung from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$675,985,000. The acquisition was
completed on 1 April 2011 and the company has become
a subsidiary of the Group.

18 GARSHBRWE W

(b) WEBKHIBLT

(i) WBEEEBURE R/ —EYEN—
NG
BE—ZT——F— A NAZW#
EEEB—HIFETENBRRIR—F
BYE=RWEEEVRER A
YEN—BRT2100%H#5 - WER
B 5 781675,985,0007T ° :Z W HEEIE
RoBE——FNA—H%K  MZA
AR BREEZHB AR

HK$'000
BET T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WHERE 2 AR -
Deposit paid as at 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F=A=+—HzEME2
(note 25) (H3E25) 102,525
Remaining cash consideration paid NS THSRE 573,460
Total purchase consideration BUFERE 675,985

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at
the date of acquisition are as follows:

UL S B AP IE AF] R R B B R
AERABENT

HK$'000
BT T
Investment properties (note 15) wEYZ (FIFE15) 686,500
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRRR ~ TFiRe RIBRFIA 744
Prepaid tax FEIHIIR 493
Creditors, deposits and accruals IR - FARS RBRER (9,858)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) EIERIE B & (Fi5E38) (1,894)
675,985
HK$'000
BT T
Acquisition-related expenses WBE B RS
(included in administrative expenses) (GFATTE ) 1,607
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: W2 RE ML
2012 2011
—B-=fF —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash consideration paid ONEERE 573,460 102,525
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 18 mEBEEHRERMT @

FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) WEERTEB AT (4&)
(i) Acquisition of a group of companies owning a property (i) WBEEUNREREZ—EWEN—
in Tsing Yi Island FERNG|
Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 May 2011, the Group, BE-_ZE——FRB=-1++tB21#H
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, acquired 100% % ANEEFA-EIERENB AR
equity interest in a group of companies owning a property ABYF=HKRBHEELNETKEZ
in Tsing Yi Island from independent third parties at an —IEMEN—HRAR Z100%E
aggregated cash consideration of HK$297,915,000. The R4 4R EABK297,915,000T ° %
acquisition was completed on 15 June 2011 and the group WEEER -—_E——F, A +tHHB®
of companies has become a group of subsidiaries of the K Miz— A ARKAENER B
Group. NI
HK$'000
BT T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WEREBZMA
Cash paid [RANEE 297,915
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at RUEE B BRFTEE A AT 38 Rl & 7 R
the date of acquisition are as follows: AIERIBENT
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y% -~ B K& (M5E16) 286,000
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUIRSR ~ 7 HiRe MBI FRIE 504
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERRS 11,434
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERRR - TEARS NTEIRE F (23)
297,915
HK$'000
BET T
Acquisition-related expenses W EE MR S
(included in administrative expenses) GtATTES H) 70
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: Wi 2 RS M EE
HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration paid ENRESNRE 297,915
Bank balances and cash acquired EBARTETF LIRS (11,434)
286,481

143



CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / H - B4 M A BR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BB AR M EE

48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
(iii) Acquisition of senior housing business

(iv)

Pursuant to an agreement dated 31 May 2011, the Group
acquired a business operating senior housing communities
in Oregon, USA, from independent third parties at
an aggregated cash consideration of US$34,338,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$266,466,000). The
acquisition was completed on 30 June 2011.

18 GARSHBRWE W

(b) UxRBM B AR (&)
(iii) WIBR ER & %5

BE-_ZFT——FHAA=Z+—BZH
HAEBRBYE=ZHAWBEEN
NEBBSHEM 2 ZERETER - B
% #R(EB A34,338,000E 7T (FHE AL
7B 15266,466,0007T) © i WEEER
“E——EXA=tHRK -

HK$'000
BT T

Purchase consideration satisfied by: WERE A -
Cash paid 28R e 266,466
Fair value of property, plant and equipment acquired (note 16) ~ FrUSBE I3 - B Mk~ A& (FHEE16) (256,213)
Goodwill arising from the acquisition (note 18) WhBE B TRE £ 2 2 (Mf5E18) 10,253

The goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired
business.

BERRIEEG CBRENES -

HK$'000
BET T
Acquisition-related expenses W B 2
(included in administrative expenses) (FEATTHZ ) 7.119
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: WiE 2 RS FEE
HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration paid BEIReRE 266,466
Business combination (iv) ¥¥K&6f

On 15 December 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement in relation to the share exchange transaction
(the “Share Exchange”) involving the exchange of an
independent third party’s 60% interest in Metro Point
Enterprise Company Limited (“Metro Point”) for a 40%
interest in Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“Sinochina”,
changed its name to Cafe Deco Holdings Limited on
19 May 2011), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Sinochina was
required to issue 400 new shares to the independent
third party that resulted in an effective disposal of a 40%
interest in Sinochina by the Group to the independent third
party (the “Sinochina Disposal”) in exchange for the total
issued share capital of Metro Point from the independent
third party to Sinochina (the “Metro Point Acquisition”).
The transaction was completed on 21 December 2010 (the
"Completion Date"”) and the Group and the independent
third party respectively hold 60% and 40% of interest in
Sinochina.
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
(iv) Business combination (continued)

As part of the Share Exchange arrangement, an amount of
HK$24,920,000 was paid by Sinochina to the independent
third party as partial repayment of the amount due to the
independent third party by a wholly owned subsidiary of
Metro Point before the Share Exchange. In this regard,
HK$9,968,000 (40% of HK$24,920,000) is deemed as part
of the consideration paid and proceeds received.

8 FRERERERME )

(b) URBERH B E] (4%
(iv) %EZ%A@F( F‘é
EAEBRORBELHEZ —1 '
Sinochina ﬁ BIE=ZFX 1‘JL /% s
24,920,0007ﬂ’ﬁ7,%ﬂ(i 5 % # BT Metro
PointZ2 &M B AR ENBILE=FH
BEREzZ XD  pitmsE B
9,968,000 7T (% 24,920,000 7T 2

40%) R AENRE KRB WEIE

DH’

285 e
Details of the net assets attributable to the Metro Point Metro Point i EIHELHEEFEZ
Acquisition are as follows: BT
HK$'000
BT T
40% of the fair value of Sinochina valued by B HER R TR H #3%Sinochina A 7t (B
an independent valuer at the Completion Date 40% 2 (H1E 24,299
Add: Deemed consideration paid e RBEENRE 9,968
34,267
Less: 60% of the fair values of net assets acquired W T ABEFE A E260%
(as shown below) (W NSCATR) (14,379)
Goodwill arising from the Metro Point Acquisition (note 18) Metro PointUi i S5 18 2 A 2 g2 (B9 3E18) 19,888

The goodwill is attributable to the service team acquired
and synergies expected to be arisen from the Metro Point

Acquisition.

The net assets of Metro Point acquired

BEZELTE
2 R RRUE

are as follows:

SRR ATUREE 2 RS
B & FE i Metro Pointi = TEE

FfrBE AMetro Pointz BEFENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ALIE]
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) WE - BB KR E(EES) 50,802 50,802
Other intangible assets — trademarks (note 19) Hith B & E — 2 (M3E19) - 13,639
Other intangible assets — favourable leases HimpyEE—BHNHEE

(note 19) (Ff5E19) - 11,855
Interest in an associate (note 21) P —FRBg 2 N B 2wk (BRE21) 841 1,064
Inventories FE 3,729 3,729
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EUER - FHIES RFENFOE 29,373 29,373
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBREEEY 35,643 35,643
Pledged bank deposits EEIRITFR 835 835
Creditors, deposits and accruals FERIER - FAKRES RIBIRER (43,208) (43,208)
Dividend payable FERTAR 2 (8,615) (8,615)
Amount due to an independent third party FERTBLE = IR (7,485) (7,485)
Amount due to Sinochina Ji& <f Sinochinall 7% (50,057) (50,057)
Current income tax liabilities EHFRSEHREaE (3,369) (3,369)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (note 38) EERRIREE,/(AE) (HiFE38) 1,788 (2.419)
Non-controlling interests FEFERG R RS (7,822) (7.822)
2,455 23,965

Non-controlling interests recognised upon the M Metro Point!it i FIR1E FTIERR 2
Metro Point Acquisition VIR (9,586)
14,379
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

18 GARSHBRWE W
(b) WEBHB AR (&)

(iv) Business combination (continued) (iv) £KE0H(E
HK$'000
BT
Acquisition-related expenses WREABRE 2
(included in administrative expenses) (FEAFTHZ ) 3,769

Metro Point contributed post-tax losses of HK$262,000 to the
Group for the period from the Completion Date to 31 March
2011.

If the Metro Point Acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2010,
the Group's revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March
2011 would have been increased by HK$214,520,000 and
HK$12,282,000 respectively.

The gain on the Sinochina Disposal recognised in equity is

Metro PointB el HHIfEZ — & ——
F=ZA=+—HHHEALREETRE
12 E518/5#262,0007T °

fidMetro PointifEETER — T —ZTF
MA—RE#EE  AEEHEHZE=Z—
FZA=ZF+—HIEFEZRAREF
15 5> RIIE h1E 214,520,000 & B
12,282,0007T °

AEZRER 2 Sinochinath & F18 7 Ut
WA

as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
40% of net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE240%
Property, plant and equipment M - WE KRB 9,880
Goodwill [EES 17,016
Other intangible assets — trademarks EtMEREE B 3,653
Interests in associates PRl NI 2 397
Inventories FE 1,365
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEWIRSR - TFHiiRS RIBREIA 5,737
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EE S IENGILSES 11,271
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRS 7,17
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERR Z B A TR (2,115)
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERTIRR - FAKRESRIBIRER (5,009)
Derivative financial instrument PTEMBTA (8,164)
Dividend payable FERTRIR S (8,258)
Deferred income PRIEWA (96)
Current income tax liabilities =SHAEHRasE (1,276)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE (288)
31,830
Less: 60% of the fair value of Metro Point valued by an A B ERT FERK B BA¥{Metro Point
independent valuer at the Completion Date 60% A B2 (1B 24,299
Deemed proceeds received RAEBWEHIE 9,968
Gain on disposal recognised in equity RiESER 2 ek 2,437

Net cash inflow arising from the Metro Point Acquisition:

Metro Point iz i £ 18 2 I € i A%
EE

HK$'000
BETIT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in CPHL

On 17 June 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with Wincon Capital Investment Limited
("Wincon"”), an independent third party, to sell its entire
interest of approximately 54.14% in Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (“CPHL", together with its subsidiaries,
the "CPHL Group”), the Company's subsidiary with its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange, to Wincon at a cash
consideration of HK$243,622,000 upon completion of the
asset reorganisation of CPHL described below.

On 17 June 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
with CPHL to acquire CPHL's entire interest in Sharp
Rise Limited (“Sharp Rise"”) at a cash consideration of
HK$246,000,000 (the “Asset Reorganisation of CPHL").
Sharp Rise holds (i) a 20% interest in Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited (“PCC"), together with its subsidiaries
engaging in branded coffee shop business; (ii) a 60%
interest in Cafe Deco Holdings Limited, together with its
subsidiaries engaging in restaurant and bar business; and
(iii) other investments in venture capital fund. After the
Asset Reorganisation of CPHL, CPHL continues to hold a
100% interest in World Pointer which in turn holds 51%
interest in the World Pointer Group Companies owning 9
restaurants and bars and 3 kiosks (including Watermark,
The Boathouse, Pier 7 Cafe & Bar and Cafe de Paris (Soho)).
The remaining 49% interest of the World Pointer Group
Companies are indirectly held by Cafe Deco Holdings
Limited.
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18 mERERERMT @
(c) HEMBAT

(i)

HEAEERE LT H 225
RZZE—F A A+tR A FH
—BBUE=FKTBEAELEBRA
A ([5kE ) ET A% - R TRt AR
NEIMBARE L ZRERAER AR
([HA2E ] ERRH R £
ERHEMBRARGHEAIELZ0NE
EzEEERETREHEENREL
R #IB4.14% 2 B EbE R T oK - 3R
S RIBAE243,622,0007T °

RZZE—FNA+tH - ARAH
B2 omalytnes s WKEELZS
RAABR AR ([FF]) 2 =24
@ & R {E A% % 246,000,000 7T
([EEXZ2hEESEA] - FAFAE
(i)Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
(ITPCCJ) 220% % + PCCER A
NN RN =Rl i L S 3 S ()]
Cafe Deco Holdings LimitedZ60%
#%5 » Cafe Deco Holdings Limited:i&
BEMBARNESERERBICER
FNEMmRERESZ®E - HL
I EEEMAR  HIzhMERS
World PointerZ 100% %% * mWorld
PointerB3AWorld PointerfeE R
Bl Z51%#% - World Pointer(e @R
AEAIMERE BB RIB NIRRT
(B 3¥EWatermark * The Boathouse *
Pier 7 Cafe & Bar }z Cafe de Paris
(Soho)) » World Pointert&= A &l
T 49% # 2= i Cafe Deco Holdings
Limited@ #4354 -
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in CPHL (continued)

The completion of the disposal of CPHL and the Asset
Reorganisation of CPHL took place on 28 September 2011.
The name of CPHL has been changed to Dingyi Group
Investment Limited with effect from 8 February 2012.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MEE

18 HGEARSHBRME W

(c) HEMWBLAR(E)

(i) HEAEERETTE22HER
(&)
HEETZERETZREESAER
—E——FAA-+NBEK - Et
R ATEEENARBEERERR
NaEl BZE——F-AN\BRRERK -

HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZIWESR
Cash received ALEEA 243,622
Fair value of 49% retained equity interest in Ffrf&World Pointer£s B /A 7],2 49% (R B8 %
World Pointer Group Companies BZARE =
Less: Professional fees and expenses B BEBARTH (17.621)
226,001
Net assets of CPHL Group as at the date of disposed: REERPELZhER 2 EEFE
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) I ER NS AT 9,643
Goodwill (note 18) 2 (f15118) 7551
Other intangible asset — trademark (note 19) Hi @\ EE - miR(M:19) 183
Other non-current assets HA3EmeEE 2,744
Inventories 78 1,311
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUURRR - FRRe RIBNFIE 2,671
Derivative financial instruments PTEMETA 24,549
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRES 153,301
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERIRR - FAKRESRIBIRER (10,582)
Amount due to a former fellow subsidiary JE I — &Rl [B) 2 B B A RIR X (26,876)
Current income tax liabilities EHFSHARE (42)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) R IE B E (MI5E38) (30)
Non-controlling interests el Ea 3,482
167,911
Share of 54.14% net assets of CPHL Group disposed of BREMEE D2 EEEEFE254.14% (90,907)

Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon disposal

HERMAEINE T BFE 332

Gain on disposal of CPHL (nate 7) HEE4 2T 2 Uzs (HsE7) 135,426
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEAZRSRAFE :

HK$'000

BT T

Cash consideration received DR S RE 243,622

Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERITEFRRS (153,301)

Professional fees and expenses BEEBRARYT (17,621)

72,700
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 18 mERERERMT @
FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c) HEMBAT(E)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s 80% interest in the Pacific (ii) HEXEBEMPacific CoffeefEE 2
Coffee Group 80% X
On 28 June 2010, the Group entered into an agreement R-ZZE-ZEXA-F+N\H "ER
to dispose of its 80% equity interest in PCC and its SV EHEERPCCREAMB AR
subsidiaries (the “Pacific Coffee Group”) to China ([Pacific Coffeef=E ]) 7 80% %
Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE"), an independent F—2BUE = HEHAEER AT
third party. The completion of the disposal took place on 7 (TEEHEIZE]) - HEFERN _ZE—F
July 2010. FEAEAZEMK -
HK$'000
BT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWEAR :
Cash received BUIR & 326,640
Fair value of 20% retained equity interest in Fir{Pacific Coffeeft B 2 20% 1R B A% 4 <
Pacific Coffee Group (note 21) AEE21) 53,095
Put option value (note iia) Roh Bt EE (M FTiia) 36,360
Less: Professional fees and expenses W BEBAREE (3,000)
413,095
Net assets disposed of: EHECEEFE :
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) M - RS kR E (FFE16) 40,676
Goodwill (note 18) 2 (f5E18) 34,260
Other intangible asset — trademark (note 19) HiEmEE - iz (MsE19) 99,000
Other non-current assets HiIEmeh&E 17,833
Deferred tax assets (note 38) IR TE B EE (P3E38) 107
Inventories FE 7,879
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIR IR ~ TFHIR S NMIER A 20,315
Prepaid tax TEfFRIR 683
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERRS 26,674
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERPIRIR » FARS RTBIRER (25,385)
Deferred income EIEUA (8,315)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) R IE B E (MI5E38) (16,335)
Exchange fluctuation reserve YINIE T Bh (1,658)
195,734
Gain on disposal of 80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group i & Pacific Coffee5 B 2 80% 1 2 2 Wz
(note iib) {note 7) (Bt =Eiib) (P EE7) 217,361
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEEZHEESRAFE
HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration received 2R eRE 326,640
Bank balances and cash disposed of ERERTETERS (26,674)
Professional fees and expenses EEBRERYT (3,000)
296,966
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s 80% interest in the Pacific
Coffee Group (continued)
Notes:
(iia) Put option value
Pursuant to the shareholders agreement dated 7 July 2010,
CRE has granted a put option to the Group to sell the issued
share capital PCC retained by the Group within three years.
The exercise price of the put option is the higher of (i)
HK$81,660,000, and (ii) 12.1 times of the earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation as shown in
the audited consolidated income statement of the Pacific
Coffee Companies for the latest financial year prior to the
exercise of the put option multiplied by the percentage of
shareholding of the Group in PCC.

The fair value of the put option at the date of grant was
assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns, a firm of
independent valuers, using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The significant inputs into the model are value of the
equity interest at the grant date, exercise price, expected
life of the option, annual risk-free rate and expected volatility
which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of
weekly share prices of comparable companies over the last
three years before the grant date.

(iib) Gain on disposal of 80% interest in Pacific Coffee Group

The gain on disposal of interest in the Pacific Coffee Group
included the gains of HK$203,744,000 on the 80% equity
interest sold (net of professional fees and expenses) and
HK$13,617,000 on re-measurement of the 20% retained
equity interest at the date of disposal.
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18 mERERERMT @

(c) HEMWBLAR(E)
(i) HEAXEBERPacific Coffee B2

80% % (1)

MIRE

(iia) ROLHEEE
BER-_ZT—ZTFLALBTUZR
Ripek  EHEECR TFALERA
HE  UR=ZFALEREBRREZ
PCCEEBITIRA - RN Z1THE(E
BTHzESE « (1)%%81,660,000
T R RTTE R ER R AT 2 Bl —
{E 8F B 4F FE Pacific Coffee A &) 2 £
BRGRARERTRZ RETHE
B WEREHEZABMZ1216 -
TeARE@ETIEPCCZBHERT DL ©

ROEHENRE BB AR ELEL
HEMITHEBTAMIERAFU
AAHEEEEAFG - BAZER
BABBERERENRHOARZE
B 1TEE  PRZERFH - B
B 5 o e FEER IR B 0E E (T0AR IR AT
LA RN B IR = F A EERK
BZRBREIEIMEL)

(iib) HEPacific CoffeeE B 2 80% 3 = Ux
#

HE G Pacific Coffee = E#E2E 2 Uk
AR E80% Mtk 2 Wk (FBr B3
B &%) B %203,744,0007T &R
HEBHEFTE20% R BEHE 2 U
5#13,617,0007T ©
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries and their jointly controlled
entities
(i) Disposal of the Group'’s entire interest in the Citiway
Group
On 22 March 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its entire equity interest in Citiway Group.
The completion of the disposal took place on 9 April 2010.
Further details of the disposal are disclosed in note 8(a).

18 mERERERMT @

(d) HEMBARREHARZESEE
() HEAKERBESREZZHES

W=F—FF=A=+=A  £%8
Y —ElE AR
TN BEFER T FEN
ANRR - WEFEZHE 31
B EEBa) 05 -

HK$'000
BT
Total consideration and loan repayment satisfied by: BEREMEREEZWE A :
Deposit received as at 31 March 2010 R-E—ZF=A=+—Hze ks 29,982
Remaining cash consideration received DB TIRERE 152,440
Repayment of loans BEER 117,398
Less: Professional fees and other expenses W BEBERARAEME N (20,966)
278,854
Net assets disposed of: EHECEEFE :
Interest in a jointly controlled entity Firfl — SR B S 2 2 e 23,206
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity JFE U —RE R I 1 2R R 90,402
Exchange fluctuation reserve INE R F BN (4,185)
109,423
Gain on disposal of Citiway Group (note 8) o SR S B 2 s (P ES) 169,431

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal during the year
ended 31 March 2011:

BHE_Z——F=ZA=+—HI*F
B HEMEEZRESRAFEE

HK$'000
BT T

Cash received BEdER e
— consideration —RE 152,440
— repayment of loans —(BBER 117,398
Professional fees and other expenses paid ENEEERAREMS T (2,725)
267,113
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FLOWS (continued)

48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 18 mERERERMT @

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries and their jointly controlled (d) HEMBATRELE RS SE(E)

entities (continued)

(ii) Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Smartco (i) HEAEENSmartcofE Bz 2 PR
Group
On 3 April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement RZZE-ZTFNWA=H  AEEF
to dispose of its entire equity interest in Smartco Group. —IEH:E - HEHEMNSmartcoEEH
The completion of the disposal took place on 3 July 2010. 2B HEFTER _E—FF+
Further details of the disposal are disclosed in note 8(b). A=B%K - HEFBE 2 E—FFIE

AP EES (0) B F ©

HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration and loan repayment satisfied by: BEREREREEZWEAR :
Cash consideration received BYERSNRE 186,456
Repayment of loans BEER 286,052
Receivables FEW IR
— consideration —RIE 36,900
—loan —-BE% 22,644
Less: Professional fees and other expenses o BEBRKEMSTH (40,792)
491,260
Net assets disposed of: BEHECEEFE :
Interest in a jointly controlled entity BTl — R S R i) (b 35 2 i o 149,951
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity JFE U — R B4 Il (D ZE R TR 135,092
Exchange fluctuation reserve INEH BF BN G (2,053)
282,990
Gain on disposal of Smartco Group (note 8) £ 5 Smartco s B2 Uz (P 5E8) 208,270
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEEZHEEMAERE
2012 2011
—EB—=fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash received BYERE
— consideration —RME 36,900 186,456
— repayment of loans —EEEX 22,644 286,052
Professional fees and other expenses paid BENEEERREMST T - (8,873)
59,544 463,635
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48 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 48
FLOWS (continued)
(e) Disposal of an associate
Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 March 2012, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in an associate, Sekisui SPR
Europe GmbH (“Sekisui SPR"), to an independent third party.
The completion of the disposal took place on 27 March 2012.

CIAL STATEMENTS

GEREREBRMZE @

(e) HE—BBE QT

BEZZ——F=A=-+tRA2H#H "
SER—BBILFE=HFEEER —EBE
A a)Sekisui SPR Europe GmbH([ Sekisui
SPRIz & #ftz - HEFER T ——
F=AZ+tRAZTK -

HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWES -
Cash received BUYERE 49,600
Less: Professional fees and other expenses B BEBRAEEMST L (1,217)
__________ LE
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE -
Interest in an associate (note 21) BTl — I H & A B 2 # e (BIRE21) 2,558
Exchange fluctuation reserve INER I BN 1,492
___________ 30
Gain on disposal of an associate HE M E Qe 2 W 44,333
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEE RS RAFE
HK$'000
BET T
Cash consideration received BUIRESRE 49,600
Professional fees and other expenses HEERALEMTH (1,217)
48,383
49 EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 49 HEHREE

Subsequent to year end, the Company accepted an offer of
a HK$1,500,000,000 three years club loan from banks in May
2012. Subject to the execution of the loan documentation, the
Group expected to draw down this new club loan for repayment
of the existing HK$1,000,000,000 club loan and working capital
requirements of the Group on or before maturity of the existing club
loan.
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N T EL
50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50 FEMELE
Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
v RARHFRERT
EEHY ERTRAR B/ MR
AFER RHER R BRA/ MR A RAEE ZERESL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Ef# Gk
% %
Cafe Deco Franchise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60  Restaurant and bar and
5 L& 00T restaurant franchising
EEREER
BREREE
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 - 60 Investment holding
(formerly known as Sinochina ~ Hong Kong L 10003 7T REER
Enterprises Limited) HBHRAREE/
(B 7&Sinochina Enterprises N
Limited)
Cafe Deco Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60  Restaurantand bar
Bk g 007 EERER
Cafe Deco Macau Limited Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 2 - 60  Restaurantand bar
RFESEEARAA il i 25,00082F9 7T BERER
Capital World (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 5,000 - 60  Restaurant and bar
EZ(H8)ERAA 0 i B 5,0007T ERREE
Champ Success (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60  Restaurant and bar
Limited N i BT BERER
RKE(BB)BRAR
Changchun New Star Universe  Mainland China Not applicable RMBA00,000,000 Not applicable - 9%  Property development
Sheng Chi Real Estate FEIAH T AR #400,000,0007T NEA MEER
Development Co. Ltd. (note )
REMETEMEHERE
BRETAA ()
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Supply and installation
Hong Kong Limited as L BT of aluminium building
HT(BIR)BABRAR materials and curtain
walls
REREMMRERE
B HERTE
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supplyand installation
Limited (note d) &5 3 00T of aluminium building
HE(nIRR)BRAR Deferred HKS$2 2 - 100 materials and curtain
(FfzEd) B BT walls R
REREMHRIER
Bz HERZE
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common CAD$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of
mex i 01MEAT automobiles
FEHE R R
Chevalier Beaverton, LLC USA Not Applicable 1US$500,000 Not Applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
£H TEm 500,000 T TEA mevEhs
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50 FEMBAT )

Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
30 7 APRARBERT
EEHY BRTRERE BB
ARER HER [R5 RA&,/ERBRR REAEA ZEBRBAL FTEEK
Directly Indirectly
E# s
% %
Chevalier (Building Supplies & ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
Engineering) Limited (note )~ &% L@ 00T building materials and
HE(BHIR)ERATF Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 equipment
(FifzEd) BT BET BMMRIEE R
Chevalier Cali Holding (Cal)Inc. ~ USA Common 1S$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery trading
(formerly known as Chevalier ~ £ 3 4,012,000%7T HEEH
International (USA) Inc.)
(A1 7EChevalier International
(USA}Inc.)
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment  Mainland China Not applicable RMB250,000,000 Not Applicable - 100 Investment holding and
Management Limited (notea) ~ = B FYy il AR250,000,0007C TER providing management
Ht(#h)rmagR service
BRAF () REZRRIHER
R
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CADS$101 200 - 100 Saleand servicing of
mex LB 101MERT automobiles
FEHE REERT
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Operation of a cold storage
Logistics Limited BB TR BT warehouse and logistic
HEREMRBRAR business
BERRRER
WiRER
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 996  Building construction and
Company Limited B 3 7 160,500,0007T maintenance
Ht+ (@) ARRA BFRERRE
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
(Hong Kong) Limited (note d) &8 L& 1,007 BT
HIRE(HB)BRAR Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
GED) BT 10,0007
Chevalier (Corporate Management) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Provision of corporate
Limited B L BT management services
HE(hEER)ERDA RUUGEEERE
Chevalier Development (S| Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary $$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
s 3 2,500,000%7 13K 7T NERE
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of electrical and
Limited &5 3 7 169,200,0007T mechanical equipment
HI(BEIR)BRAA and provision of project
management service
TRESHERIEMR
BEERRB
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50 FEMBAT )

Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
37 ARARBERT
EEHY BRIRAR B/ MR
AREHB RER RER R,/ AR A RAEE ZERESL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# Gk
% %
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Peso8,750,000 87,500 - 100  Waste disposal treatment
FEE LE 8,750,0003F2E L& services
BEEMREES
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 Environmental engineering
ET(RERIMABRAR &R g 7E515148,600,0007T RRIE
Chevalier Gresham, LLC USA Not applicable US$400,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
xE TER 400,000% 7T Tam marths
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
Limited EE i FE11,000,0007T RIRER
HA(RIeER)BRAF
Chevalier Insurance Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance underwriting
Limited BE iy 7 1:200,000,0007 REREHK
HE-RBRARAA
Chevalier iTech Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Trading and servicing of
HARBIRERAR 5 5 BT computers and business
machines
ERRAERSEI N
3
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailand QOrdinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of computers and
(note b)( B 5Eh) ZE L 18,980,000 4k business machines
Preference BAHT1,020,000 10,200 - 00 ERREEESES
Bk 1,020,000%%
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 2 - 100 Building construction
HE(RM) AR e i JRPIH100,0007T and installation of air-
conditioning systems
and aluminum building
materials and curtain
walls
BFRERZELR
ZRRBEREMNH
REERR
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Network systems and
Limited N LR BT solution services
Hi(BRRR)BR AT PREZGEBERS
Chevalier Network Solutions Thai  Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of telecommunication
Limited % E3 15,000,000Z= 4k equipment
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 FEMEAT (8

Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
&,/ RARSHO R
Y BRTRERE BB
AL REXR RER R,/ AR A RG#E ZERESL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# 4
% %
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of computers and
HI(BEZHF)BRDA & LR F1£100,0007C office equipment
ERENAEREES
Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and construction for
Hong Kong Limited Ak i Y143 400,0007T flushing water, cooling
HIEEBEEBERAA water, gas, sewages and
drainage pipelines
Rk -
"R R TIKR
KREE
Chevalier Portland Laurelhurst, LLC  USA Not applicable 1$$2,000,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
ESE] TiEA 2,000000% 7% T merEhs
Chevalier Property Development  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Limited (note d) 0 B3 7 16:360,000,0007T investment
HEMERRBR A Deferred HKS51 51 - 00 WEERREE
(Fi5Ed) BT BEDIT
Chevalier Property Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property management and
Limited (note d) Fayi LA AEE1007T security services
HIERMEEEERAA Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 MESTERREZRE
(FizEd) A0S 1,007
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,165,000 1,165,000 - 100 Installation and maintenance
Ht (RE®R)BRAR &A LiE 7E151,165,0007T of satellite antennae
ZERREFEER
PN
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
HimE AR AR EE i i FEH1,500,0007 iigiaecd
CIH (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 1 100 - Investment holding
EBERRES LB 17T REER
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$183,400,200 1,834,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited (note d) Bk ] #51183,400,2007T TAIR
HtERHBBRAR Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - -
(Hiskd) e 7 525,936,2007T
Full Ascent Development Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Property investment
BAEREBRAA EE @ oLy NERE
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RE BB AR M EE

50 FEMBAT )

Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
307 ARARBERT
MY BRIRAR B/
AREHB RER RER B,/ MR A RAEE ZERESL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# Gk
% %
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60  Restaurantand bar
EE(ER)ARAR BE 3 75100007 EERER
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 Property investment
PHRERRATA B & 100 MERE
Good Process Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 149 100 - Property development
BEBRAR (fizkd) EE ] FEB1497T NEER
Deferred HKS51 51 - 100
B BB
Igor's Group Management Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60  Restaurantand bar
EAREERERAR 6 3 BET EEREE
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Trading of food and
EANERATE &S L EH10,0007T beverage
Kwai Hei Investments No.1 Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 1 - 75 Property investment
Limited 05 5 BT MERE
Lac Kar Investment Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited 5 L& 713,600,000 MERE
NMEZFBB AT
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 Investment holding of
mnex Ll 101,10000& KT property investment and
hotel operation
MERBELBEBIE
EBRERR
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
MER g 100001 KT NERE
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 60  Restaurant and bar
KEBERARAR EE ] B0 ZEREE
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 Property investment
EBERRES T8 (E NERE
New Global (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60  Restaurant and bar
#iE(BE)BRAR & i 10,0007 EENEE
Orient Talent (Hong Kong| Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60  Restaurantand bar
E£71(BE)BRRA E# 3 B8 EEREE
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eV BmERME
50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 FEMEQE @)
Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
30 7 APRARBERT
EEBY BRTRERE A /AR A
AEEE RER RER R,/ SRR A RH#E ZERESL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# E
% %
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60  Restaurant and bar
BH(EE)ARRA & B BEIT EELOEE
PC Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60  Restaurantand har
B & 8T EEREE
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
HEIBRAF EE @ BT NERE
Peak Restaurants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60  Restaurantand bar
EE i 1007 ZREIOEE
Proud Rich Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BEBRAR(Krd) & B BET NERE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
ERT BT
Restaurants Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 60  Restaurants management
(Hong Kong] Limited Bt i BB ZEER
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China Not applicable US$3,650,000 Not applicable - 100 Property management
Management Co., Ltd (notea) ~ FR B /93t NEA 3,650,000 T NEA and providing property
LEETYEERERAA management consultation
(Hitta) NEEBRRMAME
T
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Mainland China Not applicable US$1,000,000 Not applicable - 100 Trading of lifts, escalators,
Co., Ltd. (note a) B A NEA 1,000,000% 75 NEA electrical and mechanical
PEETESERAR equipment
GBS R BHBR
KEREES
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate ~ Mainland China Not applicable US$18,000,000 Not applicable - 80 Property development and
Development Co. Ltd. (note ¢) ~ #* EI gt TEH 18,000,000 7T TNEA investment
HRRZRMEERR NEERRRE
BRAF (M)
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60  Restaurant and bar
WE(EB)ERAR EE e 510,007 ZREIOEE
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
RE ey 15,000,000% 8% MERE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60  Restaurantand bar
ER(EE)BRRA B L& 100 EEREE
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 FEMEAQE (@)
Issued and
Place or country of paid up Effective percentage of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of  registered capital held by
Name of company operation shares Capital shares the Company Principal activities
307 ARARBERT
MY BRIRAR B/ MR
AREHB RER RER B,/ MR A RAEE ZERESL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# Gk
% %
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 875 Logistics services
Limited N =i 7&130,000,0007C iR
ARIEREBR R
Talent Luck Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development and
HEREERLD (i) &8 i #1270,000,0007C investment
Deferred HK$51 51 - 0 DEBRREE
ET BT
Union Pearl Development Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
ERERBRATA EE il BT NERE
Winfield Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
BRERBRAA & TR BT NERE
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co. Ltd. ~ Mainland China Not applicable RMBS55,000,000 Not applicable - 70 Hotel operation
(note c) HE A TEm AR 5500000070 TEm BEREET
EHHET NBEBRAR
GED)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 Property investment
JIIEN L 10MERT NERE
Notes: BEE
(a) Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises. (a)  DAOMNEIBEDENP BRI ©
(b) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference (b) BEIRAIERET10% @ MZA R ZFEARE L
shares of this company carry one vote. HE R
(c) Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint (c) LAFRINEERENHRBE AN
ventures.
(d) All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to (d) FIEEERMBEERER mMERLETIEEER
participate in any distribution upon winding up. A BRRNESTADIR
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51 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 51 FERZE AT

Effective percentage
of issued capital/

Place or country registered capital
of incorporation/  Class of held by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
KATEEEE
R 3k ERITRAR
AR EH RER R4 %5 MR AEE FTEER
%
Chevalier Engineering (S) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 49  Installation and maintenance of
Hrns Lim lifts and escalators
L RARE FH A R BRI
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and
HE-(BB)BRAR B i maintenance of lifts and
escalators
B - DR RIREFEHRR
B
Chevalier Lifts Engineering (Shenzhen) Mainland China Not applicable 49 Installation and maintenance of
Co., Ltd. R B A, T A lifts and escalators
HA-EBIRORIDAERAA L5 RARE FHRE M I B R 18
Chevalier Singapore Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
HAF R AER AR N i@ maintenance of lifts and
escalators
P - BERREAREER
B
Elevator Parts Engineering Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and
ERTREERAT EHE i) maintenance of lifts and
escalators
HpE - BRRREAREER
B
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Property investments
BEEBER AT B =3 il MERE
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 20 Investment holding of Pacific Coffee
RBHBREE T8 Group
Pacific Coffee st B & & 15 /%
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China Not applicable 49 Installation and maintenance of
EEHTERTREERAF AR At T3 lifts and escalators
L RIRE TR B
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 25  Manufacturing and provision of
WA RRLTBRAA BE il concrete
EENRERRELT
WIS BB S HR AR Mainland China Not applicable 40 Trading of motor vehicles and
A B A 3, TiEA provision of maintenance
services
AEE S RRERERY
PREBRRFG R L MR E Mainland China Not applicable 21 Trading of motor vehicles and
AR AR AR AR B A i A provision of maintenance
services

REE S RREHRERS
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51 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued) 51 FEHE N T(H)

Effective percentage
of issued capital/

Place or country registered capital
of incorporation/  Class of held by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
ARAREEEE
FEf, s S 2 ERITRAR
AR EH RER B4 %85l TR EE FEER
%
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation,
REBEB(RRH)BRAR A B i repair and maintenance of lifts
and escalators
B IHE - RE - #ER
REFABEM R BB
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation,
REBEROER)BRAR A A NiE repair and maintenance of lifts
and escalators
B IHE  RE - #ER
REFAPEM R BB
Note: The Group's entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these MisE : ANEBEREEAER 2 LOIFTE AL E
associates is in proportion to its ownership interest. NRLZm IS EE
52 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 52 TEHREREGEE

Effective percentage
of issued share capital/

Place or country registered
of incorporation share capital
orregistration/  Class of shares  Form of business  held by the Company
Name of jointly controlled entity operation held structure indirectly  Principal activities
AR BEEE
a1 - BBITRAR
HEEHDEEE b BE SR B 3R gk Vil BEEBER SR AERE ETEER
%
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50  Civil engineering
BresiE fR A 5 gl EEaii TARTEE
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50  Building maintenance
e AR E R AT B Epi! S BFRE
it R Bl R I = b 2 A 2 Mainland China  Not applicable Domestic enterprise 44 Property development
BRAF A A NiE A NERE MEER
KEETEHEER Mainland China  Not applicable Wholly-foreign 49 Property development
BRAT A A N3 A owned enterprise MEERE
SNEEE (R
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50  Property development
EEARAT B =il FEA MEER
Note: The Group's entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these MisE : AEBIREEEEDR 2 O E ML LR
jointly controlled entities is in proportion to its ownership interest. T EE 7 S EE
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